HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, October 25, 2017

6:00 p.m. Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
6:00 p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below.
6:30 p.m. Reconvene to open session no earlier than 6:30 p.m.

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS:
Call to order and roll call

Gabriel Leal, President Rosalinda Sanchez Tomas Loera
Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk Rod Boone
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.

1. Education Code Section 48918, Student Discipline. To consider disciplinary action including expulsion relative to student
No. 3923/400776.

2. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, Superintendent
Charles Tracy regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

3. Government Code Section 54957 (b}, Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.

4. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified School
District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CvV01394.

Report out actions taken in closed session.
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:
6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

7.0 COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS:
1. Board Member Comments/Reports.
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports.
a. Hamilton High, Tate Gruenwald.
b. Hamilton Elementary, Alexis Villegas.
3. Principal and Dean of Student Reports
a. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal.
b. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students.
4. District Reports (written)
a. Food Service Report by LeAnn Radtke. (page 1)
b. Operations Report by Marc Eddy.
c. Technology Report by Derek Hawley. (page 2)
Chief Business Official/Facilities Report by Diane Lyon.
6. Superintendent/Interim Hamilton Elementary School Principal Report by Charles Tracy.
a. Board Workshop, November 8, 2017: prioritizing HUSD needs with board members, staff, parents and
community members.
. Small School Districts Association (SSDA} Annual Conference — February 19-21, 2018 at the Hilton Sacramento.
¢. Holidays:
i. Friday, November 10™ in observance of Veterans Day.
d. School Board Meetings:
i. No November meeting

bd



e



8.0

10.0

ii.. Wednesday, December 13, 2017

CORRESPONDENCE: None.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

1.

PwnN

15.

16.
17.
18.

19.
20.
21.
22.

23.
24.

25.

26.
27.

28.

29.
30.

31.
32.

33.
34.
35.
36.

Board meeting dates for 2018. (page 3)

HUSD Coaching Evaluation Process. (page 4-7)

Joint Notice to Bargain 2017-18, CSEA #623 and Hamilton Unified School District. (page 8)

California School Dashboard review the 4 Local Indicators and HUSD performance rating for each: Basic Conditions,
Implementation of Academic Standards, Parent Engagement, School Climate by L. Anderson.

Healthy Communities Presentation; involvement at Hamilton Elementary School by J. Firth.

Hamilton Elementary School Spelling Bee Team by J. Firth. {page 9-10)

Hamilton Elementary School Standards-Based Report Card Pifot Updates by J. Firth.

Reading Partners Program Pilot Request with HES-HHS by J. Firth.

Update on Dual Immersion, stakeholder engagement and outreach for Hamilton Elementary School by M. Sawyer

. Second reading of Board Policy 5148.2 Before/After School Programs (for regular manual maintenance). (page 1)
. Second reading of Administrative Regulation 5148.2 Before/After School Programs (for regular manual maintenance).

(page 1)

. Second reading of Board Policy 6111 School Calendar (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
. Second reading of Board Policy 6117 Year-Round Schedules (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
. Second reading of Board Policy 6142.2 World/Foreign Language Instruction {for regular manual maintenance). (page

11-18)

Second reading of Administrative Regulation 6142.2 World/Foreign Language Instruction (for regular manual
maintenance). (page 11-18)

Second reading of Board Policy 6144 Controversial Issues (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

Second reading of Board Policy 6174 Education for English Learners (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
Second reading of Administrative Regulation 6174 Education for English Learners (for regular manual maintenance).
(page 11-18)

Second reading of Board Policy 6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes {for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
Second reading of Board Policy 2121 Superintendent’s Contract (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
Second reading of Board Policy 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
Second reading of Administrative Regulation 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures (for regular manual maintenance).
(page 11-18)

Second reading of Board Policy 1340 Access to District Records (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Board Policy 3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Plan{for reqular manual maintenance). {page 11-
18)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 3351 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Plan (for regular manual
maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 3580 District Records (for reqular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Board Policy 4127/4227/4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches (for regular manual maintenance).
(page 11-18)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 4127/4227/4327 Temporary Athletic Team Coaches (for regular manual
maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Board Policy 4312.1 Contracts (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment (for regular manual maintenance).
(page 11-18)

First reading of Board Policy 6142.93 Science Instruction (for reqular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Board Policy 6145 Extracurricular and Co-curricular Activities (for requiar manual maintenance). (page
11-18)

First reading of Board Policy 6178.1 Work-Based Learning (for reqgular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 6178.1 Work-Based Learning (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)
First reading of Board Policy 7214 General Obligation Bonds (for regular manual maintenance). (page 11-18)

First reading of Board Bylaw 9012 Board Member Electronic Communications (for reqular manual maintenance). (page
11-18)

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.






11.0 ACTION ITEMS:
1. Add S5 days to the Hamilton High School Principal contract for 2017-18 to assist with District needs.
2. Second reading of: (page 11-18)
i. Board Policy 5148.2 Before/After School Programs
ii. Administrative Regulation 5148.2 Before/After School Programs
iii. Board Policy 6111 School Calendar
iv. Board Policy 6117 Year-Round Schedules
v. Board Policy 6142.2 World/Foreign Language Instruction
vi. Administrative Regulation 6142.2 World/Foreign Language Instruction
vii. Board Policy 6144 Controversial Issues
viii. Board Policy 6174 Education for English Learners
ix. Administrative Regulation 6174 Education for English Learners
X. Board Policy 6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes
xi. Board Policy 2121 Superintendent’s Contract
xii. Board Policy 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
xiii. Administrative Regulation 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
xiv. Board Policy 1340 Access to District Records
12.0 CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.

There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the
Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.
Warrants and Expenditures. (page 19-46)
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting on September 27, 2017. (page 47-54)
Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Minutes for September 14, 2017. (page 55-56)
Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Agenda for October 12, 2017. (page 57)
Hamilton High School Site Council Meeting Minutes for: September 12, 2017. (page 58)
Hamilton High School Site Council Meeting Agenda for: October 10, 2017. (page 59)
CDE Annual Financial Expenditure Report Fiscal Year 2016-17, CA Career Technical Education Incentive Grant (CTEIG).
(page 60-65)
Butte-Glenn Community College District, Allocation Agreement for Adult Education Block Grant Program. (page 66-108)
Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).

a. Out

R GV LA B s 19 1

.

i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. 6" GradeX1
2. Kindergarten X 1
ii. Hamilton High School
1. 10" GradeX 1
2. 12" Grade X 2

i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. None
ii. Hamilton High School
1. None
10. Personnel Actions as Presented:
a. New hires:

i. Chuck Johnson Varsity Volleyball Co-Coach HHS
ii. Juan Lopez Girls Soccer Coach HHS
iii. Luis Saavedra Boys Soccer Coach HHS
iv. Elliott Delmatier JV Girls Basketball Coach HHS
v. Jaime Ortiz Classified Substitute District
vi. Maria Marquez Classified Substitute District

b. Resignations/Retirement:
i. None
0 ADJOURNMENT:






September 2017 Food Services Report
Hamilton Unified School District

Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

LeAnn Radtke

BACK TO SCHOOL

Combined District totals 19 days of school
Lunches 8586
Breakfasts 5683
Boys and Girls Club snacks 745
Boys and Girls Suppers 1957
Total $46585.53



Technology Report
Frank James, Director of Technology

Derek Hawley, information Systems Technician

Completed Tasks — October

1. Google/Aeries Integration Project: We are currently working with Aeries in order to
properly pair Google Classrooms and Aeries. This will allow teachers to “push”
assignments and grades from Google Classrooms to Aeries.

2. Tickets: Once again we are on track for a busy month in regards to tickets. | would guess
we will again end up in the 60+ range for October.

3. Chromebook Project: Chromebooks are ready to be deployed to Room 9 at the high
school. The cabinets have come in and we are working on getting them wired and ready.



Hamilton Unified School District

Regular and Special Board Meetings
2018 Schedule and Agenda Item Deadlines

Time: 6:30 p.m. (Public Session begin)
Location: Hamilton High School Library
When: Fourth Wednesday of the Month

Board Meeting Date Regular or Special Meeting | Agenda Items Deadline to
District Office by 3:00pm

January 24, 2017 Regular January 10, 2018

February 28, 2017 Regular February 14, 2018

March 28, 2017 Regular March 14, 2018

April 25,2017 Regular April 11, 2018

May 23, 2017 Regular May 9, 2018

June 6, 2017 Special May 23,2018

LCAP/Budget Hearing

June 27, 2017 Regular June 13, 2018

Approval of LCAP and Budget

July 25, 2017 Regular July 11, 201

(If needed)

August 22,2017 Regular August 8, 2018

September 26, 2017 Regular September 12, 2018

October 24, 2017 Regular October 10, 2018

November/December November 21, 2018

December 12, 2017 Regular

Annual Reorganization

Additional Important Dates

February 24, 2017 (Board Workshop, Board Manual)

February 27, 2017 (Board Site Visit- 8:15 am.-10:30 a.m.)

March 10, 2017, (Board Workshop, Budget planning)

*Dates and times of meetings and workshops are subject to change.




Hamilton Unified School District

DATE: Ocfober 16, 2017

TO: Governing Board, Hamilton Unified School District
FROM: Charles Tracy

SUBJECT: HUSD Ceoaching Evaluation Process

I would like to begin by thanking Cris Oseguera and Erin Johnson for the research they have
done and the work they have put in to create the atached coaching evaluation forms.

The Process we have discussed has been that through the evaluation process, administrators will
use these tools to strengthen our athletic program by the use of a pre-evaluation form that
coaches wiil §ill out and turn into the site administrator along with their annual emplioyment
contract. The self-evaluation form will serve much like the professional growth plan our district
uses for the cerlificated teachers during their respective evaluation period.

Al the end of the season of play, the site adminisiraior, in concerf with the Disfrict Athlefic
Director, will complete the evaluation process and meet with the coach(s). The evaluation will
be shared and a signed copy will be piaced into the coach(s) personnel file.

We are placing this item on the agenda as information for the Board and the public. No action
needs to be taken by the board at this ime. We will begin the evaluation process with the Winter
sports coaches 2017-2018. We will preview the process with the fali 2017-2018 coaches and will
implement the evaluation process for them in the fall of 2018.

Please note that the forms are draft and may be revised a bit for content, but are mostly the
format we will utilize during this process. We will send copies to each of the bargaining units for

their information.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COACH SELF EVALUATION FORM

Name of Coach School Year
Sport/Season Level
e A N N N N N O A A O A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A AN AN AN ANAAAAANA
§ = Satisfactory NI = Needs Improvement
A. Teaching Personality
SNI Self-control and poise
SNI Appropriate sense of humor
S NI Enthusiasm
S NI Appearance
SNI Appropriate language
SNI Good judgment
S NI Appropriate behavior
SNI Keeps things in perspective
Comments:
B. Team Management
SNI Punctuality
SNI Proper supervision
S NI Makes maximum use of time
S NI Demonstrates care of equipment
S NI Shows proper team discipline
S NI Utilizes staff
S NI Locks up facilities/gates
Comments:
C. Professional Qualities
S NI Rapport with staff
SNI Upholds departments policies
S NI Rapport with parents
SNI Submits paper work on time
SNI Rapport with personnel from other school
SNI Keeps athletic director informed
Comments:
D. Coaching Performance
S NI Has knowledge/expertise in sport
SNI Ability to teach and motivate
SNI Exhibits leadership
S NI Has organizational skills
Comments:
¥

Coach Date Athletic Director Date



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COACHING EVALUATION
BY ATHLETIC DIRECTOR AND SITE ADMINISTRATOR

School: _ Hamilton High School Hamilton Elementary School
Name of Coach:
Sport/Season Schooi Year
S = SATISFACTORY NI = NEeDS IMPROVEMENT U = UNSATISFACTORY
A. COACHING PERFORMANCE/CONDUCT
SNiU 1. Is well-versed and knowledgeable in matters pertaining to the sport.
SNIU 2. 1s prompt and makes maximum use of time available for practice.
SNIU 3. Practices safety procedures.
SNIU 4. Are innovative, uses new coaching methods, techniques, ideas?
SNIU 5. Has good knowledge of sports rules.
SNIU 6. Prepares team physically (conditioning).
SNIU 7. Prepares team mentally utilizing ethical means of motivation.
SNIU 8. Prepares team emotionally (players play to potential).
SNIU 9. Maintains discipline and self-cantrol in the competitive arena, providing an
Example of sporting behavior.
SNIU 10. Shows self-control and poise in all areas related to coaching responsibilities.
SNIU 11. Supports, models, and expects high behavioral standards for self, coaches,

parents and student-athletes.

Additional Comments:

B

TEAM MANAGEMENT/SAFETY

SNIU
SNIU
SNiU

SNIU
SNIU
SNIU
SNIU
SNIU
SNIU
SNIu
SNIU
SNIU

SNIU

SNIU
SNIU
SNIU
SNIU

1. Is fair, patient, tolerant, and compassionate with all student-athletes.

2. Organizes team and team activities/events effectively and efficiently.

3. Organizes, supervises, coordinates, and evaluates practice sessions and related team activities
with attention to individual and group safety.

4. Displays compassion and respect for the student-athletes.

5. Uses professional and age-appropriate language at all times.

6. Recognizes individual differences, abilities and personalities.

7. Game conduct: sideline/bench discipline.

8. Game conduct: with game officials.

9. Game conduct: toward opposing players and coaches.

10. Cares for equipment: inventory, issue, collection, repair, storage.

11. Keeps accurate records: rosters, participation forms, eligibility, etc.

12. Has knowledge of and respect for district/school, league/section/CIF rules
and regulations.

13. Cooperates with the athletic director in submitting schedules, rosters,
evaluation forms and requested reports on schedule as due.

14. Has returned all keys and equipment issued at the beginning of the season.

15. Attends all required school, team, and league meetings for coaches.

16. Makes appropriate transportation arrangements for team members.

17. Appropriately and safely supervises the student-athletes in locker rooms, training rooms,
educational areas, and while being transported to and from events.

Additional Comments:

6



C. COMMUNICATIONS/SCHOOL COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS

SNIU 1. Develops rapport with other members of the coaching staff.

SNIU 2. Develops rapport with other members of the school staff.

SNIU 3. Maintains open and positive communication with teachers, administrators,
and support staff.

_Ntu 4. Demonstrates general support for other coaches and other teams in the

school athletic program.

SNIU 5. Dresses appropriately at practice and games.
SNIU 6. Sets a positive example for student-athletes by manners, behavior and language.
SNIU 7. Communicates effectively with parents.
SNIU 8. Fosters accurate and balanced communication with the media.
SNIU 9. Provides an atmosphere for open dialogue with student-athletes, academic
staff, athletic director, and the site administration.
SNIU 10. Articulates clear and specific expectations and process of the program and
school policies to student-athletes, parents, other coaches, and athletic director.
SNIU 11. Displays cooperation and support for the school’s athletic and academic programs.
SNIU 12. Works with other school coaches/advisors to develop and maintain a coordinated program.

Additional Comments:

\}ADDITIONAL COMMENDATIONS (use separate sheet if necessary):

E. ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS (use separate sheet if necessary):

Signature of Coach Title Date

)1ature of Evaluator Title Date



Hamilton Unified School District

DATE: Ociober 25, 2017

TO: Governing Board of Hamilfon Unified School Dishict
FROM: Chartes Tracy

SUBJECT: Joint Notice to Bargain 2017-2018

CSEA 623 and Hamilton Unified School Disirict joinfly agrees to begin bargaining regarding all
articles in the HUSD/CSEA 423 three vear agreement except for Adicles 10, Pay and Allowances
and Article 11, Heaith and Welfare Benefits, CSEA and HUSD have mulually agreed that some
portions of the coniract that may have been closed under Article 10, may be discussed as it
relates to reclassification of certain classified employee groups.

Bargaining may begin after the public notice has been placed on the agenda in October of
2017 and the board acceptance of bargaining at the December 2017 board meeting.

“ X ("7 e,

Mrs. Chris DeVries, CSEA President Charles Tracy, District S/L/perinfendent




10.

11.

2

13,

Glenn County Spelling Bee Competition
Rules and Regulations

The Spelling Bee Competition is open to two students per grade level from each
school in Glenn County in grades 5-8 who have been certified as grade-level

champions at their school.

Each student will be given a number to wear, which will match their chair number.
They must sit in the coordinating chair while on stage. Students will be called to the

podium by their number.

This will be an oral competition scored according to the procedures described below.
Paper and pencil will be available to each student at the podium only. No personal
materials will be allowed in the immediate competition area.

The Reader will read a word, use it in a sentence, and say it again. If a student has a
question, they must raise their hand immediately. The Reader will respond to the

hand signal.

Homonyms must be spelled according to the usage described in the sample sentence
and the definition given (if requested).

All capitals, spaces, apostrophes or other accent marks included in the normal
English spelling of the word must be included.

The student will have 30 seconds to spell the word aloud. During this time, they may
choose to write the word before they spell it into the microphone.

Once a student begins to spell a word, they will not be able to change the sequence of
letters by respelling the word.

The Reader will verify if the word is spelled correctly.

At the end of each round, students who have misspelled their word will be eliminated
from the next round’s competition until a winner is declared.

Words will be chosen from grade level curriculum. Students will be asked to spell
words from the grade they just completed (i.e. fifth graders will be asked to spell
fourth grade words).

The Proctors, Reader, and Judge will be in complete charge of the competition. Their
decision will be final on all questions. No protest will be entertained at any time.
Video and audio recording may not be used to dispute results.

The audience may not aid the student in the spelling of any word during the
competition.



10

Al q,_L '-m##th'-— Ly 4_,;.-)— it e AL g L ..-b-\ -~y uh&ﬁ%
SRR Ty i S i uu-l’w L ”"‘l\“\-"l i m.ﬁ‘—‘bt -

T T W T T eﬂm‘.-
o [ 1

3 lq 3 i (MY ’ i
$ =t L) e ::_.,. . .' e L} l_ 1/

Glenn County Spelling Bee 2017

When: Tuesday, October 17, 2017
Where: Willows Memorial Hall
Time: 10:00 a.m.-12:30 p.m.
Who: 5" - 8" graders

(Each school may enter two students per grade level.)

Doors open at 9:00 a.m. for check-in.

Registration Link:
http://bit.ly/spellbee2017

Registration Deadline: Tuesday, October-10, 2017
You will not be able to register students for this event after this date.

Please contact Cinnamin Morton at cmorton@glenncoe.org, if you have
any questions or need to make corrections.



CSBA Update Guidesheets

Before/After School Programs

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2615, 2016) which
permits districts to charge a family fee for participation in an ASES, 21st CCLC, or ASSETs
program, as long as the fee is waived or reduced for low-income families and, effective July 1,
2017, the fee is not charged for a homeless or foster youth. Policy also links program content
with goals in the district's LCAP, and includes material formerly in AR related to priorities for
establishing district programs consistent with state and federal priorities for funding programs.
Regulation also reflects provisions of AB 2615 which require first priority for enrollment,
beginning July 1, 2017, to be given to students identified as homeless or foster youth and require
ASSETSs programs to provide for access to computers and technology.

See BP 5148.2

See AR 5148.2

School Calendar

(BP revised) Policy updated to clarify that a district must offer a minimum of 175 instructional
days per school year until it meets or exceeds its funding target under the local control funding
formula, at which time the minimum required number of instructional days is 180. Policy also
adds reference to the requirement for a minimum of 163 instructional days per year for
multitrack year-round schools.

See BP 6111

Year-Round Schedules

(BP revised) Policy updated to clarify that a year-round school is generally required to offer a
minimum of 175 instructional days per school year until the district meets or exceeds its funding
target under the local control funding formula, at which time the minimum required number of
instructional days is 180. Policy adds conditions under which a multitrack year-round school
may instead offer a minimum of 163 instructional days.

See BP 6117

World/Foreign Language Instruction

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (Proposition 58, 2016)
which authorizes the establishment of dual-language immersion programs that provide integrated
language learning and academic instruction for English learners and native speakers of English.
Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 2290, 2016) which requires the SBE to consider revisions to
the state content standards for world languages by March 31, 2019. Regulation reflects
provisions of Proposition 58 which (1) delete the requirement that a parent/guardian request a

11



12

waiver of structured English immersion instruction so that an English learner may participate in a
dual-language immersion program, (2) require dual-language immersion programs in grades K-3
to meet class size requirements, and (3) require a parental notice with information on the

district's dual-languagse and other language acquisition programs.
(=4 o {4 o he S e Ir o T

See BP 6142.2
See AR 6142.2

Controversial Issues

(BP revised) Policy updated to provide that parents/guardians may be given an opportunity to opt
out of instruction on controversial issues only when required by law, not at the discretion of a
teacher or administrator. Policy also clarifies the district's right to limit teacher expressions of
personal opinion when teachers are in the classroom and therefore acting on behalf of the district.

See BP 6144

Education for English Learners

(BP/AR revised; E 6174 deleted) Policy and regulation substantially revised to reflect NEW
LAW (Proposition 58) which authorizes parents/guardians to select a language acquisition
program that best suits their child and eliminates the requirement for parents/guardians to request
a waiver from the district if they want to enroll their child in a program other than a structured
English immersion program. Policy reflects provisions of Proposition 58 that require districts to
(1) offer, at a minimum, a structured English immersion program; (2) seek parent/guardian and
community input on language acquisition programs during development of the district's LCAP;
and (3) to the extent possible, offer a language acquisition program requested by
parents/guardians of 30 or more students at a school or 20 or more students in any grade level at
the school. Policy and regulation also reflect revisions in Title III English learner programs,
including renumbering of accountability requirements and changes in the required parental
notification, pursuant to the Every Student Succeeds Act. Title of policy and regulation updated
to reflect current terminology. Exhibit deleted as districts no longer need a sample form for the
parental exception waiver.

See BP 6174

See AR 6174

Weekend/Saturday Classes

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2659, 2016) which authorizes makeup
classes for any type of absence, including excused absences, to be offered during the weekend.
Policy also adds material regarding the circumstances under which teachers cannot be assigned

to work on a weekend.
See BP 6176



Uniform Complaint Procedures

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2306, 2016) which
authorizes the use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints alleging noncompliance with
requirements related to course credit transfer and exemption from local graduation requirements
for former juvenile court school students. Regulation also references NEW LAW (SB 1375,
2016) which requires districts, on or before July 1, 2017, to post information relating to Title IX,
including specified information about complaint procedures, on their web sites.

See BP 1312.3

See AR 1312.3

Access to District Records

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (City of San Jose v. Superior
Court) which held that using a personal account or device to send or receive communications
regarding public business does not categorically exclude those records from disclosure in
response to a request under the California Public Records Act and that public agencies are
obliged to disclose applicable records that they can locate with reasonable effort.

See BP 1340

Superintendent's Contract

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1436, 2016) which requires the board,
prior to taking final action on the superintendent's salary or benefits, to orally report a summary
of the recommended action during open session of a board meeting. Updated policy also clarifies
that deliberations regarding the superintendent's salary or other compensation cannot be held
during a special meeting of the board.

See BP 2121

Before/After School Programs

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2615, 2016) which
permits districts to charge a family fee for participation in an ASES, 21st CCLC, or ASSETs
program, as long as the fee is waived or reduced for low-income families and, effective July 1,
2017, the fee is not charged for a homeless or foster youth. Policy also links program content
with goals in the district's LCAP, and includes material formerly in AR related to priorities for
establishing district programs consistent with state and federal priorities for funding programs.
Regulation also reflects provisions of AB 2615 which require first priority for enrollment,
beginning July 1, 2017, to be given to students identified as homeless or foster youth and require
ASSETs programs to provide for access to computers and technology.

See BP 5148.2

See AR 5148.2

13



14

School Calendar

(BP revised) Policy updated to clarify that a district must offer a minimum of 175 instructional
days per school year until it meets or exceeds its funding target under the local control funding
formula, at which time the minimum required number of instructional days is 180. Policy also
adds reference to the requirement for a minimum of 163 instructional days per year for
multitrack year-round schools.

See BP 6111

Year-Round Schedules

(BP revised) Policy updated to clarify that a year-round school is generally required to offer a

minimum of 175 instructional days per school year until the district meets or exceeds its funding
target under the local control funding formula, at which time the minimum required number of
instructional days is 180. Policy adds conditions under which a multitrack year-round school
may instead offer a minimum of 163 instructional days.

See BP 6117

World/Foreign Language Instruction

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (Proposition 58, 2016)
which authorizes the establishment of dual-language immersion programs that provide integrated
language learning and academic instruction for English learners and native speakers of English.
Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 2290, 2016) which requires the SBE to consider revisions to
the state content standards for world languages by March 31, 2019. Regulation reflects
provisions of Proposition 58 which (1) delete the requirement that a parent/guardian request a
waiver of structured English immersion instruction so that an English learner may participate in a
dual-language immersion program, (2) require dual-language immersion programs in grades K-3
to meet class size requirements, and (3) require a parental notice with information on the
district's dual-language and other language acquisition programs.

See BP 6142.2

See AR 6142.2

Controversial Issues

(BP revised) Policy updated to provide that parents/guardians may be given an opportunity to opt
out of instruction on controversial issues only when required by law, not at the discretion of a
teacher or administrator. Policy also clarifies the district's right to limit teacher expressions of
personal opinion when teachers are in the classroom and therefore acting on behalf of the district.

See BP 6144



Education for English Learners

(BP/AR revised; E 6174 deleted) Policy and regulation substantially revised to reflect NEW
LAW (Proposition 58) which authorizes parents/guardians to select a language acquisition
program that best suits their child and eliminates the requirement for parents/guardians to request
a waiver from the district if they want to enroll their child in a program other than a structured
English immersion program. Policy reflects provisions of Proposition 58 that require districts to
(1) offer, at a minimum, a structured English immersion program; (2) seek parent/guardian and
community input on language acquisition programs during development of the district's LCAP;
and (3) to the extent possible, offer a language acquisition program requested by
parents/guardians of 30 or more students at a school or 20 or more students in any grade level at
the school. Policy and regulation also reflect revisions in Title III English learner programs,
including renumbering of accountability requirements and changes in the required parental
notification, pursuant to the Every Student Succeeds Act. Title of policy and regulation updated
to reflect current terminology. Exhibit deleted as districts no longer need a sample form for the
parental exception waiver.

See BP 6174

See AR 6174

Weekend/Saturday Classes

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2659, 2016) which authorizes makeup
classes for any type of absence, including excused absences, to be offered during the weekend.
Policy also adds material regarding the circumstances under which teachers cannot be assigned

to work on a weekend.
See BP 6176

Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Plan

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW FEDERAL GUIDANCE (U.S.
Department of Agriculture Memorandum SP 46-2016 and SP 23-2017) which mandates any
district participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program to adopt a written
policy on meal charges, including the collection of delinquent meal charge debt, no later than
July 1, 2017, and to annually communicate that policy to parents/guardians. Policy and
regulation also reflect NEW STATE GUIDANCE (California Department of Education
Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017) which requires district policy to ensure that students with
unrecovered or delinquent meal charge debt are not overtly identified, requires that debt
collection efforts are consistent with specified cost principles, and establishes conditions for
reclassifying unpaid debt as bad debt. Policy also revised to reflect the Buy American provision
of federal regulations which requires districts, to the maximum extent practicable, to purchase
domestically grown and processed foods.

See BP 3551

See AR 3551

15



16

District Records

(AR revised) Regulation updated to revise material related to the retention of electronic records,
including records pertaining to district business that are created, saved, sent, or received on an
employee's or board member’s personal device, to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (City of San
Jose v. Superior Court) which held that such records may be accessible to the public in
accordance with the California Public Records Act.

See AR 3580

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1639, 2016) which
requires coaches, beginning July 1, 2017, to complete a training course related to the nature and
warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest and to retake such a course every two years thereafter.
Policy also allows a coach to submit either the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate or the
Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background check. Material
regarding certification of coaches’ qualifications to the board and the State Board of Education
moved from AR to BP.

See BP 4127/4227/4327

See AR 4127/4227/4327

Contracts

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1436, 2016) which requires the board,
prior to taking final action on the salary or benefits of employees whose position within the
district is established through an employment contract, to orally report a summary of the
recommended action during open session of a board meeting. Updated policy also clarifies the
limited circumstances under which salary and benefits may be discussed in closed session and
the prohibition against discussing salary or other compensation during a special meeting of the
board.

See BP 4312.1

Nondiscrimination/Harassment

(AR revised) Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1375, 2016) which requires districts
and schools to post specified Title IX information on their web sites by July 1, 2017. Regulation
also explains the limited impact in California of the February 22, 2017 federal action to rescind
earlier guidance regarding transgender students’ use of sex-segregated facilities in accordance
with their gender identity.

See AR 5145.3



Science Instruction

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect the NEW CURRICULUM FRAMEWORK for science
instruction adopted by the State Board of Education in November 2016 and the Next Generation
Science Standards. Policy also adds new material related to the required course of study, science
courses required for high school graduation, staff development, program evaluation, and safety

in science laboratories.
See BP 6142.93

Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect law which provides that a homeless student must be
immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for participation in extracurricular
activities. Legal cites added for the prohibition against student fees and the requirement to

annually review the policy.
See BP 6145

Athletic Competition

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1639, 2016) which
requires (1) distribution to student athletes and parents/guardians of information on the nature
and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, (2) training of coaches and athletic directors on the
nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, and (3) removal of a student from an athletic
activity if he/she passes out or faints, until clearance is obtained from a health care provider.
Policy also updated to reflect the prohibition against the use of a racially derogatory or
discriminatory athletic team name, mascot, or nickname. Policy reflects law which provides that
a homeless student must be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for
participation in interscholastic athletic activities. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW
(SB 1375, 2016) which requires districts and schools to post specified Title IX information on

their web sites by July 1, 2017.
See BP 6145.2
See AR 6145.2

Work-Based Learning

17



18

(BP/AR revised) Policy updated to add material formerly in AR regarding board approval of any
district plan for work-based learning and board approval to pay students' wages out of district
funds. Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2063, 2016) which authorizes the district
to grant credit for satisfactory completion of a work experience education program to students
ages 14-15 when the principal certifies that such credit is necessary for the student's participation
in a career technical education (CTE) program. Regulation also reflects provision of AB 2063
which allows students to participate in job shadowing activities for up to 40 hours per semester,
intersession, or summer school session if the principal certifies that it is necessary for
participation in a CTE program.

See BP 6178.1

See AR 6178.1

General Obligation Bonds

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1029, 2016) which requires the board to
adopt a debt management policy prior to issuing any debt, including a general obligation bond,
and to certify to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission that any proposed
issuance of debt is consistent with the district's policy. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB
2116, 2016) which requires the board to obtain reasonable and informed projections of assessed
valuations that take into consideration projections of assessed property valuations made by the
county assessor, and NEW LAW (AB 2738, 2016) which prohibits districts from withdrawing
proceeds from bond sales at any time for the purpose of making investments outside the county
treasury. Policy also adds caution that some uses of bond proceeds that are specified in the
Education Code for bond elections with a 66.67 percent threshold may be inconsistent with the
California Constitution and encourages consultation with legal counsel.

See BP 7214

Board Member Electronic Communications

(BB revised) Bylaw updated to reflect NEW COURT DECISION (City of San Jose v. Superior
Court) which held that using a personal account or device to send or receive communications
regarding public business does not categorically exclude those records from disclosure in
response to a request under the California Public Records Act and that public agencies are
obliged to disclose applicable records that they can locate with reasonable effort.

See BB 9012



N :3X0S UT 2WTL pue ®3eQ ITPNY opnidul

X iNIL JIOpUSA SpPnTouI
N :2seg 308[qo spniour

N !SS2Ippy¥y epnfiourl

X ‘ysed bBurtaToasy spnyrour

TT00 :yd3eq of
TT00 :yd3jeq woxd

TIY ¥ isnjels yojeg

0

gD¥d €T:0T LI/%0/0T 2T1°00°1T

00SAd¥Y

LSITAYd F™T7&Yd SINNOJOY

£€50650

LT0Z 'ST WHHOLOO !TT HOIVE
"LSIQ TOOHDS QHIAINN NOILTIWYH 210

19



o fiq prRISERY

M...w\}\ a/ §§&FN€®-MN&

*SMOTJIISA0 NS 03 anp SPTOA

66'%%9 10T 00°0 sxxx 66°'F¥9°'T0T {SILDIULSIA TTY ¥od
66°%59'T0T 00°0 »¥x%x 66°%H9'T10T INAWAYd IDI¥LSIA
66" ¥H9'TOT 00°0 **x 66°HH9 10T INIWAYd HOLVH
66 99’101 #% 66°P¥9'T0T INFWAYA pung
08'8%¢E + 08°8¥%E CNNOWY INFWAYA
08 8%€E 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-€LS6-0000-0000-0-0000-T0 T

6T°962 10T ¥ 61°962'T0T INOOWY INIWAYA
99°6GL‘8 000 d NN 00000-000-000-£456-0000-0000-0-0000-T0 €
0Z'82L'%9 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-2L56-0000-0000-0-0000-T0 ¢
€€'218'LE 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-~TLS6-0000-0000-0-0000-T0 T

junouy 39N juy bty SdWerL aa ¥pg 3Ts [qO ouna Teop & 599 pd

unu Junoddy

<< uadp >>

unu ygvy

aNnd TYSENED
LT0Z 'LZ YAAWALAES

T gPYd €T:0T LT/%0/0T Z2T'00°7T 00SAav

adA3 31sodag wnu gr Xel

butjunoo jou ‘'z ipajutad eq 03 SOSUD JO JoqUNN

TYIOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYILOL

000EATA Z0CEO0SLD IddS LT0Z/TZ/80 80%000-04d

TYLOL

T0 : pung
‘1T HOLVE TTOO0 ‘HOIVE

LSITIHd FTEYAYd SINAODDOY

A¥YANY.LS 00/%85000

LT0Z ¥HEOLDO LT0Z/61/60 ¥¥¥000-0d
LTOT ¥ALOLDO LTO0Z/6T/60 ¥%%000-04
LTOZ ¥FLHOLDO LT0Z/6T/60 ¥H¥H000-0d

M/H IS0¥I QANTYA S, VINJOIITYD 00/800000

uotidraosaq 83eq 2ouaxagay bay
sweu 3TWSY IPPY/IOPUSA

LTO0Z ’SZ ¥HAEOLOO !TT HOIVH
€S06S0 "LSIA TOOHDS AATAINA NOLTIIWYH ZTO

20



N #3JI08 UT SWT] pue =23eg ITPNY IPNTOUL
X NIL xopusp spnTour
N :0seg 309[fqo spntour
N i859appvy 9pnioul
X ysed ButATOADYy Ipnioul
ZT00 :y23eq O
2100 :ydjeq woxg

¥ ¥ snjels yojeg

LT0Z ST YAHOIDO :ZT HOIVE

0 d9¥d 21391 LT/92/60 21°00°'T 00SAdvY LSTTEYd ATEAYAYA SINNODOY 6098SC  "ILSIA TOOHDS QAIJIING NOITIWYH 210

21



71" T6

* ¥1°16

INOOWY LNIWAVA

00000-000-000-00€E%-00T8-0000-0-05T8-T0 T
00000-000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0~05ST8-T0 T

LNOOWY LNAWAYA

00000-~000-000~002%-000T-0TTT-0-T000-TO0 T

LNOOWY INAWAYS

00000-000-008-00€%-000T~-0TTT-0-0000-T0 1

INODWY  LNIHAYE

00000-000-000~0025-0STL-0000-0-0000-10

INOOWY INIWAVI

00000-000-000-0025-05TL-0000-0-0000-T0

INNOWY LNAWAYG

00000-000-000-0665-00L2-0000~0-0000-T0 T

LNOOWY INIWAVA

00000-000-000-0€£95-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-20 T

aq ¥pg 31s  [qo oung Teon x

83y pa

TYLOL

"TY.LOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

I¥L0L

a1d!

TYIOL

TYILOL

adA3 3tsodeg wnu QT xXer

aNod TvgENED 10 ¢
LT0T ST WHHOIDO ‘ZT HOIVA ZT00 ‘HOLVE

80° 2L 0070 d NN
20°'6T 0070 d NN
TL0T ¥ TL°0T
TL'0T TL°0T d NN
TIL°96 ¥ TL 96
TL 96 00°001 d NN
00°08 ¥+ 00°08
0008 NN
00°0 %+ 00°0
0070 00°99L D NN
91'92 + 9T°92
21'9¢ 00°0 d NN
00'é8Z y 00'682
00'682Z 00°68¢ d4 AN
Junowy I8N Juy bt SdWEL

unu JUNOSOY wunu yay

<< uadg »>>

T gDVd ZT:9T L1/92/60 Z1°00°1T 00SAdY

pung

LSITIYG HTIVAVd SINNODOY

9T6TPT0S5S6
9S€906€£556

aad aId FIVIvA

ONI SNOILNTOS

YALYYD d-T5696%

S'TTNAW O¥d 'I¥D HAD

H30 ¥dd Tv¥d ISO0TD

€8ZL120T0000

LT02/L0/60 60%000-
L102/21/60 60%000-

YHONIVED

LT0Z/2T/60 802810~

TOOHDS LIATIO0d

LT0Z/ET/60 LITISTO-

H1dd¥ FAILVEYD

LT0Z/L0/60 0%0000-

ADVUL SHTAVHD

L102/L0/60 £00000-

S¥SYD

L102/21/60 €0%000-

L3LY

od
od

00/291000

Od 0T108T

00/102000

Od 61008T

00/S6%000

Ad

00/STS000

jp1o]

00/L0%000

Cd

00/SL0TO0

€568Z¢ LT0Z/%T/80 SO0E810-0d L0ZOST

SWELSAS ALI¥NDHES WNTINDOW

s3eq 20usIsiay bey
Sweu JTwoy JIpPPY/XOPUSA

uvotaidraosag

L10Z SZ ¥ILOLDO

00/L8T100

21 HOLve

60985 'ISIQ TOOHDS QAIAINN NOITIWYH Z10

22



00°egs
00°2S

00°89¢€
00°¢s
00°91¢

£T°L¥E
ET"LPT

6S°BST
v 61C
ST°6¢

92 ¥LY
¢9°281
6L°%0C
58798

EE€TLIT
EETLTT

00°szZZ
00°szz

Junowy

* ET°L%C INOOWY LNAWAYA TYLOL
ET L¥T d NN 00000-000-000-0025-00LZ-0000-0-0000-T0 T

* 65°8S¢C LNOOWY INAWAYS TYLOL
00°0 d AN 00000-000-000-0€95-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
00°0 d AN 00000-000-000-0€95-00I8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T

SOETILIEDE

* 9C°PLY LNOOWY LNAWAVd TYLOL
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€E%-00T8-0000-0-05ST8-T0 T
0070 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-00T8~-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T

* EETLIT LNAOWY INHWAYd TYLOL
€L LIT 4 NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTI~0~0TOE-T0 T

* 00°522 LNAOWY LNHEWAYd TYIOL
00°sze d NN ooooo|mwm100mnoom¢|000ﬁ|0HHH|o-ﬁowo|ﬁo T

SN Juy brg SAWEL da ¥pd 3T [qo oung feop x sou pg

4

+ 00°2S
NN 00000-000-000-0025-000T-0TTT-0-8EEL-T0

*+ 00°89¢€
00000-000-000-00Z2S-000T-0TTT-0-8EEL-TO
00000-000-000-0025-000T-0TTT-0-BEEL-TQ

EE

unu Junoooy

<< uadp »>>
gD¥d 21:91 L1/92/60 2T°'00°T 00SA4Y

unu gy

INOOWY LNIWAYd TYLOL

LNNOWY INAWAYd TYIOL

adA3 3tsodsa wnu qI xeg

aNNd 'TYYENED TO pung
LT0Z ST WHLOIDO g1 HDOIVH ¢100 :HDOIVH
ISITHId FTIGY ™ SINNODOY

aNd DNIATOAHY QAIIINN NOITIWVH

STVAN (I 3 SYI¥AA LT0Z/L0/60 ZH0000-Ad

SEXEI VYIUVK 00/05%T00

STYEW dd 3d SYI¥HEA LT0Z/L0/60 E¥0000-Ad
P-STVEN dVHD SANOL SNAWWD LT0Z/L0/60 T0000-Ad

NVONYT ATTEA 00/L12000

HOVATIN 3 STYAW ¥SDOY Id9S L102/92/60 SBZ8TO-Od LBTOST

ANMOL ENITOD 00/9€ETT00

OTLLYT LTI02/L0/60 0TI¥000-0d
ST6ELYT LTOT/6T/60 0T%000-0d

HOIANES ¥ATIANW ¥ HEIL S, NHOL 00/€82100

789569209 L102/%T/60 ZTI$000~0d
866269209 LT0Z/E€T/60 ZI¥000-0d
666269209 LTOZ/ET/60 Z2I%000-0d

QIVATIIH 00/2L0000

SOHD 0DISOD-£ST-B8T LT02/12/60 €STBTO-0O4 SS008T

00/%T1T000

SYEMOTA HDIJ40 ATHINOW L10Z/92/60 £0EBT0-0d SOZOBT

uotaydranssg a3eqg adusxagzsy bey
Sweu JTWSY  IPpY/Iopusp

LT0C ST YHEOIDO :2T HOIvE
6098SL  "ISIQ TOOHDS QATJINA NOLTIIWVH 2TO

23



cL-tee
[ARANA

g6 06T
c6 062

LETSCT
eL" LS
CLET
€6°ES

L8 0%C
L8 0ve

0z "T0V
0039
Q¢ 9Ee

LT + TL'TET'LT INNOWY INIWAYd TYLOL
‘LT 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
* 267062 INNOWY INZWAYd TYIOL
26°062 d AN 00000-000-000-0€E95-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
E168EZ85%S
* ST'€S9 INOOWY INIWAYd TVLOL
L0°T8 d NN 00000-000-008-00€E%-000T-0TTI-0-0000-T0 T
16°602 d NN 00000-000-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
8L'S d NN 00000-000-00T-00€E%#-000T-0TTT-0-0000-L0 T
8L°8S 4 NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0TOE-T0 T
€V ZLE 4 NN 00000-000-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
80" €2 d NN 00000-000-00T-00€E%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
vE'Z d NN 00000-000-00T-00E%-000T-0TTI-0-0000~T0 T
x LE'GTT INNOWY INAWAYd TVIOL
TLTLS d AN 00000-€T0-000-0£95-000T~-0TIT-0-0000-T0 €
2L ET d AN 00000-€T0-000-0€95-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 ¢
L5°81 4 AN 00000-€T0-000-0€95-000T-0TTT~0-0000-T0 T
€STOBW9TE
+ LB O%C INNOWY INZWAYV TVIOL
L8°0%2 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-008€-0-28€9-T0 T
%+ 02°10% INNOWY INEWAVA TYIOL
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0€£95-009€-0000-0-0000-T0 T
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0€95-009€-0000-0-0000-T0 &
38N Juy by SAN6L aa ¥ped 3Ts [go oung 1eop X ©9¥ pd

Jjunowy

£

YYAMSIIO4S 3 SNDIS S)¥¥IS0

9-62LY%LLTC66 SH IdES LT0Z/ST/60 91%000-0d

HR3Dd 00/%80000

228618 LI0T/TC/60 6928BTI0-0d TLTOST

00/2LE000

wnu JUNOD0Y

H9¥d ZT:9T L1/92/60 2T1°0

unu ygvy

aNNd TYHEANID
<< uadp >»>

0171 00SAdY

T0

adA3 3tsodeg

LT0Z ST YIEOLDOO ‘2T HOIWA ZT0O
LSITEAd HTEYAVd SINOODOY

unu gI XelL

pmga
THOLVE

TO00¥LETITTI96 LT02/80/60 %LZ8BTO-0d 9LTOST
T00%%C¥SET96 LT0Z/80/60 TLEZBTO-0Od ¥LIOST
TO09LLPSEZT96 LTO0Z/80/60 2LEZBIO-Od %LTOST
T00550L68096 L102/.0/60 9928T0-Od B9TO8T
TO09T9E68096 LT0Z/L0/60 $92810-0d 99TOST
T00ZSLEEB096 LTOZ/LO/60 $928T0-0Od 99TO8T
TO0TSLEEB096 LTO0Z/L0/60 $9ZBT0-Od 99T08T

ONI 1Oddad dDIdd0

00/60£000

TYHL96 LT02/2T/60 S6TBTO-0d L6008T
PSE86T LTOZ/HT/60 S6TBTO-Od L600ST
YPPLO6 "LTOC/ET/60 S6TBTO-0d L600BT

SANIMAOOM HLION

00/6TL000

€ILOBTITO LTOZ/61/60 STZ8T0-0d LITOST

ATTddns ONIOTaEM =0

00/%25000

€E€SEBZ-€ LTOT/ST/60 $EF000-0d
062E8Z-E LT02/ET/60 $EH000-0Od

uotadraosag 23eg@ sousxsjsy beoy
SWeu JTWSY  IPPY/ICPUSA
LT0Z ST ¥IHOLDO :gT HDLvd
6098SL "LSIC TOOHOS QIIJINA NOLTIIWVH 210

24



ClPYYY Ty 7S

€5°025'82 xx £5°025'82 INTNAYT pund IVIOL
2T LEL'T = CL'LEL'T INNONY INAWAYE TVIOL
EETEFT EE"EFC d NN 00000-200-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T A1ddNS DILEIHLVY L102/22/80 €628T0-0d S6T08T
6L €672 6L E6D'T d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-00€9-T0 T SH Y04 SYOLVINOTIVO €8 IL LT0Z/91/60 SSZB8T0-0d LSTOST
TUYWTYM 00/%59000
0% LLT'T ¥ 0% LLT'T LNNOWY INTWAYd TVIOL
0% LLT'T 00°SLT’T 4 NN 00000-000-00T-00E%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T 698B0LTZ LT0Z/90/60 0LZ8T0-0d ZLTOBT
NOTHIYOHA DIWAAYOVY S N 00/TL%000
00°09¢ *+ 007092 INNOWY INAWAYd TYIOL
00°092 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0685-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T NI-8Z%ZITO LT0Z DAY LTOZ/TE/80 92%000-0d
ONI AITYD 40 SEDIAYES TOOHDS 00/LETO00
8E"SGLT x BE'SLT INNOWY INAWAYA TYIOL
8E€°SLT BE'GLT d NN 00000-920-000-00E%-02%2-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T 9€0€L9ST LT0Z/TZ/60 192810-0d €9T0BT
— ” = H m mw ONI DIISYIOHDS 00/02€100
¥LUVVL'E f * FLFRL'Z INNOWY INFWAVA TYIOL
LE TLE'T LE"ZLE'T NN 00000-000-008-00€E%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T $9T1%86 LT0Z/ET/60 08EBTI0-0d 2B8TOST
Z¥v-£e8 00°0 m NN 00000-000-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 € 9%01¥%86 LI0Z/ET/60 OTT8T0-Od ZTIOOBT
S6°8%S 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT~0-0000-T0 2 9%01%86 LT0Z/E€T/60 OTTST0-0d ZT0DOBT
NOILVYOd¥0D TTIND 00/%£1000
£S°SHT * £S5°G%T LNNOWY INAWAYA TYIOL
€5°SHT 00°0 d NN 00000-000-008-0295-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T LSSLPSTOTE IDO-XINL L1I0Z/TT/60 £¥$000-0d
LBCYPETOC  DNI TONIJ 'TYEOTO SHMOE XANLI4 00/81%000
Jjunowy 3sN Juy bt SdW6L ad ¥pg 3ts  [go oung Teon x  soy pd UoT31dIIOSDT a3eq [ouaasisy boy
unu 3umoooy unu yay 2dA3 3tsodsg unu al xel Sweu JITWSY IPPY/IOPUIA
aNNd TYIENED T0 ¢ puni
] << uadg >> LT0T ST ¥AEOIDO ‘g1 HOIVE 2T00 :HOIVE LT0C ST ¥ELOLDO :2T1 HOIVE
i4 DVd 2T:9T L1/92/60 TT1°00°71 0QOSAAY LSITIYd E19¥™ "~ SINNODDY

609850

‘LSId TOOHDS QATJAINAN NOLTIWNVH Z10

25



19°686'9

+x 19'686'9 LNEWAVYA PuUng IVLOL
IT°09T ¥ TT°0ST LNNOWY INAWAYd TVLOL
IT°08T 00°002 4 NN 00000-TZ0-000-0€95-000T-0TTH-0-T6€9-TT T
00°008°T + 00°008'T INOOWY INIWAYE THLOL
00°008'T 00°008‘T 4 AN 00000-%Z0-000-0685-0058-0000-0-T6E9-1T T
0BLTEETOSG
00'9 * 00°9 LNOCWY INIWAYd fIVIOL
009 NN 00000-TZ0-000-00E%-000T-0TTH#~0-T6£9-1T
0S5 'E€0’S + 0G'E€E0’S LNAONY INHWAYd TYLIOL
0S'€E0'S BF EE0’'S d NN 00000-%20-000-0029-0058-0TTH~0-T6E9-1T
unoury 13N Juy b1 SdHW6L aq ¥pd 31s  (qo oung Teop x s3y pd
wnu  JUNoo0Y wunu vy 8dA3 3Tsoded unu QI Xer
NOILYDNAA I1NaY 1T ¢ pung
<< uadp >> LTOZ ST ¥AL0ID0 ‘ZT1 HOIVE 2100 :HDIVE
S gD¥d ZT:9T LT/92/60 21°00°T 00SAd¥Y ISITHId HTIYAVd SINNOJDOY

B0LSTT LT02/%T1/60 BLZBIO-Od 0BIOBT
DNITANVH TYINAIYN VIOXOL 00/9€0200
990TOOH#ANI £T0Z2/ST/60 80£8T0-Od 0TZOST

VHOOY AQNWY 00/258000
09LL986 LT0Z/L0/60 6£0000-Ad
NOILVMOd40D TIING 00/%€ET000
066€ LT0E/2T/60 ¥I0000-TID
ONI AY¥HS NOIILDOMISNOD IOVAMWI 00/61%100

uotidraoesg 23eq 3DU=2I33I9Y bey
AU JTWSY IPPY/IODUap

LTOZ ST ¥YIAOLOO :ZT HOILVE
6098SC  "LSId TOOHDS QATAINA NOLTIWWYH 210

26



S0°9%S

S0 %9
S0 %9

00°2%2
00°Z¥z

00°0%e
00°0%2

Junoury

9

*¥ S0°9%S LNIWAYd Pung TVILOL
* 50°%9 LNAOWY LNIWAVE TYLOL
S0°%9 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-50T9-2T T AT7ddNS HLIS TOOHDSHId LT10Z/2Z/80 222BT0-Od $ZTOST
LIVHTEM 00/%59000
# 00°0 LNOOWY LNIWAYd TYIOL
02°60¢2 O NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-50T9-2T SNVH ¥8d 'T¥d FSOTO LTI0Z/L0/60 2T0000-TD
ONI SINHY X0D 00/190000
# 00°¢2%e LNOOWY INIWAVE TVLOL
00°2¥ve 4 NN 00000-000-000-0685-000T~0TTT-0-50T9-2T T LSS90%!€9L00%STTHOVA LT0Z/90/60 90EST0-0Od 802081
SEDIAVES 'TYIDOS J0 INAWIIYAEA 00/60T000
* 00°0%2 INOAOWY INAWAYE TYLOL
00°'o0%e d NN 00000-000-000-0025-000T-0TTT-0-S0T9-2T T

19N Juy brg SAW6L aa ¥pd
unu  JUNoDoY

<< uadp >>

OV ZT:9T LT/92/60 2T1°00'T 00Sxav

3ts [qo oumg feop x
unu gy

IL’DI ‘AW AI¥ ISY9I1d4/¥4D LT0Z/92/80 9%ZBT0-0d BHT08T

53y pa uotidraossag ajeq @dusas3sy bay
odA3 31sodsg wnu gr weg Suweu JTwaY IPPY/IOpusp

LNIWGOTIAEd ATIHD cT ¢ pung

LT0Z ST ¥AEOLOO ‘T HDIVE ZT100 :HDLVE
LSITHYd FTEYF=2 SINNODDY 609850 "1LSIG TOOHDS QITAINN NOITIWWH 210

LT0Z ST ¥EEOLDO 2T HOIvA

27



A3 pOTLIORRRY

9%°589'0% 00'0 sxex 9%°G89'0%
9%'589'0% 00°0 rxxx 99°G89'0%
2%°589'0% 00°0 $¥x 99°589'0%
Lz 629'% xx LE°629'%
2eLVL'T ® TTTLRL'T
90°9¢€L 00°0 d NN
TO %99 00°0 d NN
8692 00°0 d NN
L1 zes 00°0 d NN
6189 + 6T°89
06°0€ 000 d NN
62°LE 00°0 d NN
98 €182 + 98°¢IB'2
SZ2'6ET 00°'0 d NN
85 6% 00°0 d NN
0B'SZ 00°0 d NN
LE' €56 00°0 d NN
20'G8¢g’t 00°'0 d NN
89 19T 000 d NN
9166 00°0 d NN
juriowy 38N Jwy by SAW6L aa ¥pd 318

unu JuUnesoy unu ygv

<< uadp >»>

L d0¥d ZT:9T L1/92/60 2T°'00°T 00SAAY

00000-6%0-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T
00000-6%0-000-00E%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET
00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-£T
00000-000-000-00L¥%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-£T
00000-000-000-~00L%-00LE-0000~0-0TEG-ET
00000-000-000-00£%-00LE-0000~0-0TES-ET
00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0~0TES-ET

‘peddrys eq TTIM ‘g
"SMOTII®A0 qnis O3 B3NP Sproa Burjumnoo jou ‘s

*SILDI¥LSIA TIV ¥OA "IVIOL

LNEWAYd LOI¥LSIA TYIOL

INAWAYE HOLVH 'TY.LOL

LNANAYJ pung VLOL

ILNOQOWY INAWAYA TYIOL

00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T
00000-000-000-00L%-00LE~0000-0~0TES-ET T
00000-000-000-00E¥-00LE-0000~0-0TES-CT &
00000-6%0-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES~ET €

LNOOWY LNAWAYd TYIOL

00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0-0TES~ET T
00000-000-000-00€E%~00LE~0000-0~0TES-€T T

LNOOWY INSWAYd TYIOL

A0 NN

fgo oung teOD X sSOY pa

2dA3 3tsodeq wnu QI xer

VINALAIYD €T ¢ pung

LT0C ST ¥HAOLOO ‘gT HOIVE 2100 :HOLVE

LSITHNd FTHIYAYd SINNODDY

CLLEGDY
[AX 23 4]
TLLEGDY
998E6F9

8E:ZT:9T LT0Z/92/60 :pa3uTad

LT0Z2/81/60
LT0Z/8T/60
LT0Z/8T/60
LT02/8T/60

FSMO9UD XeTIOP 0X9Z JO Ioqump
pajutad aq 03 S}o9YD JO IaqUMN

L0%000-0d
LO¥000-0d
L0%000-04d
L0%000-0d

HST¥4 DIAIDVAoud 00/€9L000

6€688L50S L102/12/60 S0%000-0d
0P68BLS0S LT0Z/12/60 S0%000-04

NHENIT 3 WYOAINN NOISSIW 00/265000

66PETT
66FEDT
BLETPT
LETETT
TETETT
Z6TEPT
L6VERT

uotadraonseq

6098SC *18Id

L102/81/60 SET%000-04
LT0Z/8T/60 SZTH000-0d
LT02/0€/80 S2%000-0d
L102/BT1/60 S2¥000-0d
L10Z/8T/60 $2¥000-04
LTOZ/BT/60 S2TH000-0Od
LT0Z/8T/60 SZ¥000-0d
0D NOSTHINVA 00/%9L000
93ed 2dusxszay bay

SUEU JTWSY IPPY/IOPUSH

LT0T ST ¥WALOLDO :ZT HOIvVE
FICOHDS QIIAINN NOLTIIWWYH 210

28



N :3x0§ Ul Swr] pue 831G 3TPNY SPNIoul

X INII Iopusp spnroul

N :988@ 309[qo spnioul

N :S88Ippy 2pnToul

K :yse) Butratoasy spnioul
ET00 :yod3eq oI
€100 :yd3leq woxjg

1I¥ ¥ :snje3js yodjed

0

HDVd 8%:ST LTI/S0/0T 21°00°1

00SAgvY

LSTTIEd TTAYAYd SINNODDY ¥5gesr

LTOCT ST JYAFOLDO: €T HOIVE
"LSIQ TOOHDS JHIJINN NOLTIWVH Z10

29



S8°E6C
S8 t6T

99° 25
S9°¢s

00°0%%'2
00°020°T
00°0%%'T

0L"8CT
oL°8TT

£€9°¢%ez't
£9°2%2'T

gorooo’er
00'000'zT

¥ LOT
¢y LOT

T aD¥d

9B €62

00°020°T
00°0%%'T

0L"82cT

000

00°000'2T

B¥:ST LT/S0/0T 21°00°1T

¥ SB'E6Z
d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-000T-008E€-0-2859-10 T

* 59°'25
NN 00000-000-000-0025-00£L-0000-0-0000-T0

¥ 00°09% 2
00000-000-000-0685-000T-0TTT-0~-0000-T0 T
00000-000-000-06BS-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T

EE

+ 0L°8B2T
4 NN 00000-000-000-00E%-0018-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T

+ £9°2%2'T
d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T

* 00°000°CT
d AN 00000-6%0-000-0685-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T

* CP LOT
NN 00000-000-000-0685-000T~0TTT-0-0000-T0

SAW6L aa ¥pg 31§ [qo oung Teop & S8y pd
unu JUNOIoY unu  ygy

NN TVIANID 10
LTO0Z ST ¥WAGOLDO: €T HOIVE €100 HOIWE
LSITAYd HTIVAYd SINAOJOY

<< uadg >>
00SX8v

2dA3 3tsodsg wnu gr xel

LNAOWY LNAWAYE TYLOL

T68E%20 L10Z/L2/60 STZBTIO-0Od LZTOBT

0D A'1ddns ¥ THALS JFONITIAD 00/02€000

CNOOWY LNAWAVE 'TY.LOL

HOVATIN IddS L102/62/60 S$0000-Ad

CIL6STTSS NOZT ENVIQ 00/€95000

LNNOWY INAWAYd TYLIOL

0000-52000-286¢ LTI0Z/0E/L0 6£T8T0-0d T008T
0000-%2000-2862 LTIDZ/0E/L0 6£TBTO-Od TH00BT
CO6LPOT¥8

DNIISYOAVONT MHAHYD ¥THQ 00/209000

INNOWY INAWAYd TVLOL

2esv3¥ L10Z/€T1/60 %1£8T10-0d 9TZ0BT

ONI YITANI¥AS ODIHD 00/T9TT00

INOOWY LNIWAVE TYLOL

LLLLLTIYIEL LTIOT/LZ/60 ZTEZ%000-0d

0D HEDIA¥ES WHIVM VINJOAITYD 00/€50000

INQOWY INAWAYE TYIOL

DEA-ID0 ‘g ¥ID-%6TT LTI0Z/T0/0T ¥8Z8I0-0Od 981T08T

9%8%62089 40 dN1D0 STIID ¥ SA0d 00/962100

INOOWY INIWAYL TYIOL

INAd/INI XYL S0 3 STTYS L10Z/62/60 8%0000-Ad

uotijdraossg a3eq Sousasjyoy boy
Suwreu JTWaY IPPY/Iopusp

) pung
LTOZ ST Y¥YAEOILDO:E€T HOIVL

PSZ6SL  "1SIA TOOHDS AAIJINO NOITIWVH ZT0

30



LNNOWY LNHWAYG IYIOL

daIM ISIQ I4ES LOS6M LT0Z/2Z/60 0%%000-0d

CI9ES6THT

LNAOWY INAWAYd TYIOL
uvo

LNQOWY LNAWAVd TYIOL

INNOWY LNHAWAYL TYLOL

TICISPLSS

LNOOWY LNAWAVA TVIOL

LNOOWY LNHWAYd TYIOL

0Ze6022Zv6

INOOWY INAWAYG TYLOL

2dA3 3tsodsg wnu gr xeg

: pung

00°0%S * 00°0%S
00°0%5 00°0 AN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000~0-0000-T0 T
S€°21 x §E°CT
se et NN 00000-000-000-0025~-000T-0TTT-0-BEEL-TO
8% 2S * BP'ES
8% 2s NN 00000-€T0-000-0025-000T-0TTI-0-0000-T0
00°008°T + 00°008°T
00°008°T 00°008°'T AN 00000-000-000-0685-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
96201 * 96°20T
96°20T 9620t NN 00000-000-008-00€%-000T~0TTT-0-0000-T0 €
L8°69T'2 x LB 69T'C
8% %6€ 00°0 NN 00000-000-000-26€%-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 Z
6E°SLL'T 00°0 NN 00000-000-000-26€%-009€-0000-0-0000-T0 T
9L TIS'T ¥ 9L TIS'T
9L°T1IS'T 00°0 NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0-0ST8~T0 T
junowy 3N Juy brg SAW6L aq ¥peE 1t [g0 oung Teop x  say p4
unu Junosoy unu ygy
aNnd TEEANTD 10
<< uadp >> LT0Z ST ¥AEOLDO: €T HOIVE £I00 :HOIVE

4 dD¥d B¥:ST 41/S0/0T 2T1°00°T QOSAdY

ISITEYE FTEVWAYd SINNOJDV

TOMINOD QHAM 3 ISEd S, AWAYT 00/88€T00
TTOOHDS ¥04 THNA LT0Z/62/60 LF0000-Ad
NVONVT XT1aM 00/LT2000
IOVATIN IdAS LT02/62/60 H%0000-Ad
TTFHDLIN ¥SSIWWM 00/S0%T00
LT0T 1d4dS-95 LT0Z/0£/60 0£Z8T0-0d ZE€TO8T
AVID W UNNVHOL 00/652T00
9T6LZ LTO0Z/LZ/60 SEIBTO-Od LEQOST
SHEIHJOYL WOLSND S\ AWWID

00/€2L000

LSOLOL LTOZ/E€T/60 00%000-0d
98680L LT0OZ/8T/60 00%000-0d

ONI SNOS ¥ INNH 00/T08000

€ZPTITLEOY LTOZ/LZ/60 TI®000-0d
MIVATIIH 00/2L0000

uotidraosag 93eQ 20uaxaIdY boy

Sweu JTWSY IPpV/Iopusp

LTOT S€ ¥YIEOIDO: €T HOIVE
¥ST6SC  “ISIQ 'TOOHDS QHATAINN NOITIWYH cT10

31



vE'89 * ¥€°89 INNOWY INAWAYd TYIOL
96°T¢ 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0~0ST8-T0 T
8L°92 0070 d NN 00000-000-000~00€E%-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
L9°S8L ¥ L9°S8L LNNOWY INAWAYS TY.LOL
6E°00% $5°29 4 NN 00000-000-000-00€%~000T-0TTT-0-T000-T0 T
€9 €T ES°ET d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-T00N0-T0 T
06°8 06°8 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-T000-T0 T
99°'T1T 9911 d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-000T~0TTT-0-T000-T0O T
29°56 Z9°S6 d NN 00000-€TS-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-T080-T0 T
S0°9% S0°9% d NN 00000-£TS5-000-00€E%-000T-0TTT-0-T080-T0 T
257602 25 602 d NN 00000-000-000-00€E%-000T-0TTT-0-E0EH-T0 T
00" 06 *+ 00°06 CSNNOWY INHWAYd TVIOL
00° 09 T9°8¢ 4 NN 00000-900-000-00€5-0042-0000-0-0000-T0 4
00°0% 26°LS 4 NN 00000-900-000-0025-000T-0TTIT-0-0000-T0 T
00'002 x 00°00¢2 LNNOWY ILNHWAVd TYIOL
00°00¢2 00°002 d NN 00000-000-000-0025-000T~0TTT-0-92T%-T0
ey 9t * CP°9¢ LNOOWY INHWAVS TYIOL
[A 2813 [428°12 d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-000T-008E~0~-28€9-T0 T
00°6T x 00°6T INNOWY INIWAYL 'TYIOL
Notet 00°6T d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-008€-0-2859-T0 T
qunowy 39N  juy bt SdAN6T aa ¥pd 3tS (g0 oung TR0 & S=¥ pd
wnu Junosoy unu ygy 8dAy 3tsodsq wnu gl xeg
NNA TYIINTD T0 * pung

<< uado >> LT02 ST YAHOLOO: €T HOLVL £100 :HOIVD

£ gOVd 8%:ST LT/S0/0T 2T°00°'T 00SXdY LSITIYd FTEVAYd SINNODDY

0EBBEE LT0Z/LZ/60 LI®000-
CE6LEE LTOZ/L2/60 LTIH00O-

SAVMTIVH ANWTI30

T00%6986€596 LT02/52/60 S6ZBTO-
T00EPTTOPS96 LTI0C/ST/60 S6Z8TO-
T00ZPTT0%596 LT0C/€2/60 S6ZBTO-
TO0PPTT0%596 LT0Z/SZ/60 S628TO-
TOOETISP6E596 LT0E/S52/60 T6Z8TO0-
T0095L%62596 LT0Z/SC/60 T6ZBTO-
TO06SPELTIES6 LTOZ/ST/60 €£828TO-

ONI LOddd EDIJA0

od
od

00/L20000

Od L6TO8T
Od LE6TOSBT
Od L6TOBT
Od L6108T
0d €61081
Od €6T08T
Od S8108T

00/60€£000

SENA YA¥SD NOLTIWVH LT0Z/%0/0T 9TE8T0-Od 8TZ08T
HONNT 3 DHY NOSNHOLH LT0Z/%0/0T 9TEBTO-Od 8TZ08T

YAYSN 00/218000
LT0Z9260 AAN LT02/9Z/60 8T0000-TD

aNnNd FAOLNIA MEN 00/5%%100
199009 L19Z/82/60 SBTBTO-Od L8OOBT
SI¥Vd OIN¥ VA¥N 00/210000
928T8TT0 LTI0Z/0E/60 STZ8T0-Od LITOST
A1ddNS DNIATIM HL0W 00/%25000

uoTadraoseq El)=le @ouaaxszay bey

Sweu JTway IPPY/IOpPUSA

LTOC ST YAHOLDO: €T HOLVL
$SC6SL  'ISIJ TOOHDS AIIAINN NOLTIWVH 210

32



00° 0S¥
00° 0S¥

PETPOT
vET V9T

00°00S
00°00s

SCTIST
S2 IST

BL TOE
8L TS

T6°5S0T
60°7%T

827281
8¢ g8l

00°TED
00" TED

Jjunowy

4

* 00°0S% INOOWY INAWAVd TVIOL
00°0S% 4 NN 00000-000-000-0025-000T-008E-0-0T0L-T0 T NOLTIWNVH-TBZOTH#INAAR LT0Z/82/L0 %ST8T0-0d 98008T
YIND NOIDIY ¥OI¥AANS 00/0£6000
¥ VEFOT LNNOWY .ILNIWAYd TYLOL
00°002 4 NN 00000-920-000-00€%-02%2-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T SDVW HIT WHTI-L90S6TL LT0Z/£0/0T £228T0-0d SZTOST
WY 40 SHDIAYAS NOIIJdI¥DSANS 00/TLTO000
* 00°00S LNOOWY LNHWAVd TYLOL
00°008 4 NN 00000-000-000-00€5-00LZ-0000-0-0000~-T0 T dIHSYHEWAW TYNNNY 89000-LT LT0Z/T0/L0 STEBT0-Od LTZOST
NSSY SILOIVLSIA "IOQHDS TIVWS 00/T61000
¥ STTIST INOOWY INAWAYd TYLOL
G2 IS8T 4 NN 00000-000-008-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 BOPILIONW LT02/62/60 SE0000-TD
ONI DILSVIOHDS 00/02€T00
¥ 8L'T0OE INNOWY LNIWAYd TYILOL
8L TS d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-T000-T0 T T85Z60T LT0Z/£2/60 TOEBTO-0Od €£0208T
06°50T d NN 00000-000-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T 6L9C60T LT0Z/EC/60 00EBTO-0d 20ZOBT
60°%¥1 d NN 00000-000-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T 96€Z60T LT0Z/TC/60 86EBTO-0d 00Z08T
NOILYMOdY0D 'TTIND on\wMHooo
11 + BZ ZBT'1T INOOWY INZWAYd TYIOL
‘1T 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T ¥-S662L9669t WATH LJES LT02/8Z/60 9T%000-0d
q39d 00/%80000
* 00'TEY ILNNOWY INAWAYd TYIOL
00°TEF d AN 00000-000-000-0€95-00T8-0000-0-05T8-T0 T NDIS QZ Qv-9¢8618 LT02/62/60 6928T0-0d TLTOST
ET68Z85%S YVAMBIIOAS 3 SNOIS S,¥¥ISO 00/ZLEQOO
aIsN Juy brg SdAWEL ad ¥pg 3Ts [qo oung Teos x so¥ pa uotadraossg 33eQ Sousxagsy bey
unu Junoooy unu vav 2dA3 31sodsq unu gr xeg SuWeu JTwsy IPPY/IOpPUSp
aNOd TIENAD 10 : pung
<< uadg >> LT0Z SZ ¥HFAOLDO:ET HOLVE €100 HOIVE LTOCZ 52 ¥AFOIDO: €T HOIVL
HO¥d 8%:ST LT/S0/0T 2ZT'00°T 00SAdY

LSITE¥d ATHYAVd SINNODDY ¥S26SL  "ISIA TOOHDS QIIJINA NOLIIWYH Z10

33



00°8%9
00°8C¢
00°02¢

157599
LB 0
¥9°%99

8% 06¢
67" 91T
8L°1S
00-8t1
¥0°8¢C
19°66
[4 AR %7
€T°ST9
S6°LYPT
S6°LYT
%' 05%
€L 66
se'zL
0070085
00°2ie
85°659
L6°2L
P%°8CT
00°0T
ST t6¢t
¥9°€Ch

00'oce

00°02¢€

Jumowy

S

‘€ % 00°8%9'€E
00°82E 4 AN 00000-000-000-0€95-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
‘g 00°02E'E d AN 00000-000-000-0E95-00TB-0000-0-0STB-T0 T
% TS'599
00°0 d NN 00000-000-00T-00€%-000T-0TTT~0-0000-T0 2
00°0 d NN 00000-000-00T-0295-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
[ Py QY0 78
| PYTe
65'22
‘g * BY 062G
NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-T000-TO
NN 00000-000-000-26€%-000T-008€-0-0T0L-TO
NN 00000-000-000-0685-00T8-0000-0-05E8-T0
NN 00000-000-000-0025-00T8-0000-0-0S[8-10
NX 00000-000-000-00€%-02%2-0000-0-05L6-T0
NN 00000-000-000-00£%-02%2-0000-0-0ST6-T0
NN 00000-000-000-26€%-00T8-0000~0-0000-10
00°0S€ d NN 00000-000-000-0025-00LZ-0000-0-0000-10 Z
00°0S¢€ 4 NN 00000-000-000-0025-02%Z-0000-0-05T6-T0 T
% 0S¥ 4 NN 00000-900-00T-00E%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
€L°66 d NN 00000-000-008-00€%-00LZ-0000-0-0000-T0 T
SE° 2L d NN 00000-000-008-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
‘T 00°00§°T 4 NN 00000-000-000-0025-000T-0TTT-0-SE0%-T0 T
LE"LET 4 NX 00000-000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0-05T8-T0 T
957659 4 NN 00000-000-000-00E%-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
L6 2L d NN 00000-000-000-00£%-000T-0TTT-0-E0Z%#-T0 T
zz 8Tl d NN 00000-TZ5-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-T0B0-T0 T
00°0T d NN 00000-000-000-0665-00LZ-0000-0-0000-T0 T
8L 99T d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-0042-0000-0-0000-T0 Z
$9°€2H 4 NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T
% 00°02¢€
00'02E 4 NN 00000-000-000-0025-000T-008E-0-0T0L-T0 T
JeN  auy brt SAWEL aaq ¥pg 3Ts (9o oung TeoH i s Pd

wnu Junoddy

gDv¥d 8%:ST LT/S0/0T 21°0

unu vyav

NN TYIANED
<< uadp >>

01 00SAav

T0
LTOZ ST ¥IHOLDO: €~ HOIVE E€T00 :HDIVE
LBITHYd HTHVAVd SINNODDV

LNNOWY INAWAYd TYIOL

FLOZT L70T/8T/60 ETEBTO-Od STZOST
¥802T LT0Z/T0/80 ETEBTO-Od STZOST

89952V70¢C

LNOOWY LNHWAYd TVIOL

SISITVIDAdS HTDVITOA

ADVEEAC-7SE6690%E ID0 L10Z/8Z/0T LEV000-04
¥5E6620%¢ IDO LT10Z/82/0T1 LEF000-0d

BOETP80TE

LNNOWY XW¥Y HSN TYIOL
LNNOWY LNHWAYd TWIOL

G558-2955-5P%0-9%2% IDO
SSSB-T9SS-SPF0-9%2% IDO
S§558-29S5-SP¥0-9%2% IDO
SS58-29SS-SP¥0-9%Z% IDO
S558-T9S5-SP¥0-9%2% IDO
§558-29S5-5%%0-9%2% 100
§558-2955-5%%0-9%2% IDO
LHOITI HOSIANHISYT ANMOLL
IHDITI HOSIJWASYI AEIMVHA
SPIE "INHUL‘ISTHD dDI
SAITAANS FDIAJ0 1D WATH
SHITAANS DIN

LSIDIY HONAIDS NAD IXIN
TANOD dWYT 'TIVLI MOOdL ISId
SHITAANS INIVW

SHITAANS HOVANINO INTIVd VI
ONVIEWYZT-SIVIN ¥OOX

Sa¥ SSYID

SHITAANS DIW IO WITH
HONOT/JAYLS TTY

EONUYNIA LNIWIINOE MNVE Sn

L102/62/60
L102/62/60
LT0Z/62/60
L102/62/60
L102/62/60
L102/62/60
L102/62/60
LT02/62/60
L102/62/60
L10Z2/62/60
L102/62/60
L102/62/60
L10z/62/60
L102/62/60
LT0Z/62/60
L10Z/62/60
L102/62/60
L10Z/62/60
L102/62/60
LT10Z/62/60

HLVIOJY0D ANVE

INNOWY LNIWAYd TVIOL

00/58%000

00/STL0O00
6%0000-Ad
6%0000-Ad
6%0000-Ad
6%0000-Ad
6%0000-Ad
6%0000-Ad
6%0000-Ad
TTEBTO0-0d €TZ0BT
TTEBTO-0d €T1208T
Z628T0-0d ¥6TOBT
0628T0-0d T6TOST
LLZBTIO-0d 6LTIOST
9428T0-0d 8LT08T
89¢BT0-0d 0LTI08T
£928T0-0d S9108T
z92Z8T0-0d $9T08T
$SZ8T0-0d 9ST108T
LLTBTO-0d 6L008T
S$T8T0-0d L¥008T
Z¥T8T0-0d %%008T
50 00/2Z8ET00

NOLTIWVH LLZOTHINAAH LTOZ/T0/L0 TLIBTO-Od €L008BT

Y44 NOIDIY JOIVHAANS

uoT3dIInsaq

9dA3 3tsodsq wnu QI xel

pung

vScesr

23eq

20uUsIaIay

00/162000

bay

SWRU JTWSY IPPY/IOPUSh

LT0C ST ¥AHOLDO:ET HOLVY

"ISId TOOHDS QAIAINN NOLIIWWH ZIO

34



PEOLTEOT LTO0Z/LZ/60 62%000-0d

YIdYd ISVOD LSHEM 00/€%L000

¥4YD SH IDO L102/T0/0T Z0%000-0d
HAYO WATH ID0 LT0Z/TO/0T 20%000-0d
INIVW WATE IDO LT0Z/T0/0T Z0%000-0d
INIYW SH ILDO LT0Z/T0/0T Z0%000-0d

LNIWIDYNYIN HLSYM 00/LLEOOO

Sweu JTwSy IppyY/10opusp

L1I02Z SZ ¥I9OLOO0: €T HOIVA

6522 INOOWY XYL HSN TVIOL
66°€€5'8% ¥ 66'EES'BY INANXYE PUNA TYIOL
v8-vze * $8°¥ZE INOOWY INAWAYA TYIOL
¥8-%zE 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-0018-0000-0-0ST8-T0 T
TP 09%'T « TP 09%%'T LINNOWY INIWAVE TYIOL
SY'L6T 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
S¥'L6T 000 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
L G52 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
08°'68L 0070 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
Junouwy 3eN 3wy bty SANEL dd ¥pg 3ts {qo oung TeoH x 999 pg uoT3drIosag 23jed  sousaajysy bey

wnu JUNOIDY unu vgy adA3 atsodeg uwnu QT xXel
aNnd TYIANID 10 : pund
<< uado >> LTO0Z ST ¥YHEOLOO:ET HOLVE ET00 :HDINE
9 H0¥d 8%:ST LT1/S0/0T 21°00°1

00SX3v LSITaud TIAYAVYE SINNODOY »Sgesl  "ISI

QT TOOHDS GAIJINAN NOLTIWVH ZT0

35



Y6 LLB Y ¥ P6°LLB'D LNIWAYI pund TYLOL

88°091 ¥ 88'091 LNNOWY INHWAYd TYLOL
88°09T 88°09T1 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-0TTH-0-16€9-TT T SYALLAD HONNE TV¥HOTd LT02/62/60 £%28T0-0d SHTOBT
FLYIOJI0D MNVd S N 00/2BETO00

90°LIL ¥ * 90°LIL'Y LNAOWY LNAEWAVA TYLOL
90 LIL'® €E6°€2S'% 4 NN 00000-£Z0-000-00£%-000T-0T1%-0-T6€9-TT T dIndd TY¥0Td HY-98ETTL06 LTI0Z/Z2/60 $628T0-0d 96TOBT
ANIT D 00/69T000

Junowy IsN uy bt SdWedL aq ¥pd 3TS [qo oung feon X 599 pd uotjdraoeaq a3eq sousaxsjay bay
unu JUNO2OY unu gy adA3 3tsodeg wnu gl xel Sweu JTWSY IppY/IOPUsA
NOIIVYDNAA LINAY 1T ¢ pung

<< uadg >> L4102 ST ¥YAFOID0: €T HOIVE £T100 :HOLIVL LTO0Z SZ YILOLOO:E€T HOIVE
L gD¥d 8%:9T LI/S0/0T 2T°00°1 00SXdY LSITHYd ATIVYAYd SLNNODDY $526SL "LSIA TOOHODS QHIJINA NOLIIWYH 2ZT0

36



88" 8L
S¥ 1e
€% LS

8% 869
L9 LTE
8v°652
EL 12

51'6Le
9TTE9E
¥9 891
£E6°8L

i 9ct
T0°LS6
g Ste

80°zSse
c8°vE

TE° 998
90°LEY

0 LTIT
0t1-zee
§1°16¢C
29°S%1
E0"T%E
EL'S6

16°¢€8

01°'90¢
BT 9792
0E"TOE
88 LS

Junowy

8

+ 88°8L INNOWY INZWAVA TYIOL
NN 00000-000-~000-00L%-00L€E-0000-0-0TEG-€T dI¥D ¥Od 8FTITIANS/A00L GWIHN LT0Z/62/60 9%0000-Ad
NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00LE~0000-0-0TES~ET HAYD Y04 SEITIANS/A00d EWIHA LT0Z/6Z/60 9%0000-Ad
MILAYI NNVAT 00/852000
‘g ¥ B%°865'T INOOWY INAWAYd TYIOL
‘T 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET & €9L6%TT LT0Z/S2/60 STH000-04
‘T 0070 d NN 00000-000-000-004%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET 2 CTLLEVTIE LT0Z/52/60 SI%000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T T ZLLE6PTIZ LTOZ/ST/60 STF000-0d
SQ00d ¥WYIS aTI0D 00/602000
7 £ ST 6LT'Y INNOWY INAWAVA TYLIOL
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-004E-0000-0-0TES-€T 2 6LEVDT LTOZ/ST/60 SZH000-0d
‘1 000 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET 2 TEEPHT LT0E/S2/60 STH000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00£%-004E€-0000-0-0TES-€T T ZEEPPT LTO0Z/SZT/60 S2%000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0~0TES-ET T 6LEPYT LTOT/SZ/60 SZH000-0d
000 d NN 00000-6%0-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T S 880S%T LT0Z/Z0/0T SZ$000-0d
000 d NN 00000-6%0-000-00€E%-00LE-0000-0-0TES~ET ¥ 880S%T LT0Z/T0/0T SZ2%000-0d
000 d NN 00000-000-000-00£%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T L80S¥T LT0Z/20/0T SZ%000-0d
000 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T T ZS0S¥T £102/20/01 SZ2$000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T 2 €50S8%T LT0Z/20/0T S2%000-0d
000 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET 2 LBOSPT LTI0Z/20/0T STH000-0d
0D NOSTAINWA 00/%9L000
‘e *» TO"LTT'2 INOOWY INIWAVA TYLOL
00'0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T BSLEBO9T LTOZ/0E/60 SHH000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00£L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T T 6ZLEBOOT LT0Z/8T/60 S¥%000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE£-0000-0-0TES-€T T LEST09T LTOZ/0€/60 S¥H000-0d
00'0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T ESETS09T LIOZ/0E/60 SPH000-0d
000 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T S9ET909T LT0Z/0E/60 SHH000-0d
00°'0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%~00LE-0000~-0-0TES-ET T €0Z8909T LTOT/0E/60 SHH000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-004E-0000-0-0TES-€T T 68189091 LT0Z/0€/60 SHH000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0~0TES-ET T 6E¥BZ09T LI0Z/0E/60 SHH000-04
00'0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T 9L0BZO9T LTI0Z/0E/60 SPH000-0d
00°0 d NN 00000-000-000~00L%-00LE~-0000-0-0TES-€T T LLOBZO9T LTI0Z/0€/60 SHH000-0d
ZAANYHED TYLSXUD 00/29L000
AN quy brg SAWEL aa ¥pg 318 [qo oung Teon x  soy pa uotadraoseq @3eg sousxssy boy
wunu uUnosoy unu yvay 2dA3 3tsodsg  wnu dl xeJ SwWeu JTWaY IPPY/IOPUSA
YI¥ILIEAVD ET : pung
<< uadp >> LT0Z ST ¥WEEOLDO:ET HOIVE €TI00 :HOIVH LT0Z ST ¥HAOINO: €T HOIYL
dD9¥d 8%:ST LT/SO/0T 2T1'00°T  00SAdY LSITANG ATFHAYd SINNODOY PS2ZESL  "ISIA TOOHDS QATAING NOLTIWYH 210

37



L

S Y
e v
'EMOTII2A0 qnas 03 snp SpTOoA mﬂﬂuﬁdou jou
6522 INNOWY XYL SN TYLOL
6€°529'59 00°0 x¥xx 6E£°GZ9’'G9 PSIDIYLSIA TTIV d0J TYVIOL
65722 INNOWY XYL SN TYIOL
6£°529°G9 00°0 rxxx 6£°529°S9 INEWAYE IDI¥LSIA TYLIOL
6522 INNOWY XYL SN TVIOL
6£°529's9 00°0 +¥¥ 6£°529°59 INANAYd HOIVE ‘TYIOL
9% erz’et #x 9%°€12'2T INSIWAYA pund TYLOL
#L°991 * $L799T LNOOWY INIWAYE TYLOL
£0°9¢ 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0T:5-€1 2
TL0ET 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-00LE-0000-0-0T5G-€T T
4%°598°¢2 * 2%'698'2 INNOWY INAWAYA IVIOL
66818 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T
68°€£CS 0070 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T T
$S°882 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-004%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T T
$6°5G% 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€ET T
90 BLL 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00L%-00LE-0000-0-0TFS-ET T
8L'LOT ¥ BL'LOT LNOOWY INZWAY TYIOL
62 LE 000 d NN 00000-000-000-00E¥-00LE~0000-0-0TES-ET T
$T°9¢ 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T
SE"pE 00'0 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T
junowy 33N juy bty SAWEL ad ¥pd 31s [qo ound Teon x  s=¥ pa
wnu 3unodsay unu yeEy 9¢A3 31sods@ unu QI xeg
VINILTIO €T punJg
<< uadp >> LTOT ST ¥HEOLDO:ET HOIVE €T00 :HDIVE

gDVd 8%:ST LT/S0/0T 21 00°7I 00SAdvY LSITAYd JMEY¥AYd SINNODOY

90:6%:ST LT0Z/S0/0T :pejuTag

4 pajutad aq 03 SOBUD JO Toquny
67S€Y LT0T/0Z/60 8£%000-0d
6%SEY LTI02/02/60 8€¥000-04
SHED0YD AHLINA 00/210200
12S96¥%9 L10Z/S2/60 LO¥000-04
€8S96%9 LT0Z/S52/60 LO%000-0d4
BI266%9 LT102/20/0T L0%000-0d
SLT66¥%9 LT0Z/20/0T LO$000-0O4
02Z66%9 LT0CZ/20/0T LO¥000-0d
HSTIA DIAIDVI0Nd 00/€9L000

992Z%€£8506 L102/82/60 S0%000-0d
650TBBSO0S LT0Z/S0/0T SO%000-0d
850188505 LT0Z/SO/0T S0%000-0d

uotadiaonsag

23ed adusaazsy bey
sSwWeu JTWSY IPPY/Iopusp

LT0Z ST ¥YIFOLDO: €T HOLVH
¥S26SL  "ISIA 'TOOHOS QHAIJINN NOITIWYH 210

38



N 3108 UT SwTl pue S3eq 3ITpnyY SPnToul
A& :NIL IOpusp Spnioul
N :os°@ 2308[qo spnrour
N :Ss2appy spulour
X :ysed buraToasy spniour
$100 :y23jeq og
%100 yojeq woxg

¥ Y ‘:snijeis uyojeq

L10C ST YAAOLDO! %1 HOLIVY

0 dO¥d E€T:E€T LT/TT/0T 2T°00°'T 005AdY LSITEYd F77YAYd SINNODDY C0L6SCL  '1SIQ TOOHDS QEIAINQ NOITIWYH [AN]

39



67" €9 * 67°€E9 ZNAOWY INTWAYA TYIOL
6%'€9 6% €9 d NN 00000-900-00T-00€%~-000T-0TTT-0-0000-10 T ZPE8-C000-0TEL-€00L LT02/92/60 L6E8TO-Od 66T08T
0DIS0D 00/2T1000
PLTIT 2 + PLOTITT'C CNOOWY ILNAWAYd TYLOL
£9°G6% 0070 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T LLLLTTIBIE IDO LT10Z/92/60 Z2¥000-0d
€9'GS¥H 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T LLLLTTTHT® 1DO LTI0Z/9Z/60 ZZ%000-0d
8L°02 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T LLLLLTYESE IDO LT0Z/92/60 ZZ¥000-0d
9% 95€E 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0~0000-T0 T L9P9LBBZED IDO LT0Z/9T/60 2Z%000-0d
26°91S 00°0 d NN 00000~000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T LLLLLTFTEY IDO LT0Z/92/60 2Z%000-0d
zTE'92T'T 0070 d NN 00000-000-000-06S5-0018-0000-0-0000-T0 T ZS9EPB6990 IDO LT10Z/92/60 TZH000-0d
0D HOIAWHS ¥EIYM VINJOIITYD 00/€5S0000
91958 x 9T°958 LNNOWY INIWAYE TYLIOL
9°1 00°0 d4 NN 00000-000-000-00£%-009€-0000-0~0000-T0 T S6LT6N] L102/02/60 LIE8T0-0d 6TZ0BT
€8°LS%'T LE"T96 d NN 00000-000-000-00€E%-009£-0000-0-0000-T0 T $6LT6NE LT0Z/02/60 LIEBT0-0d 6T208T
82°'€09- N 00000-000-000-00€%-009€-0000-0-0000-T0 LIEYD NINLEY HY0D-9€%Z6Nd LT102/T2/60 $T0000-HWD
ONSH¥4 - ISEM Snd 00/%6L000
00°TTC’'C « 00°TTC'2 LNNOWY INEWAYd TYLOL
00°112'¢ 00°11Z’'Z Jd NN 00000-000-000-068S-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T A¥ES LOANNOD XTINC-DAY €89TLZT L10Z/8T/60 1ZZBT0-0d £2108T
8LTIT80CES DKI @EIVO=MOYIL 00/S6%100
oo‘ogs’e + 00°0€E9°2 LNNOWY INIWAYA TYLOL
00°0E9°C 00°0E9’Z d AN 00000-~000-000-0685-009€-0000-0-0000-T0 T ONINIVIL ¥HAINA Snd ‘L0052, LTI0Z/T0/L0 6TE8T0-Od TZZOST
0052290€S "OTAYL TIIE 00/800T00
LO'8TZE'OTT % LO*8ZE'OTIT CNAOWY INHWAYE TYLOL
00°000°02 $0°6S8B‘6T d NN 00000-000-000-002%-000T-0TTT-0-00%T-T10 € IXAL/MOODI™OM ¥AB-ESOLZE LT0Z/%1/80 6%T8T0-0d TSO0BT
LO"8TE‘SL $0°€20’SL d NN 00000-000-000-002%-000T-0TTT-0-T000-T0 ¢ IXEL/MO0EIY0M JAB~ESILEE LT0Z/PT/80 6%T8T0-0d TS00BT
00°000‘ST 26 SP¥ ‘ST d NN 00000-000-000-002%-000T-0TTT-0-00£9-T0 T LXHAL/MOOENEOM RB-ESILZE LT0Z/¥T/80 6%T8T0-0d TSO0BT
ANVAWOD NOILYONAE MIYWHONIH 00/020200
junoury 38N Juy by SAW6L, aa ¥pd 3ts  [(qo oung Teop X S99 pa uot3diioseqg 53jed  @duaiagdy bay
U QUNOJOY unu vygy 2dA3 g3tsodsg uwnu QI xer SWeu JTWsY JIPPY/IOpUSp
annd TYIENgD 10 ¢ pung
<< uado >> LT0Z ST ¥HEQOIDO:PH~ HIIVE %100 :HOIVH LT0Z ST ¥HLOLDO! %T HOIVE
T OV €T:€T LT/TT/0T 2T°00°T  00SAAY ISITHYd HTIYAYd SLNNODOY ZOL6SL, 'ISIA TICOHDS AAIAINA NOILTIWYH 210

40



£ 0070 INNOWY INAWAYVd TYIOL
00'0 00°00T‘8 D NN 00000-%20-000-0685-0018-0000-0-TST6-10 T T4 Y34 /IVd HSOTO LT02/22/60 9ETIBTO-Od 8E008T
ONI SHIYIDOSSY 3 TIVH I W 00/098000
% L9 + TP°LO INOOWY INSWAV TYIOL
T9°L9 NN 00000-000-000-0085-00£L-0000-0-0000-T0 0€-62/6 STTIN NIVIL O€D LT0Z/8Z/L0 $S0000-Ad
NVIWAVH NALSIE 00/0%9000
$8°8%C + ¥8'8%C INOONY INHWAV TYIOL
¥8°8%Z 000 d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0-0ST8-10 T 99512.209 LT0Z/¥%¥0/0T 2I%000-0d
TIYXTIIH 00/2L0000
1928 ¥+ 19728 INNOWY INZWAVE TUIOL
z8°99 000 d NN 00000-~000-000-00€%-00T8-0000-0-05T8-T0 T €00SE6SLG6 LT0Z/S0/0T 60%000-0d
6L°GT 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-00T8-0000-0~0ST8-T0 T 806196956 LT02/8Z2/60 60%000-0d
YEIDNIVID 00/291000
TE"L9T x TELOT INNOWY INSWAYS TYLOL
8E'00T 00°0 d NN 00000-000-00T-0295-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 2 9T996€€0TI¥ DIA~-IDO LT0Z/€0/0T $2%000-0d
€699 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0295-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T 9T996€E€0TIN DIA-IDO LTI0Z/E0/0T $ZTH000-0d
SNOILINTOS ONITIVA dd 00/€20100
6T ¥LV'T + 6T°PLY'C INNOWY INAWAYVA TYLOL
LS 08L LS 08L d NN 00000-000-000-00E%-000T-0TTT~D~00%T~T0 T ¥6S¥8STZ LT0C/S52/60 €L2BI0-0d SLIOST
80°9T L' ZE 4 NN 00000-000-000-002%-000T-0TTT-0-T000-T0 T d1v0E¥IC LTOZT/2Z/60 80ZBTI0-0d OTTOST
8L %8 BL %8 d NN 00000-000-000-002¥-000T-0TTT-0-00%T-10 T DI¥89ETE LT0Z/82Z/80 T9T810-0d €£9008T
8L %8 8L'%8 d NN 00000-000-000-00Z%-000T-0TIT-0-00%T-10 T HIPB9ETZ LT0Z/80/80 TI9TBIO-Od €£9008T
$8°0T19°T $8°019'T d NN 00000-000-000-002%-000T-0TTT-0-00%T-10 T YI¥B9ETZ LT0Z/8Z/L0 T9TBTI0-Od £9008T
80°81- NN 00000-000-000-00E%-000T-0TTI-0-00%T-T0 SHOOH MOVE TIHS-TZOETHAD LT0Z/T2/60 £T0000-1D
8L %8~ N 00000-000-000-002%-000T-0TTT-0-00%T-T0 LIQEED ¥00Y DNISSIW-YIPB9EIZ LT102/T2/60 ZI0000-WD
DNI SNOILNTIOS TOOHDS ILATIOA 00/102000
junowy SN Juy brg SaWe.r aa ¥pd 3T8 [qo oung Teop x  s29 pg uot3dranseqg ®3eq  sdusxaiay bay
uNU  Junoodoy unu ygy . 8d43 31soded wnu gr xer Suweu 3Twsy IPpPY/Iopusa
aNnd TVNANED 10 : pung
<< uado >> LT0Z ST ¥AFOLDO:%T HOLVE $TO0 :HOLVE LT0Z S2 ¥HE0IDO!%T HOIVH
z gD¥d ET:ET LT/TT/0T 2T°00°T  QO0SAAY LSITAYd HATIYAYd SINNOJDOY 20L6SL  “ILSIA 'TOOHDS QHIAINN NOITIWYH ZTO

41



2T 6L9 ¢ % TZT'6LY'E CNOOWY INAWAVE TYIOL
1166 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000~-00€%-00£L2-0000-0-0000-T0 91 ¥OTOD LIL IDO L8BESLT L10Z/12/60 ETI¥000-04
CO ELT 00°0 d NN 00000-000-008-00€E%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 TT "OTIOD DE-0T-WL IDO LBBESLI LTD0Z/12/60 E€T$000-04
LO9ET 00°0 d NN 00000~000-00T-00€E%-000T-0TTT-0~-0000-T0 0T YOTIOD DY IDO LBBEILT L10Z/12/60 £€1%000-0d
0E°LE 0060 d NN 00000-000-000-0€95-000T-0SS€-0-0000-T0 S AYAWWOD LOO L8BEILT LIDZ/TZ/60 £IH000-0Od
Ie°¢€6T 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-~0295-~000T-002€-0-0000-T0 % GYTTd IOO LBSESLT LT0Z/T2/60 E€TI$000-04
£2°8¢€8°'1 00°0 d NN 00000-000-008-0295-000T-0TTT-0-000(0-T0 € WATHE D0 LBBEILT LT0Z/TZ/60 £T%000-0d
mr.wmh 00°0 d NN ooooo|ooo-ooa-onm|000ﬁ|0ﬂﬁﬁnouoooo|Ho 4 SH IDO L8BE9LT LT0Z/TZ/60 €T$000-0d
£8°629 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0295-0042-0000-0-0000-T0 T LSId IDO LBSESLT L102/T2/60 €T%000-04
ANVYANOD NUYDMOW AV 00/0TST00
00°L0Z x 00°L02 LNOOWY INAWAYd TYIOL
00°L0Z AN 00000-000-000-0685-009€-0000-0-00C0-T0 CTLTEOOHANI ‘ONILSHI 10d LT0Z/62/60 £50000-Ad
€886LT08S HOIAYHAS DNINATIDS XAWTIYI 00/L0%T00
G9°%08 x+ §9°%09 INNOWY INAWAYd TYLOL
$6°8%S ¥6°'8%S d NN 00000-000-008-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T TO0PSTELELOG LTOZ/6T/60 OTEBTO-Od ZTZOBT
€0°0¢ 60°0¢ d NN 00000-000-008-00€%-000T-0TTT-0-0000-T0 T TO0%0%6L2L96 LT0T/62/60 OTESTO-Od ZIZOBT
¢9°'s¢ €992 d NN 00000-ETS-000-00E%-000T-0TTT-0-TOB0O-TO T T00LSLY6CS96 LT02/L2/60 1628T0-0d E6TOST
ONI LOdEd dDIAA0 00/60€000
Q0° 02 + 00°02 LNOOWY LNIWAYd TVIOL
00°02 00°02 4 NN 00000-900-00T-002S-000T-0TIT-0-0000-T0 T €/8 JOHSMNOM A¥-991ST L102/%0/80 8%I8T0-04 050081
41D NOILDES NIFHINON 00/8ES000
¥E°"S12 x PESTC INAOWY LNHEWAVA THIOL
FE'STZ ve°Ste d NN 00000-000-000-00€%-000T-008€-0-28€9-T0 T CEPZBITIO LTCZT/E0/0T STZ8TO-Od LITOST
ATddNS PNIATIM 0N 00/%25000
TO"€ST * TO'€ST LNOOWY INIWAVA TYIOL
TO"€ST 00081 4 NN 00000-000-000-00Z%-000T-0TTT-0~-T000~T0 T T0080ZES666 LTOT/82/60 6TTI8T0-0d 1Z00BTI
NOIIVDNAA 'TOOHDS TIIH-MVIODNW 00/521000
amowy 3IsN juy brg SdW6L aa ¥pg 3Ts [qo oung Teon x s9¥ pg uotadrxosag 3edq eousxsisy bay
unu JunosoY wunu ygy ad43 31sodeg uwnu gI xeg SWeU JTWweY IPPY/IOpusp
aNNd TYYENED 10 * pung
<< uadp >> LT0Z S92 YAHOIDO: %1 HOLVA $T00 :HDIVL LT0C ST ¥IALOIDO!#PT HOIvH
£ gD¥d €T:€T LI/TT/0T ZT°00°T 00SAdY LSITHYd HTAVAVd SINNODDY C0L6Sr  "ISIA TOOHDS TQAIAINAN NOITINYH 210

42



597086921 +x §9°086°'92T LNIWXYI pund TYLOL
¢5S°18 * CS°18 INOOWY INHWAVd 'TYIOL
2S°18 00°0 d NN 00000-~000-000-0665~00LZ-0000-0~0000-T0 T
00°0TT ¥ 00°01T LNNOWY ILNHWAVA TYIOL
00°sS 00'0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
00° 5SS 00°0 d NN 00000-000-000-0655-00T8-0000-0-0000-T0 T
ST 9%T * ST 99T LNOOWY INAWXYd 'TYLOL
S2°9%T SZ'9%T 4 AN 00000-000-000-0E95-00T8-0000-0-05T8-T0 T
TL%%21089
v8°'zes * ¥8°2¢29 LNOOWY LNAWAYA TYIOL
81°9% 81 9% d NN ooooo-ooo-ooo-ommm-oomhuoooo-o-oooo-ﬁo T OLNAWVIDVS S€S
00°sz 00°s¢ d NN ooooonooo-ooc1ommm|comh-oooo-cloooc-ﬂc T OLNIWVIOVS 666
00°52 00°5e d NN oooocuooo-ooorommm-ocmm-oaconcqcooo'ﬂo iy LS HIXIS 082
8€"¢€¥ BE"EY d NN oooocnooo-oooucmmmscnmhnccconmuoooe-ﬂo 1 LS HIXIS 0o0¢
00°sz 00"s2 d NN coooo-ooc.coc:cmmm;oomr-cooo-a-oooo-ﬂo T LS TUNYD
06°002 06002 d NN ooccopccc-occnmmmm-QQMﬁ-oooc-o-oooo-ﬁo 2] LS TYNYD 029
8E°LOT BE'LOT d NN ooooo;oca-oaanommm-oOMb-oooa-oucooo-ﬁc T HAY ANAYD LLT
00°se 00°Se d NN cocoo-oon-ooa-ommm-oomﬁ-oooa-oucooc.ao 1 HAY AYdUD S0¢€
00°s2 00°G2 d NN noaoo.ona.ooa-omamqoamhauooo.o.occo-Ho T TUNVD 00€
junowy 3y Juy b1 SdW6L dd ¥pg 3ts [go oung Teon 3 soy 2t
unu JUNcoIY unu  ygy adis arsodaq uwnu al xe]
ANOd TYIENTD 10 pung

<< uadp >> LT0Z Sz YHEOIDO:¥T HOIVE $T00 ‘HOLYE

4

gD¥d ET:E€T LT/TT/0T 21°00°7T

00SAav¥

LSITENd FTEAVS SINNODOY

8TBLSSE6L6 IDO LT02/82/40 TI%000-0d4

SSHTHIIM NOZI¥IA

LPTPAS WATH IDO LT0Z/T0/0T £E%000-0Od4
BYT?AS SH IDO LTIO0Z/T0/0T €E%000-04d

SYHEIA QIZITVIDAAS

SYIVITE DNIAWNII! 9% TISH

000-210-220-2£0
000-L10-0%2-2£0
000-ET0-0E2-2£0
000-2T0~0€2-2£0
000-800-0€2-2¢€0
000-200-0€£2-250
000-T00-T0Z-Z€0
000-TT0-T6T-2€0
000-T00-T6T-ZEOD

0%T2# IDIVISIG NOIIVWYIDAH

uoradixossg

00/€69000

00/%10200

LT0Z/T0/L0 8TEBTD-Od 0ZZ0BT

¥ALOOY -0L0Y

LT0Z/80/0T
LT0Z/€0/0T
LT02/€0/0T
LT02/€0/0T
LT0Z/€0/01
LT0Z/€0/0T
LT0Z/€0/0T
L102/£0/0T
LT0Z/f0/0T

33eq

00/201T000
0EEBTO-0d Z£Z08T
0EE€8T0-0d ZE£ZOST
0EEBTO-0d Z£208T
0EEBTO-0Od 2EZOST
0E£€9T0-0d ZEZOBT
0EEBTO-0d 2£208T
0£€8T0-0d ZE£208T
0EE€8T0-0d ZEZOST
0€£EBT0-04 2E€E08T

00/1IT£000

Q0ousasiay boy
SWEU JTWSY IpPPY/Iopusp

L102 ST ¥AF0ID0!%T HOIVH
204650  *LSIA 'TOOHDS QATJINA NOLTIWWYH ZT10

43



0% 6%%'S xx OV 69%'S INIWXYD Pund TYIOL
06°1T11 + 06°TTIT INOOWY LNAWAYd TYVLOL
ge"Le 00°0 d NN 00000-220-000-0295-000T-0TT%-0-T6€9-TT L
e vl 00°0 d NN ooooo-ooo-ooo-ommm-oooa|0Hﬁ¢|o|ﬁmmmuﬁﬁ 9
0S°LEE’'S + 0S°LEE’S LNOOWY LNZFWAVE TVIOL
0S°LEE'S 0S'LEE’S 4 NN 00000-%20-000-0685-0058-0TT#-0-T6£9-TT T
junowy 39N Juy brg SAWEL da ¥pg 315 (g0 oung Teon x sy pg
unu  3JUMedDY wnu vgy 2d4A3 31sodeg wnu gr xXelL
NOILYDAQH ITNdv 1T : pumg
<< uadp >> L1002 S2 ¥I9OID0:$T HOIVE %100 ‘HOLVE
S HO¥d €T:ET LTI/TT/0T 2T°00°7T 008Xd4¥ LSITHId ETEYAYd SINNODOY

DD/EY ID0 LBYESLT LT02/T2/60 E1%000-04
TQd Q¥ 10 L8BE9LT LT0Z/12/60 €1%000-0d

ANVAWOD NVOYOW AV 00/0TSTO0

LLTHEOL-0T8 LTI0Z/TT/60 6LZ8T0-0d TSTOST

ONI SHILVIDOSSY 3 TIVH I W 00/098000

uoridraosag a3eq Sousasjey bay
-Sweu jTwsy Ippv/Iopusy

LT02Z SZ ¥390LDO‘%T HOIVE
C0L6SCM  "ISIQ 'TOOHDS QHAIJINA NOLTIIWYH ZTO

44



12°1€2 *x T2 T1E2 INAWAY PUng IYIOL
TE €61 * TE €61 INOOWY INAWAYE TYLOL
1€ €61 00'0 d NN 00000-000-000-0295-000T-0TTT-0-50T9-2T 8 HDSHNA IDO LSSESLT LT0Z/TZ/60 €I%000-0d
ANVAW0D NYDUOW AWM 00/0TST00
06°LE % 06°LE INOOWY INZWAYA FIVIOL
06°LE 06°LE d NN 00000-000-000-00£%-000T-0TTT-0-50T9-2T T S280 0065 0ZEP S009 LT0Z/82/60 SOTBTO-Od L9008BT
ONI ADVNVHA SAD 00/905000
Junowy 3N juy br SAWEL ad ¥og 3TS  [QO oung Teop 3 S99 pg uotadraosaq ®jead  aousiazay bey
unu JUNoJoy unu vay 2d&3 31sodsg wnu QI XelL aweu JTWSY IPPY/IOPUSA
INAWIOTHARA GTIIHD zT ¢ puna
<< uadgp >> LT0Z ST ¥AHOILDO:%T HOLVE $T00 :HOIVE LT0Z SZ WAHOIDO!PT HOIVE
) ED¥d ETFET LT/TT/0T 21°00°T  0OSAAY LSITHId ATAVAYd SINNODDY TOLGSL “LSIQ TOOHDS GHIJINA NOLTIWVH Z10

—_——

45



———a

#q penopay

9T 0EL'6ET

9Z°0€L 6ET

9T 0EL6ET

00°690'2L

00" S6€E

00°S6¢E

Q0° 0%
00 0%

00°0%
[olo e} 4

00°0%
00°0%

00°%55°9
00°%55‘9

TO*PT:ET LTOZ/TT/0T :p33utag

‘paddrys oq TTTM ‘T 1S}OSYD IBTTOP OI9Z JO ISquMN

"BMOT3I2A0 qnis 03 onp sproa Butjunos jou ‘gg :pajutad oq 03 SYOSUD JO Jaqumy

00°0 sxxx 9C'0EL'6ET
00°'0 #xxx 92 0EL'6ET
00°0 ¥¥x¥ 9T 0EL'6ET

*x 0076902

FSILDTAISIA TIVY JYOd TIVIOL

INAWNAYd IDTMLSIA 'TVLIOL

INEWAYd HOLVE TVIOL

LNHNAYA pund TYLOI

+ 00°'S6¢ LNOOWY LNANAYd TYIOL
00°S6¢ d AN 00000-000-000-0025-00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET T HAVSAYES ‘€ ISIDAY ‘2T LINZ/ST/60 TZEBT0-0d £2Z0ST
S80828995 ALIIYS dOood ¥ N 00,/886000
¥ 00°'0% LNOOWY LNAWAVA IVLIOL
NN 00000-000-000-0025-00LE-0000-0-0T€G-€T 62/0T STYEW NIVIL HAVS HAUAS LT02/62/60 150000-Ad
AYANODINON NYHES 00/685000
x 00°0% INOOWY INIWAYd 'TYIOL
NN 00000-000-000-0025~00LE-0000-0-0TES-ET 62/0T STVEW NIVYL HAVS HANHS LT02/62/60 250000-Ad
NOOW ¥NOW 00/8TETO0
¥+ 00°0% INOOWY INIWAYd 'TYIOL
NN 00000-000-000-0025-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T 62/0T STVAW NIVML HAVS HANAS LT02/62/60 0S0000-Ad
ONHIOW VAIANI¥H 00/6L%000
+ 00°PSS‘9 INQOWY LNHWAYA TYLOL
00°%85'9 4 NN 00000-000-000-0€E95-00LE-0000-0-0TES-€T T WETH ® dWNd TTYLSNI-LEEE LT0Z/S2/60 SEZ8T0-0d LETOBT
ONI ANVAWOD SONIWAOD 00/2S%T00
Juy bt SANWGL aq ¥pd 3ts [(qo oung [eon x  soy pd uotadraosag 23ed 9ousxsiay bay

L g9¥d €T:€T LT/TT/0T 21°00°T

unu 3UNo00Y

<< uadg >>

00Sxdv¥

ol ey

2dA3 3Ttsodeq wnu g1 xeIL Sweu 3TWRY JIPPY/IOPUSA

YIdELIID €T ¢ pung

L10T S2 YHEOLDO:¥T HOI¥E $T00 :HOLVE

LTOZ ST YHEOLOO!%T HOIVH

LSITHYd ATAVAYd SINNCODY 20LESY  "ISIA TOOHDS QEIAINA NOLIIWVH ZT0

46



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING
MINUTES
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, September 27, 2017

6:00
6:00
6:30

p.m. Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below.
p.m. Reconvene to open session no earlier than 6:30 p.m.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

OPENING BUSINESS:
Call to order and roll call

_ X Gabriel Leal, President __ X Rosalinda Sanchez (absent beginning at 7:53 p.m.})

X Tomas Loera

_ X Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk X Rod Boone

IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.
1. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, Superintendent

Charles Tracy regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

2. Government Code Section 54957 (b}, Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.

3. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified Schoal
District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.

Report out actions taken in closed session.

PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:

Board President, Gabriel Leal: there was no action taken take in closed session and there was no direction given in closed

session.

ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

Motion for approval by Wendall Lower, seconded by Rosalinda Sanchez.

Motion Carried: 5-0

Loera: Aye

Boone: Aye

Leal: Aye

Lower: Aye

Sanchez: Aye

COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS:
1. Board Member Comments/Reports.

a.

Board Member, Rosalinda Sanchez: | attended two recent football games at the elementary school, both of
which they won and | also attended the Hamilton High School Homecoming game. The students put together
wonderful floats and our football team performed well.

Board Member, Rod Boone: | attended the Cross Country meeting at Black Butte Lake; all of our runners did
very well. Our Cross Country team is supportive of not only each other but other teams as well. One of our
runners locked arms with another runner from a different team to encourage them through to the end of the

race.

2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports.

d.

Hamilton High, Tate Gruenwald.

Page 1 0f 8
47




48

3.

4.

b.

vi.

The Hamilton High School Homecoming Game was a success; we won 76 to 31 against Western Sierra
Collegiate Academy from Rocklin, CA.

The Homecoming King is John Zuppan and the Homecoming Queen is Carolina Sandoval.

The homecoming dance was all successful; there were over 100 students in attendance which was a
significant improvement over last year.

Homecoming Spirit Week also had a lot more participation than in recent years. Those planning are
doing a great iob and students have more schaol spirit.

Al sports-are doing really weiloveraii, Tootbati, cross countryand voiieybaii.

The first quarter ends next Friday, October 6™

Hamilton Elementary, Alexis Villegas.

Not present.

Principal and Dean of Student Reports
Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal.

a.

b.

a.

i

ii.
ifi.
iv.
vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.
Xii.
Xiii.
Xiv.

Attendance rate is at 98 percent.

Current enrollment is 281.

The homecoming game took place on Friday, September 22, 2017; varsity won.

Each class put together “mini floats” that were judged by those attending the homecoming game.
The junior class won for best mini float.

Our athletic teams are all doing well and students are enjoying the season.

Teachers are continuing their PLCs. Glenn County Office of Education — Teacher Resources for
Enhancing Education (TREE) presented to our teachers.

Child Abuse Treatment Program (CHAT) presented to our teachers as well. CHAT is a child abuse
prevention program through county developmental health. They assess the referrals and work well
with us and the families; this is a resource for our teachers. “The Glenn County CHAT Program funds
direct client services including therapeutic treatment to all child victims of abuse and neglect,
abduction, domestic, family, school and community violence regardless of race, ethnicity, or religion.
Approved family members may also receive services as an integral part of the child’s treatment plan.
CHAT staff members provide immediate and on-going emotional support to clients as they work
through loss, anger, sadness, and as they begin to rearganize their lives.”

Kylee Paulos, Registered Nurse from Glenn County trained the high school staff on Glucagon. Blood
sugar levels are an important part of overall health. When blood sugar levels drop, an individual may
feel lethargic. If they drop too low, the individual may become disoriented, dizzy or even pass out.
Blood sugar control involves a complex system of hormones, and one of those hormones is glucagon.
Cash for college upcoming on Saturday, October 14, 2017 in the Hamilton High School Library.
Scholarship Information Night was on Wednesday, September 13, 2017 in the Hamilton High School
Library at 7:00 p.m. Students and parents learned about critical senior year tasks: college entrance
exams, application process, scholarships and financial aid.

Campus tours to California colleges took place on September, 17" and 18"

The PSAT will be on October 11™. The College Readiness Block Grant (CRBG) will be covering the cost
to students.

Friday, October 6, 2017 is the end of quarter.

Maintenance and transportation has done well in making things go smoothly.

Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students.

i.
ii.
jii.
iv.

V.
District Reports

We are progressing well with credit recovery at Ella Barkley High School.

Students listened to a presentation for life after high school which was beneficial and informative.
This Friday, September 29, 2017 we are visiting the ROP program and the Chico Employment Center
to give students the tools on how to acquire jobs. We will also be visiting the same one in Orland.
Students are currently growing plants from seedlings and they are doing very well.

On Thursday, September 21, 2017 we had parent teacher conferences.

Food Service Report by LeAnn Radtke.

Handout

b. Operations Report by Marc Eddy.

C.

Handout

Technology Report by Derek Hawley.

Handout

Page 20f 8



8.0

5. Chief Business Official/Facilities Report by Diane Lyon.
a. Ms. Lyon’s report contained a recap of recent projects at HUSD: installed 3 portables at HES, 1 portable for

adult education, roofs restored at Hamilton Elementary School and Hamilton High School, drainage at
Hamilton Elementary School was fixed, cafeteria repairs over the summer including new flooring in the
Hamilton High School Cafeteria, slurry seal and striped the student parking lot at Hamilton High School. In the
process of getting a floral refrigerator for an adult education course, the face of the gym repainted.
6. Superintendent/Interim Hamilton Elementary School Principal Report by Charles Tracy.
a. Update on Board Workshop from September 11, 2017: facilities walk with board members, staff, parents and
community members.

i. The workshop had a good turnout. From this workshop we have a list of items brought forth by
parents, staff and community members.

ii. Would Wednesday, November 8, 2017 from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. work for the Board?

i. Board President, Gabriel Leal: Yes that works in my schedule.

ii. Board Member Wendall Lower: Yes

iti. Board Member, Rosalinda Sanchez: Yes | am available

iv. Board Member, Rod Boone: Yes

v. Board Member, Tomas Loera: Yes

vi. Superintendent, Charles Tracy: Ok, wonderful. We will offer a light dinner; we will post a

flyer, post online, and send out auto dialers to parents as we get close to the workshop.

iii. Hamilton Elementary will be holding parent conferences on Wednesday, October 11" & 12th, 2017.
iv. The next PTO meeting will be on Tuesday, October 17th, 2017.

V. The Boys & Girls Club of the North Valley — Hamilton City will be hosting their open house on October
26,2017 at 5:30 p.m.

b. Hamilton Elementary School Mural.

i. Entryway to the elementary cafeteria: Center for Healthy Communities
is a program committed to providing regular nutrition and physical education lessons to support
Hamilton Elementary students. The mural celebrates our community's health and well-being. Artist
and Butte College teacher Rebecca Shelly worked with middle school students to plan and paint this
mural. Student artists included Alexia A., Cesar M., Kent T., Edgar P., and Marimar O. The mural was
paid for by a grant from USDA SNAP-ed.

c. Our4® graders participated in the 4™ Grade Farm Day; on Wednesday, September 20, 2017 all Glenn County
4" Graders were invited to participate in a morning of fun Ag education at the Glenn County Fair Grounds.
d. Lions fundraiser on September 9, 2017.

i. This fundraiser was successful; raising money to build a gazebo/covered area in the park where
people can hold events, including inclement weather. Approximately $4,000 raised. This is a positive
thing as our schools use that park.

e. The Dual Immersion Information Nights have gone well. Staff, parents and community members have had
positive discussion thus far. There is a good amount of involvement and Positive discussion.
f.  Holidays:
i. Friday, November 10" in observance of Veterans Day.
g. School Board Meetings:
i. Wednesday, October 25, 2017
ii. No November meeting
iii. Wednesday, December 13, 2017

CORRESPONDENCE: Hamilton City SR 32 Crosswalk Follow Up — CALTRANS (page 1)

Superintendent, Charles Tracy: | attended a meeting at the Caltrans Office (District 3) in Marysville. | took photographs to
the meeting of the road way and crosswalk from all angles to help describe our need and concerns. They do have some
ideas for resolution of this issue but funding is the main hurdle. They would like to install lighted signs but these are
expensive and Caltrans will need to apply for a grant in order to get them. Currently they are working on the traffic funds
and it is be a minimum of 12 to 18 months before Caltrans gets the money and work can begin. The resolution of this will be
an ongoing dialogue between HUSD and Caltrans. There is no sidewalk on high school side of highway 32 so this is a priority
for both HUSD and Caltrans to address.

Board Member, Rod Boone: California Highway Patrol said they would try and get their staff here during before school,

lunch time, and after school; and potentially put up speed trailers.

Page 3 of 8
49



Superintendent, Charles Tracy: Yes, California Highway Patrol has made it clear that this needs to be a priority for the safety

of our students.

Hamilton High School English Teacher, Rina Gonzalez: | have seen students returning or going to the taco trucks and not
paying close enough attention to the large semi-trucks driving through Hamitton City. These trucks are large and cannot
stop easily. Sometimes it’s the drivers being distracted, sometimes it’s the kids.
Hamilton High School Counselor, Kelly Langan: On Wednesday, October 4, 2017 students will be participating in a distracte.
driving seminar in Hamilton High School Library.
Hamilton High S¢hé6l Principal, Cris Oseguera: We also periodically put announcement in the Daily Brave about safely
crossing the highway.

9.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS:
1. Boys & Girls Club Hamilton City update. (page 2-11)

a. Jessica Starkey, the Area Director presented on how the Boys & Girls Club — Hamilton City is doing.

The statistics presented are a reflection of last year, current year data is not yet available.

b. Findings of the community survey and outreach process —identified the need to develop recreational facilities and

programming for youth and seniors.
¢. Facilities and programs targeted at youth and teens, which operate both after school and in the summer:

i
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.

art/music/dance

computer literacy/language skills,
tutoring/mentorship
visual/performing arts

cooking, health, wellness, & nutrition

d. Board of Directors:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
vi.
vii.

Richard Carriere, President — Carriere Family Farms

Glenn County Sherriff's Department

Sherry Gruber — Land O’ Lakes

Merrilee Johnson —Johnson Family Farms

Gee Singh — Century 21 Jeffries Lydon & Double EE Gas & Market
Vicki Staples — Capay Farms

Chuck Tracy — Hamilton Unified School District

e. Community Involvement:

i.
iil.
iii.

Hamilton City Community Services District
Lions Club
The Women's Club

f. Our members (note: this is last year’s data, current data not yet available):

i.
iil.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vil.

200 youth registered

109 youth a day (131 per day current}

53% girls

47% boys

64% of families make less than $30,000 annually
42% live in single parent or non-two parent homes
40% Rely on Social Services

g. Mrs. Starkey also presented on what a typical week would look like at the Boys & Girls Club — Hamilton City.
h. What we accomplished in 1 year

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
vi.
vii.
viii.
ix.

Academic Success Sessions: 1389
Character & Leadership Sessions: 60
Healthy Lifestyles Sessions: 639
One to One Mentors: 13

Special Events Activities: 16

Field Trips: 31

Afterschool and Summer Days: 213
Added a supper program daily
Weekly Farmers Market: 42 weeks

i. Quote from Mom: “You make our kids feel special; | admire how giving you are to our community. In all not only
are you giving, but you sincerely do care for our kids. | know that when my children are with you they are learning,
they are loved, and they are safe. You are a blessing to this school.” - Riviera Family

50

Page 4 of 8



j.  Quote from District Reading Specialist and Literacy Coach: “You are heroes in the eyes of our students, and you are

1”

successfully teaching them that they, too, have superhero powers. On behalf of all the staff at HES, we thank youl
Jenny Firth

k. Board Member, Rosalinda Sanchez: What is an academic session?

I.  Mrs. Starkey: it relates to grade specific homework completion and accuracy. Integrate STEM for example; our
staff will speak to teachers and find out what is going on in the classroom.

m. For field trips we have a club van and have worked with Marc Eddy, Maintenance and Transportation Director and
HUSD.

n. Superintendent, Charles Tracy: There are two events coming up — lights on afterschool — programs to highlight
what kids have been doing at the program and the Champion for Kids Luncheon — November 15™.

0. Mrs. Starkey: we also serve dinner at Thanksgiving; turkey time. Last year we had enough for 300 and served over
200. The remainder was then delivered to the community.

Public Hearing. Adjourn to public hearing to solicit public input regarding the GANN Limit. Reconvene to public session.

(Diane Lyon) {page 12)

a. Start:7:31 p.m.
i. “The Gann Limit (named for Paul Gann, the author of Proposition 4 which amended the State Constitution

to establish this limit) is intended to constrain the growth in state and local government spending by
linking year-to-year changes in expenditures to changes in inflation (represented by per capita personal
income) and population (represented by average daily attendance [ADA] for schools). Established in 1979
following the enactment of Proposition 13 and subsequently amended by Proposition 111, the Gann Limit
has become a largely pro forma caiculation that no longer constrains governmental expenditures. This is
because the limit has grown significantly faster than appropriations subject to the limit.” — School Services

of California
b. End:7:32p.m.
Unaudited Actuals, presentation by Diane Lyon. (page 13-45)
13,000 approximately different. We are on the same page with the same goals.

a.
b. 8.4 million revenues, 8 million in expenditures.

¢. Ending balance is 2.6 million from 2016-17.

d. Fund 11 is Adult Education; ending balance is 93,000.

e. Fund 12 is Preschool; required to spend money every year.

f. Cafeteria fund; 266,000 beginning balance.

g. Deferred Maintenance fund — using for facilities — ending balance of 7,900. Projects; continue to budget.

h. Fund 17 special reserve fund 1,900 in revenue, beginning balance of 313,000.

i. Fund 20 special reserve fund — 1,200 all interest, no expenditures, beginning 204,000, ending balance of 205,000.
j.  Fund 25 capital facilities — developer fees; 10,000 collected; ending balance of 97,000.

k. Bond interest redemption fund; ending 176,000 fund is maintained by county office and dept. of treasury.

l.

Long-term liabilities — bond payments:
i. Board President, Gabriel Leal: was there an adjustment on the Bond?
ii. Chief Business Official, Diane Lyon: the accounts and adjustments are made at the county level.
iii. Board Member, Rosalinda Sanchez: how many bonds do we still owe on?
iv. Superintendent, Charles Tracy: one.
m. SELPA —our bill back from the county went up 80,000.
n. Superintendent, Charles Tracy: We budget at the beginning of the year, and then we find out the real bill back in
April from the county.
o. Board Member, Rod Boone: What was the final number?

p. Chief Business Official, Diane Lyon: approximately 8.5 million.
Glenn County Office of Education Recommended Revisions to HUSD 2017-18 LCAP, L. Anderson. (page 46)

a. Revisions are grammatical in nature and are expanded for clarification.

Local Control Accountability Plan Update and Information, L. Anderson (handout).

a. 7:59 p.m. Mrs. Anderson updated the public and the board on our LCAP and our goals aligned to the 8 state
priorities. This year we will write the plan for next school year.

b. Mrs. Anderson also reviewed the California School Dashboard; 10 indicators to measure performance, 6 state and
4 local.

i. State:
1. College and career: percent of students prepared for college and career.

2. Graduation rate: percent of students who earn a regular high school diploma.

Page 50f8
51



10.0

52

10.

11.

12.
13.
i4.

15.
16.
17.

18.
19.
20.

21.

22.
23.
24.

25.
26.
27.
28.

28.

”

3. Academics — ELA and math: distance from the lowest score needed for “Standard Met.
4. English Learner Progress: percent of English Learners making one year’s progress.
5. Chronic absenteeism.
6. Suspension rate: percent of students who were suspended.
ii. Local:

1. Basic conditions

2. Implementation of academic standards

3. Parent engagement

4. School climate
c. Board Member, Wendall Lower: How is the Academic Parent Teacher Teams (APTT) working out?
d. TOSA, Leslie Anderson: They are going quite well; almost all teachers at K-5 level are participating.
Resolution 17-18-104 adopting a Conflict of Interest Code. (page 47-56)
Second reading of Board Policy 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan (for regular manual maintenance). (page 57-
59)
Second reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3260 Fees and Charges (for regular manual
maintenance). (page 57-59) e
Second reading of Administrative Regulation 4112.22 Staff Teaching English Learners (for reqular manual
maintenance). {page 57-59)
Second reading of Exhibit 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 Employee Notifications (for regular manual maintenance). (page 57-
59)
Second reading of Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1 Personal lllness/Injury Leave (for reqular manual
maintenance). (page 57-59)
Second reading of Board Policy 5111 Admission (for regular manual maintenance). (page 57-59)
Second reading of Board Policy 5111.1 District Residency (for regular manual maintenance). {page 57-59)
Second reading of Board Poiicy and Administrative Regulation 5113 Absences and Excuses (for regular manual
maintenance). (page 57-59)
Second reading of Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications (for regular manual maintenance). (page 57-59)
First reading of Board Policy 5148.2 Before/After School Programs (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Administrative Regulation 5148.2 Before/After Schoo! Programs {for regular manual maintenance).
(page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 6111 School Calendar {for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 6117 Year-Round Schedules (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 6142.2 World/Foreign Language Instruction (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-
62)
First reading of Administrative Regulation 6142.2 World/Foreign Language Instruction (for regular manual
maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 6144 Controversial Issues (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 6174 Education for English Learners (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Administrative Regulation 6174 Education for English Learners (for regular manual maintenance). (page
60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 6176 Weekend/Saturday Classes (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 2121 Superintendent’s Contract (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)
First reading of Administrative Regulation 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures (for regular manual maintenance).
{page 60-62)
First reading of Board Policy 1340 Access to District Records (for regular manual maintenance). (page 60-62)

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

No public comment.

Page 60f 8



11.0

12.0

ACTION ITEMS:
1. Board Resolution 17-18-103 GANN Limit. (page 12)

Motion for approval by Wendall Lower, seconded by Tomas Loera. Motion Carried: 4-0
Loera: Aye Boone: Aye

Leal: Aye Lower: Aye

Sanchez: Absent

2. Unaudited Actuals Report, 2016. (page 13-45)

Motion for approval by Tomas Loera, seconded by Wendall Lower. Motion Carried: 4-0
Loera: Aye Boone: Aye

Leal: Aye Lower: Aye

Sanchez: Absent

3. Resolution 17-18-104 adopting a Conflict of Interest Code. (page 47-56)

Motion for approval by Rod Boone, seconded by Wendall Lower. Motion Carried: 4-0
Loera: Aye Boone: Aye

Leal: Aye Lower: Aye

Sanchez: Absent

4. Second reading of (page 57-59):
i. Board Policy 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan.

ii. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3260 Fees and Charges.
iii. Administrative Regulation 4112.22 Staff Teaching English Learners.
iv. Exhibit 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 Employee Notifications.
v. Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4261.1/4361.1 Personal lllness/Injury Leave.
vi. Board Policy 5111 Admission.

vii. Board Policy 5111.1 District Residency.

vili. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5113 Absences and Excuses.
ix. Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications.

Motion for approval by Rod Boone, seconded by Tomas Loera. Motion Carried: 4-0
Loera: Aye Boone: Aye

Leal: Aye Lower: Aye

Sanchez: Absent

CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.
There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the
Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.
1. Warrants and Expenditures. (page 63-93)
2. Williams Quarterly Report. (page 94)
3. Glenn County Office of Education — Teacher Resources for Enhancing Education (TREE), Agreement for Library Media
Services from the TREE 2017-18. {page 95-99)
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting on August 23, 2017. (page 100-106)
Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Minutes for May 11, 2017. (page 107-108)
Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Agenda for August 10, 2017. (page 109)
Dua! Immersion Leadership Team Minutes for: September 7, 2017. (page 110-111)
Hamilton High School Site Council Meeting Agenda for: September 12, 2017. {page 112)
Hamilton High School pilot course offerings for the 2017-18 school year. (page 113-114})
a. Dance (Mr. Jarvis)
10. Hamilton High School 2017-18 Field Trips. (page 115)
11. Hamilton High School 2017-18 Scheduled Fundraisers. (page 116)
12. Interdistrict Transfers (new only) (elementary students reapply annually).
a. Out
i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. None

©® NG

Page 7 of 8
53




ii. Hamilton High School
1. None

i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. 8" GradeX1
ii. Hamilton High School
1. 9" Grade X3
2. 10" Gradex 1
13. Personnel Actions as Presented:
a. New hires:

i. Asha Mundo Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard
b. Resignations/Retirement:
i. LeroyZambrano Girls Soccer Coach

fi. Anthony "Tony" Longueria Boys Soccer Coach

Motion for approval by Tomas Loera, seconded by Wendall Lower.

HES

HHS
HHS

Motion Carried: 4-0

Loera: Aye Boone: Aye
Leal: Aye Lower: Aye
Sanchez: Absent

13.0 ADJOURNMENT: 8:22 p.m.

Wendall Lower, Clerk

Charles Tracy, Superintendent

Page 8 of 8

54




HES School Site Council Minutes for September 14, 2017

10/12/17

Item 1: Call to Order 7:40

Item 2:

Staff Present: Leslie Anderson, Charles Tracy, Chuy Llamas, Maria Elena Alvarez, Maggie Sawyer,
Dianna Ortiz, Jennifer Firth, Kathy Thomas

Parents Present: Genaro Reyes, Lenia Garcia, Maria Guadalupe Barranco, Ray Villar (Via Phone)

item 3: Verification of Posting of Agenda. Agenda posted 9/8/17

Item 4: Public Comment: CSU Healthy Communities coming next Saturday to refresh campus paintings.
PTO meeting cancelled, rescheduled to following Tuesday.

Item 5: Approval of Minutes: Genaro Reyes made motion to approve September minutes. Lenia Garcia
seconded, minutes approves. Minutes passed.

Item 6: New Members Welcomed

Item 7: Voting of new officers

Leslie made nomination for Genaro as SSC President. Chuy seconded, motion passed. Genaro
Reyes President

Chuy made nomination for Leslie as SSC Vice Chair. Maria Elena seconded, motion passed. Leslie
Anderson Vice Chair

Leslie nominated Dianna for SSC Secretary. Genaro seconded, motion passed. Dianna Ortiz
Secretary.

Ray nominated for Parliamentarian. Lenia seconded, motion passed. Ray Villar, Parliamentarian.

Item 8: Lenia made motion for meeting dates as second Thursday of the month at 7:40 AM. Ray
seconded, motion passed. New time will be 7:40 AM every second Thursday of the month.

Item 9: L. Anderson reviewed budget.

ltem 10: C. Tracy reviewed safety plan and goals.

ltem 11: M. Sawyer gave update on Language Options night. Maggie spoke about the process of
selection for our Leadership Dual Immersion Team. All HES was contacted via email whether they had
interest in being a part of the team. Next meeting dates are as follows and are subject to change:

2 Language Options Night 9/26/17 at 6 PM

3rd [ anguage Options Night 10/23/17 at 6 PM

55



56

Item 12: Genaro Reyes made motion to approve funding for classroom headphones for daily use. Not to
exceed [11,000. Chuy Llamas seconded. Motion passed.

Item 13: Maria Elena Alvarez made motion to approve increase in daily Paraeducator position hours
from 2.75 hrs. to 3.75 hrs. Lenia seconded, motion passed.

Iltem 14: Ray Villar made motion to postpone site budget for discussion during next meeting, Genaro
Reyes seconded. Action item postponed for October meeting.

Chuy made motion to adjourn meeting at 8:30 AM. Genaro seconded, meeting adjourned.



ORDER OF BUSINESS

Item1

Item 2

Item 3

ltem4

Item 5

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Item 6

Item7
Item 8
Item 9

ACTION ITEMS
Item 10

Item 11
ftem12

ADJOURMENT

Hamiilton Elementary School
277 Capay Avenue = P.O.Box 277
Hamilton City, CA 95951-0277
School Office (530) 826-3474 - Fax (530) 826-0419
District Office (530) 826-3261

Hamilton Elementary School
School Site Council Meeting

Thursday October 12, 2017 7:30 AM
Hamilton Elementary School—Conference Room 204

Agenda

Call to Order

Establish Quorum (3 HES Staff, 2 Parents/Community Members)
Staff Present:
Parents Present:

Verification of Posting of the Agenda—72 Hours in Advance
Anticipated posting by October 6, 2017

Public Comment
This is the time for members of the audience to present items not on the Agenda. Comments should be limited
to @ maximum of three minutes duration. The SSC is prohibited by State Law from taking action on any item

presented if it is not listed on the Agenda.

Approval of Minutes—({5 minutes.)
September 14, 2017 {Attachment #1)

Summary of Categorical Funding Sources (Anderson)

Title I: SWP, 90% of HES students qualify for Free&Reduced Lunch. Purposes of the
funds are to enhance instruction. {Anticipate 15% cut to funding)

Title I: Used for professional development, can be used district wide.

Title IIl; Used for migrant students and EL students, can be used district wide.

Title VI: Used to assist rural districts in meeting progress goals established by

California State Board of Education (LCAP) as it replaces AP| (state) and AYP
{federal). Can be used district wide. Not always funded for our district.

Budget Expenditures to date (Reyes)
Dual Language Implementation Update (Sawyer/Anderson)
Standards Based Report Card (K-5) Update (Firth)

Approve Safety Plan: Review Goals (Tracy) See Attachment
Approve HES Site Budget provided at the August SSC meeting. (Tracy)
Approve ESGI Software ($875) TK-1 (Carter, Heffley, Ortiz, Alvarez, Cox)

By 8:30 AM

57



58

Hamilton High School
ELAC/School Site Council Minutes
September 12, 2017

Present: Tate Gruenwald; John Hironimus; Erin Johnson; Kelly Langan; Ofelia Flores; Jose
Mendez; Briando Contreras; Cristina Rios; Giovanni Martinez; Vicky Casillas; Patricia Hernandez;
Mary Hansen; Raquel Bocast; Kristy Eden; Maria Reyes; Cris Oseguera

Meeting called to order at 3:40pm in HHS Library by Chair Mary Hansen.
Motion to approve agenda by EJ; Second by jH. Passed
No Public Comment or additions to agenda.

Item 1- 2017-18 meeting times and dates- discussion to have the second Tuesday of each
month be the meeting date- request for change if needed at a later meeting. Motion to have
second Tuesday of each month, except if not a meeting month, as meeting time by EJ; Second
by JH. Passed. Next Meeting- October 10; November 14.

Iltem 2-Discussion of site council structure, responsibilities, and officers. Mary Hansen is Chair;
John Hironimus is Vice-Chair; Secretary is Mr. Oseguera; Sgt. At Arms- Kristy Eden; Interim ELAC
Rep- Maria Reyes

Item 3- HHS testing results were shared by Mr. Oseguera and indicated that HHS CAASPP scores
remain the highest in Glenn County at the “Exeeded” level in English and Math! Congratulations
to our students and our staff on their continued achievements! Also, scores were higher than
all high schools in Glenn, Colusa, and Tehama Counties as well as some Butte County schools.
Report out also on HHS AP test results- increase in AP Calculus; all passed in AP Spanish; AP
English slight increase; and a decline in AP US History.

item 4- School Safety Plan Report. Goals will be reviewed next meeting. Plan must be
reviewed and updated as needed each school year. SSC is the recommending body.

Item 5- CELDT/ELD Report by Maria Reyes. Six students reclassified last school year. 19 EL’s at
HHS this school year. CELDT is going away after 2107-2018. Only will be testing initial identified
EL students with CELDT this year. A new test, ELPAC, will be utilized in Spring 2018- it is
supposed to be much more difficult.

Item 6- New HHS 8 period Schedule. Kelly Langan reported on the true block schedule that we
have at HHS this year. Additionally, the 6-8 grade students have an identical schedule to HHS.
This new schedule will mean more credits needed for graduation beginning with 2018-19
seniors (prorated). This schedule will also mean more opportunities for electives and several
were added to schedule as well as more college class opportunities for students as BC or CSUC.
Thus far going well.

Announcements- Parent Teacher conferences on Sept. 21; College and Scholarship Parent Info
Night on Sept. 13; Homecoming Week.

Adjourn- 4:21pm.
Next Meeting — October 10, 2017 at 3:40pm in HHs Library.



Hamilton High School
Site Council Meeting
Tuesday October 10, 2017
Library- 3:40pm

I. Call to Order: (time)
I Approve agenda:
Ill.  Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting

Public Comment: Public invite of items not listed/Public Comment:

This is the time for members of the audience to present items not on the
Agenda. Comments should be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes
duration. The SSC is prohibited by California state law from taking any action on
any item presented if it is not listed on the Agenda.

IV.  Non-Agenda Items:

1.

2.

3.

V. Items:

1. School Safety Plan Report and Info
a. School Data-graduation; discipline
b. School Goals-2016-2017 safety plan goals (review)

2. Technology- M.Reyes

3. Dress Code-M. Reyes Recommendation

4. Recommendations for CRBG

V. Other/Announcements
a. PSAT Test- October 11
b. Cash 4 College- October 14
c. Campus Tours- October 17-18
d. 100" Anniversary Celebrations

VIl.  Adjourn

59



California Department of Education
ANNUAL FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fiscal Year 2016-17

Project | California Career Technical Education Incentive Funding CTEIG
Title: | Grant (CTEIG) Source:

LEA Name
(no
acronyms,
please):

Hamilton Unified - Glenn

CDS No: | 11765620000000

CTEIG
Coordinator | Janice Lohse
Name:

Funding | 7/1/15-6/30/19 .

CERTIFICATION

| certify that the expenditures reported on pages two and three of this form have been made, that
all obligations have been liquidated, and that this project has been conducted in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. The approved application for this project, including any

approved amendments, and full records of receipts and expenditures have been maintained and

are available for audit.

Printed Name and Title of

Superintendent or
Designee: Charles Tracy, Superintendent

Signature of ]
Superintendent/Designee: 6}7’% Date: % W
7o

Email the completed form to CTEIncentive@cde.ca.gov. Please put CTEIG Fiscal Report in the
subject line. Failure to submit this report by the due date will put the grantee at-risk of losing

current and future CTEIG funding.

h ]

For California Department of Education USE ONLY
All grant requirements have been met.

Date:

Reviewed By:

60 Page 1 of 7



California Department of Education

ANNUAL FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORT
Fiscal Year 2016-17

A. EXPENDITURE SUMMARIES BY GRANT PHASE — Round 1

wummarize expenditures from each round of CTEIG funding for the fiscal year 7/1/2016-6/30/2017.

if all grant expenditures are zero, the district MUST still report matching funds. Matching funds can be from any
of the following: Perkins, CA Partnership Academies, Ag Incentive Grant, Local Control Funding Formula, or
any other CTE dedicated funding. CA Career Pathways Trust Funding cannot be used as matching funds.

If the LEA was a new grantee in 2016-17, only report grant expenditures for Round 2.

STEP 1: Complete the table below for Round 1 funding (Start date July 1, 2015, End date June 30, 2019). The
table will automatically total numbers entered into the table. Fiscal year 2015-16 expenditures should match

the fiscal report completed in October 2016.

Round 1 Round 1
Matching Matching
Round 1 Funds Round 1 Funds
Year 1 Year 1 Year 2 Year 2
2015-16 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17
All matching All matching
funds must be funds must be
. | goal coded goal coded
Expenditures | 3800 or 6000 Expenditures | 3800 or 6000
Object
ade | Object Code Title
Certified Personnel
1000 | Salaries 1,037 159,590 12,100 159,590
Classified-Personnel
2000 | Salaries 91.99 2,860 2,860
3000 | Employee Benefits 5,000 1,880.01 5,000
4000 | Books and Supplies 8,000 8,000
Services and Other
5000 | Operating Expenditures 12,000 12,000
6000 | Capital Outlay 0 0
7000 | Indirect Costs* 0 0
TOTAL SPENT: $1,128.99 $187,450.00 $13,980.01 $187,450.00

STEP 2: Complete the Expenditure Narrative describing how Round 1 funding was spent.

A sample narrative can be found on the last page. DO NOT submit this page with your report.

61
Page 2 of 7



California Department of Education
ANNUAL FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fiscal Year 2016-17

Round 1 EXPENDITURE NARRATIVE: Write a brief description for each of the line item grant
expenditures descrlbmg specmcally how these funds were spent. REQUIRED: Indicate the source of the

rvaatahirnsa fiindas na flirtlar Aabaillic Aars r\r\r\ﬁr\h fﬁm ﬁﬂﬁ"‘ﬂr\ilﬂﬂ fiinAs
1HIaLdin IH 14Ut IUO! 11\ lul LITI UTLAIlD QIT TICVUUCWU TV LAl il Iu Ul 9.
Pojest ive Examples of CTEIG Expenditures f
Code Narrative Examples o IG Expenditures for Round 1
1000 | Certified Salaries: 16-17 Stipend paid for CTE events, workshops, grant management, and barn
plans.

1 substitute teacher day.
Source(s) of Matching Funds: | CTE teacher salaries.

2000 | Classified Salaries: 15-16 stipend paid for business manager. Examples of duties include A/P, A/R,
P/R, and budgeting.

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

3000 | Employee Benefits: Corresponding benefits for above salaries.

Source(s) of Matching Funds: | Benefits for CTE teachers.

4000 | Books and Supplies: | None expended to date.

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

5000 | Services and Other None expended to date.
Operating Expenses:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

6000 | Capital Outlay: None expended to date.

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

7000 | Indirect Cost (notto | None expended to date.
exceed CDE
approved rate):
Source(s) of Matching Funds:

Email the completed form to CTEIncentive@cde.ca.gov. Please put CTEIG Fiscal Report in the
subject line. Failure to submit this report by the due date will put the grantee at-risk of losing current

and future CTEIG funding.

62
Page 3 of 7



California Department of Education
ANNUAL FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fiscal Year 2016-17

B. EXPENDITURE SUMMARIES BY GRANT PHASE — Round 2

summarize expenditures from each round of CTEIG funding for the fiscal year 7/1/2016-6/30/2017.

If all grant expenditures are zero, the district MUST still report matching funds. Matching funds can be from any
of the following: Perkins, CA Partnership Academies, Ag Incentive Grant, Local Control Funding Formula, or
any other CTE dedicated funding. CA Career Pathways Trust Funding cannot be used as matching funds.

If the LEA was a new grantee in 2016-17, only report grant expenditures for Round 2.

STEP 1: Complete the table below for Round 2 funding (Start date July 1, 2016, End date June 30,

2019).
Round 2
Round 2 Matching Funds
Year 1 Year 1
2016-17 2016-17
All matching funds
3 must be goal coded
' Expenditures | 3800 or 6000
Object

Code | Object Code Title

Certified Personnel
1000 | Salaries

Classified Personnel
2000 | Salaries
3000 | Employee Benefits
4000 | Books and Supplies

Services and Other
5000 | Operating Expenditures
6000 | Capital Outlay
7000 | Indirect Costs*

TOTAL SPENT:

STEP 2: Complete the Expenditure Narrative describing how Round 2 funding was spent. Matching funds
must be reported even if TOTAL SPENT = $0.

# ~ample narrative can be found on the last page. DO NOT submit this page with your report.

63
Page 4 of 7



California Department of Education
ANNUAL FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fiscal Year 2016-17

Round 2 EXPENDITURE NARRATIVE: Write a brief description for each of the line item grant

expenditures describing specifically how these funds were spent. REQUIRED: Indicate the source of the
matching funds; no further detaiis are needed for matching funds.

Object

Code

Narrative Examples of CTEIG Expenditures for Round 2

1000

Certified Salaries:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

2000

Classified Salaries:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

3000

Employee Benefits:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

4000

Books and Supplies:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

5000

Services and Other
Operating Expenses:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

6000

Capital Outlay:

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

7000

Indirect Cost (not to
exceed CDE
approved rate):

Source(s) of Matching Funds:

Email the completed form to CTEIncentive@cde.ca.gov. Please put CTEIG Fiscal Report in the
subject line. Failure to submit this report by the due date will put the grantee at-risk of losing current

and future CTEIG funding.

64

Page 5 of 7



California Department of Education
ANNUAL FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE REPORT

Fiscal Year 2016-17

.. Carryover Funding Plan
. 1ease describe plans to spend carryover funds prior to the June 30, 2019 funding deadline. Provide enough
detail as needed to demonstrate a clear plan for spending down grant dollars such as timelines, proposed

purchases and professional development activities.

The CTEIG funds from this grant are being carried over to be allocated for the purchase of a Hog Barn and
Equipment Storage Barn for the Agriculture and Natural Resources Industry Sector at Hamilton High School.
Money from all three terms will go toward this project. The project should be constructed during the summer of
2018. Below is a sketch of the proposed project. The first two terms of funding have acceptance and approval of

the expenditure from the California Department of Education.

G S
e

i i B

——n \ R

f20-0r \
EASTAVEST IYP ELEVATION
&* Cagt in Place conpiota well

NORTH ELEVATION

112

| T

=yl

oy
ul

Page 6 of 7



66

L)
g@% BUTTE-GLENN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
o — 3 3536 Butte Campus Drive, Oroville, CA 95965
NG /o i
soz 0 ALLOCATION AGREEMENT
FOR

ADULT EDUCATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM

This Allocation Agreement (“"Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Butte-Glenn Community College
District ("District”), a political subdivision of the State of California, on behalf of its Career and Technical
Education Department ("Department”) and Hamilton Unified School District (“Consortium Member”), for the
Consortium Member to perform the work which is more particularly set forth in this Agreement and in the Exhibits
attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District has been apportioned funds under an Adult Education Block Grant Regional Consortium
Funding Appropriation Agreement from the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office ("Sponsor™),
Allocation Number 17-328-004, ("Prime Agreement”), for the purpose of implementing the program entitled Adult
Education Block Grant Program established by Education Code Sections 84900 ("Program”).

WHEREAS, the Butte-Glenn Adult Education Consortium ("BGAE Consortium”) has been approved by the
California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office for the REGION adult education region.

WHEREAS, Consortium Member is a community college district, school district, or county office of education,
located within the boundaries of the adult education region, and agrees to participate in the BGAE Consortium in
accordance with the rules and procedures as approved by Sponsor and set forth in the BGAE Consortium’s
Consortia Report on Governance Compliance of Rules and Procedures;

WHEREAS, the District has been designated to seive as th
distribute funds from the Program; and

m

ws}
(9]
I
m
(@)
(=)

WHEREAS, the BGAE Consortium has approved a Funding Distribution Schedule that includes the amount of
funds to be distributed to each member of the consortium by fiscal year, and a narrative justifying how the
planned allocations are consistent with the adult education plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. STATEMENT OF WORK. The Consortium Member shall perform the work set forth in Exhibit A, Statement
of Work, (hereinafter referred to as “Work™), which shall be in accordance with the BGAE Consortium Adult

Education Plan, Exhibit A Attachment 1.

2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE. The period of performance for this Agreement shall commence on July 1,
2017 and shall expire on June 30, 2018, unless extended by written amendment to this Agreement or
terminated sooner in accordance with the termination provisions of this Agreement.

3. KEY PERSONNEL. The Consortium Member’s performance under this Agreement shall be under the
direction of Consortium Member’s Designated Official, Charles Tracy, who is considered essential to the Work.
Substitutions or substantial reductions in Charles Tracy level of effort will be only for compelling reasons and with
the prior written approval of the District's Authorized Representative for Technical Matters.

The District’s Project Director for its Prime Agreement is: Tessa Miley.

4. ALLOCATION OF FUNDS. The total amount of funds made available for payment to Consortium Member
for work performed under this Agreement are allocated at $194,225. The allocated amount is fixed and based
upon the amounts detailed in Exhibit B, Funding Distribution Schedule. In no event shall the District be liable for
payment to Consortium Member which would result in cumulative payment under this Agreement exceeding the
total allocated funds unless this Agreement is modified in writing in accordance with this Agreement.

BGCCD- ALLOCATION AGREEMENT ADULT ED BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (12/15) Page 1



5. ALLOWABLE COSTS. The allowability of costs under this Agreement shall be determined in accordance
with (1) the terms of this Agreement, (2) the terms of the Prime Agreement, and (3) California Education Code

Section 84913, in that order of precedence.

6. BUDGET. The Budget, as detailed in Exhibit A Attachment 1, lists costs and categories of costs approved
to fund the Consortium Member’s performance of the Work. The administrative requirements for approval of
rebudgeting will be governed by the policies indicated in the Prime Agreement, Exhibit C. Approval request
related to the aforementioned will be reviewed and, if appropriate, approved by the District’s Project Director.

7. INVOICING. The Consortium Member shall submit an invoice for advance payment of allocated funds to,
and for approval by, the District’s Authorized Representative for Business Matters upon execution of this
Agreement. Consortium Member’s invoice should include: Prime Agreement number, Program title, and the

period for which funding is being requested.

8. PAYMENT. Payment of the total amount of funds allocated under this Agreement shall be made upon
receipt of invoice by the District. Payment shall be contingent upon the receipt of funding from the Sponsor under
the Prime Agreement and upon the Consortium Member’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. All payments shall be subject to correction and adjustment upon audit or any disallowance. The
Consortium Member is solely responsible for reimbursing the District for amounts paid the Consortium Member
but (i) disallowed under the terms of this Agreement, or (ii) upon termination of this Agreement, unexpended or

unobligated balance of funds advanced.

9. SEPARATE ACCOUNTING. The Consortium Member will establish a separate account for all funds
specified in this Agreement and will use the funds as allowed under the Program pursuant to Education Code
Section 84913 to perform the Work specified in this Agreement. As applicable, the Consortium Member shall also
establish and maintain such accounting and documentation of matching expenditures of the Consortium Member

to satisfy the requirements of the Sponsor.

10. USE OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. The Consortium Member will furnish the facilities and equipment
necessary to perform and complete the Work under this Agreement, and District has rights to inspect facilities

furnished.

11. AUDIT. The District, the Sponsor, the California State Auditor, any other appropriate government agency
authorized by law, or their duly authorized representatives shall, until three (3) years after the expiration date of
this Agreement, have access to any of the Consortium Member’s records related to this Agreement, at the
Consortium Member’s regular place of business, for the purpose of conducting audits. The period of access for
records relating to (1) appeals under a dispute, (2) litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance
of this Agreement, or (3) costs and expenses of this Agreement to which exception has been taken shall continue
until such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions are disposed of.

12. PROGRESS REPORTS. The Consortium Member shall furnish the District with regular reports of findings
and progress made under this Agreement. The reports should provide an assessment of what has been
accomplished during the reporting period, and sufficient budget details and information to show that costs are
reasonable and necessary (line-item budget and narrative). A form satisfactory to the District shall be used to
submit the progress reports, and the report must be signed by Consortium Member’s Designated Official. The
reports shall be submitted quarterly to the District's Project Director.

13. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. For the purpose of this Agreement, the individuals identified below
are hereby designated representatives of the respective parties.

For the District. Technical Matters: Tessa Miley
NFNRC Chair
Butte-Glenn Community College District
3536 Butte Campus Dr.
Oroville, CA 95965

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT ADULT ED BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (12/15) Page 2

67



68

Business Matters: Tessa Miley
NFNRC Chair
Butte-Gienn Community Coiiege District
3536 Butte Campus Dr.
Oroville, CA 95965

Authorized Official: Andrew B. Suleski
Vice President for Administration
SAS-320
Butte-Glenn Community Coilege District
3536 Butte Campus Drive
Oroville, CA 95965

For the Consortium Technical Matters: Charles Tracy

Member. Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School District
620 Canal St., PO Box 488
Hamilton City CA 95951

Business Matters: Diane Lyon
Hamilton Unified School District
620 Canal St., PO Box 488
Hamilton City CA 95951

Authorized Official: Charles Tracy
Superintendent

Hamilton Unified School District
620 Cana! St. PO Box 488

Hamilton City CA 95951

14. PRIME AGREEMENT. The Work is subject to the applicable “flow-down” provisions of Exhibit C, the Prime
Agreement terms and conditions.

15. PRECEDENCE. The order of precedence for interpretation shall be this Agreement then the Prime
Agreement.

16. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. The Consortium Member by signing this Agreement agrees to be bound by
the Prime Agreement’s terms and conditions that govern intellectual Property Rights to the same extent as
District is bound. Consortium Member agrees to provide a copy of any intellectual property disclosures and/or
reports required of the Prime Award to District’s Project Director.

17. PUBLICATIONS. The Consortium Member shall be free to publish results of the Work provided that the
terms of the Prime Agreement are met and the review copies of materials intended for publication are submitted
to the District’s Project Director at least 45 days prior to publication.

18. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. For the purpose of this Agreement and all work and services specified
herein, the parties shall be, and shall be deemed to be, independent contractors and not agents or employees of

the other party.

19. ASSIGNMENT. The Consortium Member may not assign, transfer or Agreement any part of this
Agreement, any interest herein or claims hereunder, without the prior, written approval of the District and

Sponsor.

20. CANCELLATION. Either party may at any time cance! this Agreement, with or without cause, by giving
thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party which shall commence on the date of mailing of the
written notice by certified mail or personal delivery. Thereafter, this Agreement shall become null and void except

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT ADULT ED BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (12/15) Page 3



for the portion or portions of payment herein agreed upon for which expenses have been necessarily incurred in
the performance of this Agreement.

21. APPROPRIATED FUNDS. The continuation of this Agreement shall be subject to sufficient appropriated
funds being received by District to administer and support the Program. In the event sufficient funds are not
available or are discontinued at any time, the District may immediately cancel this Agreement by delivering

written notice to the Consortium Member.

22. GENERAL RELEASE. The Consortium Member's acceptance of payment of the final invoice under this
Agreement shall release the District from all claims of the Consortium Member, and from all liability to the
Consortium Member concerning the Work, except where such claims or liabilities arise from any negligent act,

error or omission of the District.

23. USE OF NAME. Neither the Consortium Member nor the District shall make use of this Agreement, or use
the other’s name or that of any member of the other’s staff for publicity or advertising purposes without prior
written approval of the other party. This restriction shall not include internal documents available to the public

that identify the existence of the Agreement.

24. CHANGES. By mutual written consent, the Consortium Member and the District may make changes to
the Work and to the terms of this Agreement. Any such changes shall be in the form of a written amendment
signed by authorized representatives of the Consortium Member and the District.

25. INDEMNIFICATION.

25.1. Consortium Member shall defend, indemnify and hold District, its officers, employees, and agents
harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense (includirig reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for
injury or damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement but only in proportion to and to the extent
such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees or claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions or willful misconduct of Consortium Member, its officers, employees, or

agents.

25.2. District shall defend, indemnify and hold Consortium Member, its officers, agents, and employees
harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for
injury or damages arising out of the performance of this Agreement but only in proportion to and to the extent

such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees or claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions or willful misconduct of District, its officers, employees or agents.

25.3. This indemnification provisidn shall survive termination of the Agreement and remain in effect.

26. INSURANCE. Consortium Member at its sole cost and expense, shall insure its activities in connection
with this Agreement and maintain in force for the duration of this Agreement insurance policies and requirements

as follows:

26.1. Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily
injury, property damage, personal injury, products and completed operations, and blanket contractual coverage.

26.2. Automobile Liability insurance with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per accident for
bodily injury and property damage with respect to the Consortium Member’s owned, hired, and non-owned

vehicles.
26.3. Workers” Compensation insurance as required under California State law.

26.4. Employer’s Liability insurance with limits of not less $1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 each
employee, $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury or disease.

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT ADULT ED BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (12/15) Page 4

69



70

26.5. Professional Liability insurance covering acts, errors, mistakes, and omissions arising out of the work or
services performed by Consortium Member, or any person employed by the Agreement, with a limit of not less

ol 4 AAN NANN - L i
Ulall $J.',UUU',UUU cdadil Lidltil.

26.6. Such other insurance in such amounts which from time to time may be reasonably required by the
mutual consent of the District and the Consortium Member against other insurable risks relating to performance

of this Agreement.

26.7. Insurance shall be issued by an insurance company(ies) licensed in California with a current A.M. Best
rating of A:VII or better. The coverage referred to under 26.1 and 26.2 of this Section shall be endorsed to name
“Butte-Glenn Community College District, its trustees, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers” as additional
insureds as their interest may appear. All insurance policies shall be endorsed to provide for thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the District of cancellation, suspension, or any material change of the required
insurance coverage. If any insurance policy(ies) required by this Agreement is(are) written on a “claims made”
basis: (i} the retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the Agreement or the beginning of
Work; and (ii) insurance shall be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least three (3)
years following termination of this Agreement. The Consortium Member’s insurance must be primary, and any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District shall not contribute to it. The coverages required under this
Section shall not limit the Consortium Member’s liability. If any part of this Agreement is assigned or
subconracted, these insurance requirements also apply to all assignees and subcontractors. The Consortium
Member may fulfill its insurance obligations under this paragraph by self-insurance pursuant to an established
plan operated in accordance with accepted insurance practices. Prior to commencing Work under this Agreement,
Consortium Member shall furnish District with certificates of insurance and original endorsements evidencing the

coverage, limits, and conditions required by this Agreement.

27. EQUIPMENT. Upon termination of this Agreement, equipment furnished or purchased by the District for
the Program shall be retained by the District, and equipment furnished or purchased by the Consortium Member
shall be retained by the Consortium Member, unless otherwise restricted by the Prime Agreement.

TSIt Uy

28. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Consortium Member shall not hire or contract with any officer or employee of
District or any member of their immediate family to perform any service covered by this Agreement. Consortium
Member warrants that no officer or employee of District has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in
Consortium Member. Any question which may arise during the performance of this Agreement regarding a
possible conflict of interest shall be referred to District for adjudication.

29. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed by applicable federal laws and
State of California laws.

30. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement is the complete agreement of the Consortium Member and the
District and supersedes all prior understandings regarding the Work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the respective parties have executed this Agreement on the dates indicated below.
BUTTE-GLENN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

' UNFIED
ay: o (T

(Signature of Authorized Official of District.) (Signature of authorized official of Consortium Member. )

— ’.-“"-‘-—
Name: Andrew B. Suleski Name: G’H P{/ZLL‘_B JW
Title: Vice President for Administration Title: eSuP ERLZT TR EMEU'T/ z
Date: Date: ? /C;// 177 .

7

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT ADULT ED BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (12/15) Page 5



Exhibits

A Statement of Work

B Consortium Funds Distribution Schedule
C Prime Agreement

B s 4y P S O Tﬁf@&guiﬁnw' \ -Drsrmﬂmw
“The person preparing this contract must eamplete this ection ansl obidin appropriate inliia approved.
Initiating Department: | CTE | Preparer's Name & ID: | Delia Go | Phone: 1_2900
Vendor Name: Hamilton Unified School District Vendor ID: | 3000227
PO Description (Max. 25 characters): ] 2017-18 Aduit Ed Block Grant Allocation
Budget Code: | 12.402.500.1.601000.55100 | PO Amount: | $194,225
Contract Monitor Name (Person Who Approves Invoices): | Tessa Miley | Phone: } X2894
Dept. Dean/Director Initials: Dept. Vice President Initials:
Business Contracts Approval: Purchase Order Number:

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT ADULT ED BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (12/15)

Page 6



72

ALLOCATION AGREEMENT

ADULT EDUCATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM
EXHIBIT A

STATEMENT OF WORK

1. Scope of Work and Deliverables.

Consortium Member shall furnish all the necessary services, qualified personnel, material, equipment, and
facilities not otherwise provided by District as needed to perform the work as set forth below:

The Work specifically set forth in the the Aduit Education Pian, Exhibit A Attachment 1.

2. Period of Performance.

The period of performance for this SOW will start on July 1, 2017 and end on June 30, 2018.

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT AEBG PROGRAM EXA (12-15) Page EXA-1



ALLOCATION AGREEMENT
ADULT EDUCATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM

EXHIBIT A
ATTACHMENT 1
ADULT EDUCATION PLAN
DATED: 8-14-17
Page EXA2-1

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT AEBG PROGRAM EXA ATCH2 (12-15)

73



. AEBG Web Portal https://acbg knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/annual-plans-17-18/ed...

74
1of7

04 Butte-Glenn | Consortium 2017-18 Annual Plan

INSTRUCTIONS: The form below has been partially completed based on information provided from your prior year's
Consortium Annual Plan. Please carefully review and update each section. You may save your progress by clicking
the Save button at the bottom of the page. As you coordinate with your member agencies to complete your annual
plan, you are encouraged refer to the planning materials provided by the AEBG office located on the AEBG website

here: http://aebg.cccco.edu/For-AEBG-Grantees/Reporting-Tool-Kit (http:/aebg.cccco.edu/For-AEBG-Grantees
. /Reporting-Tool-Kit).

Click on the Section 1: Plans & Goals header to begin.

Section 1: Plans & Goals -

Executive Summary

Please provide an Executive Summary of your consortium’s implementation plan for the 2017— 18 Program
Year. In your summary, please include a narrative justifying how the planned allocations are consistent with
your three-year adult education plan, a clear and concise description of your consortium’s vision,
accomplishments made during the prior Program Year, and primary goals for the upcoming Program Year.
(Limit: 500 words)

The Butte Glenn Adult Education Consortium helps adults learn the basic academic and work
readiness skills needed to become employed and increase their career opportunities. Through our
network of participating school districts, educational providers, workforce development, and
human services organizations, we connect adults in Butte and Glenn Counties to educational
programs that meet employer needs, enabling our students and our region to grow and thrive.
During the 16-17 fiscal year the consortium grew its ABE, ASE, Basic Skills and ESL offerings to
underserved locations by opening a new location in Chico, CA and expanding its HSD/GED program
in Paradise, CA. The consortium grew its short term CTE offerings to include construction pre-
apprenticeships, forklift trainings, and expanded health occupations, all leading to jobs for
students. In 17-18 the consortium will continue to maintain the growth markets that it
implemented in 16-17 and increase marketing efforts to draw students to those new locations. In
Glenn County the consortium will invest in the growth of ESL and Citizenship courses, as well as

new short term CTE offerings in floriculture, graphic and print arts, and retail.

8/14/17, 11:42 AM



_AEBG Web Portal

2 of 7

https://aebg.knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/aninual-plans-17-18/ed...

Meeting Regional Needs

What are the primary gaps / needs in your region? How are you meeting the adult education need and identifying
the gaps or deficit in your region? Please provide the reasons for the gap between the need in the region and the

types and levels of adult education services currently being offered.

Gaps in service / regional needs

HSD/HSE

ESL

Programs for adults with disabilities

CTE program offerings in Glenn County

GAPS IN SERVICE

How do you know? What
resources did you use to
identify these gaps?

Regional
demographic fact
sheet

Regional
demographic fact
sheet

Regional
demographic fact
sheet

Regional
demographic fact
sheet

How will you measure effactiveness / progress
toward meeting this need? Please be sure to
identify any local indicators planned for measuring
student progress.

Increased numbers of students
enralling in the Paradise USD and
Oroville Adult School courses.

Increased attendance at the new
eyening VESL courses being offered at
the GAP program.

Implementation of a National Retail
Foundation Certificate for persaons
with disabilities at the Rusty Wagon
program in Glenn County.

Student attendance in the newly
formed florticulture program at HUSD
and Graphic/Print art program at
GCOE .

For 2017-18, what strategies are planned to incrementally increase capacity in
identified gap areas and / or help maintain established levels of service (Must list at

least one)?

Identify strategies planned to incrementally increase capacity in identified gap areas as well as those that help

maintain established levels of service. Plans will have identified programming and service gaps including lack of
providers, services, access, attainment, and/or performance. These might include, but are not limited to, working
with other partners in the service area, developing or expanding programs and plans to assess the effectiveness

of these expanded efforts.

[ﬁegional Marketing of consortium offerings at Movie Theatres, print media, and

partner meetings.

[ﬁrovide evening VESL courses in Willows, CA

{Expand program offerings at new adult education building in Orland, Ca

(Expand short term CTE programs in Hamilton City

(Expand Office Technology Academy at the OAS Chico Center

75
8/14/17,11:42 AM



. AEBG Web Portal

76
3of7

https://aebg.knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/annual-plans-17-18/ed...

Seamless Transitions

Explain how consortium members and partners are integrating existing programs and services and creating
seamless transitions into post-secondary education or the workforce. Please also identify key challenges faced
and / or overcome during the 2016—17 Program Year in your efforts to transition students.

2016-17 Strategy

Chico Center -
HSD/HSE & ESL
Program

Construction Pre
Apprenticeship

Glenn Clinical
Medical
Assisting/Med
Term

Glenn Literacy
Project

Paradise Ridge
HSD/HSE Program

To what extent
have these
strategies been
implemented?

5 - Fully
implemented

4 - Mostly
implemented

5 - Fully
implemented

5 - Fully
implemented

5 - Fully
implemented

What challenges
prevented full
implementation?

none

The community college
does not have a
construction program
to transition
students into.

Finding qualified
faculty to teach
courses in rural
locations continues
to be a challenge.

none

none

What intervention strategies, if

any, are planned for the future? if

you are not planning to
implement or expand on this
strategy in the coming year, type
“None”

Continued articulation
with community college
courses

Development of a HVAC

program at the Community
College for graduates to

transition into.

none

Program growth

Increased marketing
efforts

What state
support would be
most helpful to
fully implement
this strategy?

none

none

none

none

none

For 2017-18, what NEW strategies are planned to Integrate existing programs and
create seamless transitions into postsecondary education or the workforce (Must list

at least one)?

How will the Consortium align and connect existing and future adult education programs to postsecondary
academic pathways and/or career pathways leading to employment? Activities should address how the

Consortium will align placement tools, curriculum, assessment tools and rubrics, and student performance
outcomes across delivery systems to ensure that student transition paths, both between providers and into
postsecondary credit programs, are understood and supported across all systems.

{Increase articulation agreements where applicable

——

Ty

8/14/17, 11:42 AM



_AEBG Web Portal https://aebg.knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/annual-plans-17-18/ed...

Student Acceleration

Explain how your consortium members and partners have employed approaches proven to accelerate a
student’s progress toward his or her academic or career goals, such as contextualized basic skills and career
technical education, and other joint programming strategies between adult education, post-secondary institutions,
and career technical education.

1o hatoxtent What intervention strategies, if any, are What state support
have these What challenges
. planned for the future? If you are not would be most helpful
2016-17 Strategy strategies prevented full N N n . y
: planning to implement or expand on this  to fully implement this
L] implementation? strategy in the comin ar, type “None”  strategy?
implemented? o 9 year, typ 9y
Construction Pre 5 - Fully none none none
Apprenticeship implemented

For 2017-18, what strategies are planned to accelerate student progress (Must list at
least one)?

Identify activities that you will implement and/or improve through using specific evidence- based strategies
across the region, within and between systems where they currently don't exist, to accelerate student's progress.
Common strategies include compressing courses into shorter, more intensive terms (accelerated), individualized
instruction based on a student’s competencies (competency-based), and putting basic skills content into the
context of a student’s goals and career path (contextualized).

—
iVocational ESL evening courses in willows

.rSulnlner construction bootcamp

p
|

(
[

Shared Professional Development

Explain how your consortium has collaborated in the provision of ongoing professional development opportunities
for faculty and other staff to help them achieve greater program integration, consortium alignment, and improve
student outcomes.

What state

What intervention strategies, if any, are support would be

JOCLELC: TCLETC R Ut G IR planned for the future? If you are not

2016-17 Strategy these strategies prevented full . . . most helpful to
P P R . planning to implement or expand on this N
been img ited?  imp ation? strategy in the coming year, type “None” fully implement
' this strategy?
Professional 3 -~ Somewhat Lack of Immediate sharing of information None
Development implemented staffing to via email regarding professional
portal support the development opportunities
portal appears more effective for our
community in sharing
opportunities.

77
4 of 7 8/14/17, 11:42 AM



. AEBG Web Portal

78
50f7

https://aebg knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/annual-plans-17-18/ed...

For 2017-18, what NEW strategies are planned to provide shared professional
development (Must list at least one)?

A critical element to ensuring the effective implementation of the Consortium'’s plans to improve adult education
programs are faculty and staff equipped with the skills, knowledge, and support needed to deliver high-quality
instruction and use ciassroom support strategies that foster ieamer persistence and goal achievement.
Significant and effective professional development will be required to build capacity within the existing systems to
deliver this new vision for adult learning throughout the state.

I
[

(Email distribution lists

o
{Face to face dissemination during regional meetings

Leverage the North Far North Regional Consortium meetings to convene the super region
of AEBG Directors.

Leveraging Resources

See the attached adult education fiscal resources table on your consortium fact sheet. Explain how your
consortium is leveraging and braiding these funds sources including those provided by consortium members and
partners, incorporating existing regional structures, and reaching out to stakeholders and partners for
participation and input.

What intervention strategies, if

To what extent nave What chaiienges any, are planned for the future? if  What state support would be
201817 N . R =
Strate these strategies prevented full you are not planning to implement  most helpful to fully implement
9y been implemented? implementation? or expand on this strategy in the this strategy?
coming year, type “None"”
Quarterly 5 - Fully Finding common None Set aside funds for
Meetings implemented availability meeting expenses,

rather than drawing out
of the regional
programing pot of
funds.

For 2017-18, what NEW strategies are planned to leverage existing regional
structures, including, but not limited te, with local workforce investment areas (Must

list at least one)?

Identify strategies planned to leverage existing regional structures and utilization of resources, including leverage
existing assets or structures to benefit the adult learners in the region. These assets or structures might include,
for example, contributions from or collaborations with local Workforce Investment Boards (WIBs), industry
employer groups, chambers of commerce, and county libraries.

[Common regional marketing via paper mailers anhd commercials.

gSharing out information on all regional programs at attended meetings.

(
(

8/14/17,11:42 AM



. AEBG Web Portal https://acbg.knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/annual-plans-17-18/ed...

6of 7

Section 2: Fiscal Management =

Please provide an update on your AEBG fiscal spending. In the table below, identify the total MOE & Non-
MOE funding spent or encumbered for the 2015-16 and 2016-17 program years.

Total AEBG tal Fund
Program Year ota . Total Spent L _u? S
Funding Remaining
2015-16 $2,050,119 $2,050,119 $0
2016-17 $2,077,938 $1,785,393 $292,545
Total $4,128,057 $3,835,512 $292,545

Please identify challenges faced related to spending or encumbering AEBG funding.

No challenges at this time

Please describe your approach to incorporating remaining funds from 2015-16 and 2016-17 info activities
planned for 2017-18. (Limit: 250 words)

No 15-16 funds are remaining

The majority of remaining 16-17 funds are encumbered and awaiting invoices

Remaining funds will be used to market the regional programs

Remaining funds at Butte County Office of Ed will be used to modernize and expand their Dental
Assisting program to meet the recommendations of the Nor Cal Dental Society.

Section 3: Certification and Submission -

As a condition of receiving AEBG funds, each Consortium must confirm they have read, understand, and
agree to adhere to the measures put forth in the 2017-18 AEBG General Assurances Document.

Failure to meet the requirements listed in the 2017-18 AEBG General Assurances Document may result in a
determination of non-compliance and lead to partial or complete loss of Consortium and / or Member funding.

Certification (Required)

i1 hereby certify that the Consortium operates in a manner consistent with all legislative mandates, Consortium, and
Member requirements as set forth in the by the AEBG Office and the AEBG 2017-18 Program Assurances

Document.
Z 1 hereby certify a) the information contained in this report is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge, b) that

this Annual Plan has been approved following established Consortium governance policies, and c) that | am an official
representative of the Consortium authorized to submit this Annual Plan on its behalf.

79
8/14/17, 11:42 AM



AEBG Web Portal https://aebg knack.com/portal#submit-your-reports/annual-plans-17-18/ed...

Signature (Required)

& Click to indicate you are ready to Submit your 2017-18 Consortium Annual Plan

80
7 of 7 8/14/17,11:42 AM



ALLOCATION AGREEMENT
ADULT EDUCATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM

EXHIBIT B
BGAE CONSORTIUM
FUNDS DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE
Applicant Amount
Provide adults with short term
BCOE $173,251 CTE Training
Glenn Literacy Projects
GCOE $457,775 GAP
Rusty Wagon
HUSD $194,225 Adult Education Program
OAE $1,078,423 Adult Education Chico Center
High school diploma or high
PUSD $103,530 school equivalency certificate for
adult students
Page B1-1

BGCCD-ALLOCATION AGREEMENT AEBG PROGRAM EXB (12-15)

81



82

ALLOCATION AGREEMENT
ADULT EDUCATION BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM
EXHIBIT C

PRIME AGREEMENT

The Consortium Member assures that it will comply with the applicable “flow-down” provisions of Exhibit C, the
Prime Agreement, attached hereto.

BGCCD- ALLOCATION AGREEMENT AEBG PROGRAM EXC (12-15) Page C-1



AEBG

PARTNERING FOR A STRONG
CALIFORNIA WORKFORCE

March 17,2017

Dear Adult Education Block Grant Fiscal Agent or Fiscal Coordinator:

Please accept this formal notification of the intent to award the AB104 Adult Education
Block Grant Regional Consortia Allocation for fiscal years 2017-18 and 2018-19. The AB104
legislative language (Section 84909 (b)) requires the release of the attached preliminary
schedule spreadsheet no later than February 28th. Additional AB104 legislative language
(Sections 84909, 84910, 84914) supports the following elements:

(1) Two years (17-18 and 18-19);

(2) Based on member amounts from prior year;

(3) Based on the State approved regional need share/formula; and

(4) Based on any agreed upon member adjustments to prior year allocations.

Recent Governor’s Budget language clarifies that the Adult Education Block Grant funding is
ongoing Proposition 98 General Fund (see language below) and can be used to cover expenses

beyond the current year.

This program coordinates representatives from local educational agencies, community colleges,
and other regional education, workforce, and industry partners to promote the educational
opportunities offered to students and adult learners. Through this program, students and adult
learners can access courses to complete their high school diplomas or general education
equivalent, English as a Second Language courses, and pathways courses that lead to additional
career opportunities. The Budget includes 5500 million ongoing Proposition 98 General Fund to
support the Adult Education Block Grant Program.

The AEBG preliminary schedule will assist AEBG consortia in completing the Consortium Fiscal
Administration Declaration (CFAD) Reporting Template by the deadline of May 2, 2017. The
CFAD is intended for each consortium to provide the State their fiscal structure for 2017-18 and
an allocation schedule of funding to members for 2017-18. Failure to meet the May 2, 2017
deadline will result in the State using the consortium fiscal structure from the prior year (16-17)

and the same apportionment schedule from 16-17.

Per the AB104 budget bill language Section 84912, funding shall be apportioned to each
regional consortium on a monthly allocation basis. The State anticipates apportionment
schedules to be posted by August 2017. Periodic expenditure and progress reporting will begin
later in the year (with a budget and planned activities to be entered into the online
expenditure reporting system prior to the reporting month).

83



For additional details, please reference our AEBG Program Guidance and AEBG Allowable Uses
on the AEBG website http://aebg.cccco.edu/Home.

If vou have any questions regarding this letter, please contact the Adult Education

Office at aebg@cccco.edu.

Thank you.
Chris Nelson Javier Romero
California Department of Education California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office
Adult Education Block Grant Office Adult Education Block Grant Office

@| CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES
&' CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE

Ci’.‘l!r”Ofﬂi\'iwa

EDUCATION

Enclosure: 2017-18 and 2018-19 AEBG Preliminary Allocation Schedule



AEBG

PARTMERING FOR A STRONG
CALIFORNIA WQRKFORCE

Allan Hancock $1,572,186

Antelope Valley $3,803,733 $3,803,733
Barstow $860,324 $860,324
Butte-Glenn $2,077,938 $2,077,938
Santa Cruz $3,249,166 $3,249,166
Southeast Los Angeles $13,904,368 $13,904,368
Mid Alameda County $8,537,383 $8,537,383
West End Corridor (Chaffey) $6,833,501 $6,833,501
Citrus 54,097,268 $4,097,268
Coast $7,073,559 $7,073,559
Tri-Cities $5,828,777 $5,828,777
Contra Costa $14,065,636 $14,065,636
Morongo Basin $773,016 $773,016
Desert $3,063,316 $3,063,316
South Bay (El Camino) $9,720,958 $9,720,958
Feather River $773,016 $773,016
Foothill De Anza $8,098,529 $8,098,529
Gavilan $1,368,513 $1,368,513
Glendale $1,015,717 $1,015,717
San Diego East {Grossmont-Cuyamaca) $7,866,672 $7,866,672
Salinas Valley $3,490,139 $3,490,139
Imperial $1,846,657 51,846,657
Kern $16,126,066 $16,126,066
Lake Tahoe $850,318 $850,318
Lassen 5892,858 $892,858
Long Beach $2,270,560 $2,270,560
Los Angeles $121,872,945 $121,872,945
Capital $11,128,458 $11,128,458
Marin 51,397,321 $1,397,321
Mendocino-Lake $1,457,718 $1,457,718
Gateway (Merced) $3,137,143 $3,137,143
Coastal North (MiraCosta) 51,132,500 $1,132,500
Monterey $2,410,582 $2,410,582
Mt. San Antonio $33,159,800 $33,159,800
Southwest Riverside $4,595,366 $4,595,366
Napa Valley $2,700,253 $2,700,253
North Orange $3,653,902 53,653,902
Southern Alameda County 54,159,800 $4,159,800
Palo Verde $773,016 $773,016
San Diego North (Vista) $7,455,872 $7,455,872

85



AEBG

PARTMERIMG FOR A STRONG
CALIFORMIA WORKFQRGE

Pasadena $1,772,131
Northern Alameda County $7,614,531 $7,614,531
Rancho Santiago $4,403,130 54,403,130
North Coast (Redwoods) $1,060,306 51,060,306
Rio Hondo $13,664,430 $13,664,430
Riverside About Students $7,851,639 $7,851,639
San Bernardino $9,961,494 $9,961,494
San Diego $4,445,071 $4,445,071
San Francisco $3,665,059 $3,665,059
Delta Sierra Alliance $7,940,243 $7,940,243
South Bay (San Jose) $16,558,269 $16,558,269
San Luis Obispo $1,329,958 $1,329,958
ACCEL (San Mateo) $9,113,286 $9,113,286
Santa Barbara $773,016 $773,016
Santa Clarita Valley $1,227,186 51,227,186
Santa Monica $1,077,163 $1,077,163
Sequoias $9,129,557 $9,129,557
Shasta-Tehema-Trinity 51,060,696 51,060,696
Sierra Joint $3,186,735 $3,186,735
Solano $3,734,212 $3,734,212
Sonoma $2,409,227 $2,409,227
South Orange $4,579,171 $4,579,171
South Bay (Southwestern) $13,728,935 $13,728,935
State Center $14,282,751 $14,282,751
Ventura County $14,391,068 $14,391,068
Victor Valley $2,069,315 $2,069,315
West Hills $1,058,280 $1,058,280
West Kern $773,016 $773,016
Stanislaus Mother Lode (Yosemite) $4,146,610 54,146,610
North Central (Yuba) $2,997,748 $2,997,748
Siskiyous $900,917 $900,917
Total $500,000,000 $500,000,000



AEBG

PARTNERING FOR A STRONG
CALIFORNIA WORKFORCE

Program Guidance

Adult Education Block Grant

Performance Year: 2017-2018

Funding source: AB104, Section 39, Article 9
Released: August 28, 2017

87



88



A. Introduction

California has the opportunity to re-envision and redesign the adult educational
system. The California Department of Education and the California Community
College Chancellor's Office are working together to establish linkages for students
across their systems that provide adults with the academic and career skills needed
to enhance student success. To this end, the legislature and Governor have put in
place unprecedented indicators of California’s commitment to improve adult

education in the state.

The legislature has committed funds to regional consortia composed of K-12 districts,
community college districts, County Offices of Education (COE), and joint power
authorities (JPAs) to collaborate regionally for the purpose of expanding and
improving adult education services by creating linkages between the educational
systems. Regional collaboration provides capacity for consortia members to find
common ground and cross-geographical and cultural boundaries in order to provide
seamless transitions for students. In some areas of the state, there is a rich history of
collaboration and a range of partnerships in place that have a regional perspective on
policies and programs. Regional collaboration will manifest itself differently in each
consortium. In some cases, it may involve a few partners and in others, many

partners.
B. Assembly Bill 104 (AB104) Overview

On June 24, 2015, Governor Jerry Brown signed AB104 into law; the major
education trailer bill that accompanied the state’s 2015-16 state budget. This
measure includes a section that defines the state’s expectations for the new Aduit

Education Block Grant program.

This document provides a roadmap for understanding both, the provisions of AB104
and the initial expectations for the three-year implementation plan. AB104 includes a
segment on the enactment of the Adult Education Block Grant that represents the
actualization of the planning that began with the passage of Assembly Bill 86 in 2013.
AB86 provided $25 million to 70 consortia statewide to support the development of
regional adult education consortium plans that focus on expanding and improving
opportunities for education and workforce services for adults.

From July 1, 2013 - July 1, 2015, AB86 consortia, consisting of k-12 school
districts, community college districts, and other partners developed regional
education and workforce service plans for adults. AB86 also included the
commitment from the state legislature to dedicate funding to adult education at the
conclusion of the planning period, June 30, 2015.

The 2015-16 year represents the transition period from the planning that took place
with AB86 to the actualization of the Adult Education Block Grant program, addressed
in AB104. The state of California has dedicated $500 million in ongoing support for
this program, more than any other state in the nation.

3
89



90

Moving forward into the implementation phase of the AEBG funding, the Governor
allocated $500M (for each fiscal year) for 16-17, and 17-18. The language from the
Governor’'s 17-18 budget states, “ihe Aduit Education Biock Grant Program coordinates
representatives from local educational agencies, community colleges, and other regional
education, workforce, and industry partners to promote the educational opportunities
offered to students and adult learners. Through this program, students and adult
learners can access courses to complete their high school diplomas or general
education equivalent, English as a Second Language courses, and pathways courses
that lead to additional career opportunities. The Budget includes $500 million ongoing
Proposition 98 General Fund to support the Adult Education Block Grant Program”.

C. Adult Education Block Grant Funding

This document contains general instructions, procedures, formats, timelines, and
reporting requirements for the Adult Education Block Grant (AEBG) Program. AEBG-
related language is rather prescriptive. Hence, these guidelines offer mostly context,
interpretation and clarification of the legislation’s directives, rather than new
information. The regional consortia are made up of K-12 school districts, county
offices of education (COE), community college districts, and joint power authorities
(JPAs) encompassing all 58 California Counties to implement plans to better serve
the educational needs of adults.

Title: AB104, Section 39, Article 9, Adult Education Block Grant
Funding AB104, Section 39, Article 9
Source:

17/18 Funding July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 (11 installments)

Period:
Total Funds $500,000,000 in regional consortia allocations
Available:
Spending AEBG 17/18 funds must be spent between July 1, 2017, and
Period: December 31, 2019. Final expenditure and progress reports
) are due by January 31, 2020, with a close out due by February
17, 2020.
Required No match required
Match:




Number of 71 (regional consortia funding allocations based upon formula
Awards: — with two regions combining).

The Adult Education Block Grant Program is established under the administration of the
Chancellor of the California Community Colleges and the Superintendent of Public
Instruction. The Chancellor and the Superintendent are the state officials responsible for
identifying and understanding the educational needs of adults in the state.

D. Adult Education Block Grant Program Guidance

1. Adult Education Enroliment Age Requirements

The AB104 legislation specifically states that Adult Education Block Grant Program is to
serve adults, and an adult is defined as “a person 18 years of age or older”. See section
84901 (a) of the AB104 legislation.

84901. For purposes of this article, the following definitions shall apply, unless
otherwise specified: (a) “Adult” means a person 18 years of age or older.

AEBG funding can only be used to serve adults as described in the AB104 legislation. If
a district / member would like to serve students under 18 years of age, they are
permitted to do so if the district/member uses another fund source that allows minors
under the age of 18 years to be served, and the district/member follows existing

education code pertaining to serving minors.

2. State Level Governance
AB104 legislation Section 84900. 84902 (a), establishes that the chancellor and the
Superintendent are the state officials responsible for identifying and understanding the
educational needs of adults in the state. (b) The chancellor and the Superintendent shall
use the powers provided by this article to support the effective provision of services that
address the educational needs of adults in all regions of the state. (c) In performing
duties under this article, the chancellor and the Superintendent shall seek advice from,
and coordinate with, other state officials responsible for programs for adults.

3. State Level Requirements for Regional Consortia

Existing law establishes the Adult Education Block Grant Program, under the
administration of the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges and the
Superintendent of Public Instruction. Under this program, the chancellor and the

5
91



92

Superintendent, with the advice of the Executive Director of the State Board of
Education, are required to divide the state into adult education regions and approve one
adult education consortium in each adult education region, as specified. Existing law

requires the chanceiior and the Superiniendent, with the advice of the executive director,

TATE D ur in

to approve, for each consortium, rules and procedures that adhere to prescribed
conditions. Existing law also requires, as a condition for the receipt of an apportionment
of funds from this program for a fiscal year, that members of a consortium approve an
adult education plan, as specified.

Determining factors for regional consortia:

(1) Economic and demographic factors, including the locations of regional labor
markets.

(2) The boundaries of regions used to distribute funds for other state programs.

(3) The presence of adult education providers that have demonstrated effectiveness in
meeting the educational needs of adults.

4. State Level Requirements for Consortium Membership
The AB104 legislation states that any community college district, school district, or
county office of education, or any joint powers authority consisting of community college
districts, school districts, county offices of education, or a combination of these, located
within the boundaries of the adult education region shall be a member of a consortium

pursuant to this article if it receives funds from any of the following programs or

allocations:

(2) The Adults in Correctional Facilities program.

(b) The federal Adult Education and Family Literacy Act (Title Il of the federal Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act).

(c) The federal Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act (Public Law 109-
270).

(d) Local Control Funding Formula apportionments received for students who are 19
years of age or older.

(e) Community college apportionments received for providing instruction in courses in
the areas listed in subdivision (a) of Section 84913.

(f) State funds for remedial education and job training services for participants in the
CalWORKSs program

Members in Multiple Consortia

If a school district, county offices of education, or any joint powers authority consisting of
community college districts, school districts, county offices of education, or a
combination of these, is located within the boundaries of more than one adult education
regional consortium and it receives funds from any of the following programs or
allocations (see above or 84916 (a-f)) than it can be a member of each consortium

o



where the local district, county offices education, or joint powers authority is located. The
member would have to follow each consortium’s governance plan, by-laws, and abide by
AB104 legislative member requirements (84905, 84906, 84914, 84916, 84917, and
84920). Consortium membership alone does not guarantee funding.

Members offering classes in another district within the Regional Consortium

Whenever the governing board of a school district, county offices of education, joint
powers authority, or community college district that maintains an adult education
program (for adults) is unable to maintain the program, school or classes within the
district because of the lack of facilities, or its inability to secure a teacher or teachers, the
board may with the approval of its respective governing bodies (County Superintendent,
College District President, and State Agencies) maintain the school or classes of the
district elsewhere than within the district or contract with the governing board of another
district for the instruction of students in such a school or classes. (For K-12 districts, the
governing bodies would be the county superintendent of schools and the State
Superintendent of Public Instruction. For community college districts, it would be
governing boards from the affected districts.)

5. Regional Consortia and Member Requirements

A regional consortia member must follow their consortium’s governance plan, by-laws,
and abide by AB104 legislative member requirements (84905, 84906, 84917, and
84920). Consortium membership alone does not guarantee funding.

List of Consortia and Member Requirements (from AB104 Legislation):

1. A member shall commit to reporting any funds available to that member for the
purposes of education and workforce services for adults and the uses of those
funds. (84905 (b)).

2. A member of the consortium shall be represented only by an official designated
by the governing board of the member (84905 (c)).

3. As a condition for the receipt of an apportionment of funds from this program for a
fiscal year, that members of a consortium approve an adult education plan (the
AEBG 3 year plan) (84906 (a)).

4. The members of a consortium shall approve an adult education plan (the AEBG 3
year plan) at least once every three years. The plan shall be updated at least
once each year based on available data.

5. All members of the consortium shall participate in any decision made by the
consortium (84905 (d) (1) (a)).

6. A proposed decision is considered at an open, properly noticed public meeting of
the consortium at which members of the public may comment (84905 (d) (1) (b).

7. The consortium has provided the public with adequate notice of a proposed

decision and considered any comments submitted by members of the public, and
7

93



any comments submitted by members of the public have been distributed publicly
(84905 (d) (1) (c).

8. The consortium has requested comments regarding a proposed decision
other entities located in the adult education region that provid t
workforce services for adults (84905 (d) (1) (d) (i)).

9. The consortium has considered and responded to any comments submitted by
entities pursuant to clause (i) (84905 (d) (1) (d) (ii)) which includes entities that
provide education and workforce services to adults include, but are not
necessarily limited to, local public agencies, departments, and offices, particularly
those with responsibility for local public safety and social services; workforce
investment boards; libraries; and community-based organizations (84905 (d) (1)
(d) iii)).

10. The consortium has considered input provided by pupils, teachers empioyed by
local educational agencies, community college faculty, principals, administrators,
classified staff, and the local bargaining units of the school districts and
community college districts before it makes a decision (84905 (d) (1) (e)).

11. A decision is final (84905 (d) (1) (f)) — meaning a consortium decision cannot be
held up because an official member failed to attend the meeting.

12. The members of the consortium may decide to designate a member to serve as
the fund administrator to receive and distribute funds from the program. (84905
(d) (2) (e)). The members of the consortium also have the option of selecting
direct funding which would result in the consortium not having a fund
administrator. In that case, the consortium would decide how funds are certified
internaily.

13. As a condition of receipt of an apportionment from the program, a consortium
shall approve a distribution schedule (CFAD) that includes both of the following:
(1) The amount of funds to be distributed to each member of the consortium for
that fiscal year. (2) A narrative (the AEBG annual plan) justifying how the planned
allocations are consistent with the adult education plan. (84914 (a) (1) and (2)).

14. The chancellor and the Superintendent may require a consortium, as a condition
of receipt of an apportionment, to submit any reports or data necessary to
produce the report described in subdivision (84917 (b) (1) (a)).

15.The chancellor and the Superintendent shall identify common measures for
determining the effectiveness of members of each consortium in meeting the
educational needs of adults. See list of required data elements and effectiveness
measures required to be collected, tracked, and reported by each consortium and
their members (Section 40, 84920, (c)).

16.Consortia and their members must agree to adhere to the general assurances
listed as part of the annual planning process. For the purposes of evaluating
Consortia and Consortium Member effectiveness, the California Department of
Education and California Community College Chancellor's Office establish annual
indicators of compliance. Failure to meet the requirements listed in the 2017-18
AEBG General Assurances Document may result in a determination of non-
compliance and lead to partial or complete loss of Consortium and/or Member
funding. (See annual plan general assurances).

6. Requirements for Reducing a Member’s Funding (84914 (b))
8

94



For any fiscal year for which the chancellor and the Superintendent allocate an amount
of funds to the consortium greater than the amount allocated in the prior fiscal year, the
amount of funds to be distributed to a member of that consortium shall be equal to or
greater than the amount distributed in the prior fiscal year, unless the consortium makes
at least one of the following findings related to the member for which the distribution

would be reduced:

(A) The member no longer wishes to provide services consistent with the adult

education plan.
(B) The member cannot provide services that address the needs identified in the

adult education plan.

(C) The member has been consistently ineffective in providing services that
address the needs identified in the adult education plan and reasonable
interventions have not resulted in improvements.

For any year for which the chancellor and the Superintendent allocate an amount of
funds to the consortium less than the amount allocated in the prior year, the amount of
funds to be distributed to a member of that consortium shall not be reduced by a
percentage greater than the percentage by which the total amount of funds allocated to
the consortium decreased, unless the consortium makes at least one of the following
findings related to the member for which the distribution would be reduced further:

(A) The member no longer wishes to provide services consistent with the adult

education plan.

(B) The member cannot provide services that address the needs identified in the
adult education plan.

(C) The member has been ineffective in providing services that address the
needs identified in the adult education plan and reasonable interventions have not
resulted in improvements.

For any fiscal year for which the chancellor and the Superintendent allocate an amount
of funds to the consortium that is the same amount allocated in the prior fiscal year, the
amount of funds to be distributed to a member of that consortium shall be equal to the
amount distributed in the prior fiscal year, unless the consortium makes at least one of
the following findings related to the member for which the distribution would be reduced:

(A) The member no longer wishes to provide services consistent with the adult

education plan.
(B) The member cannot provide services that address the needs identified in the

adult education plan.
(C) The member has been consistently ineffective in providing services that
address the needs identified in the adult education plan and reasonable

interventions have not resulted in improvements.

95



96

Consortia can increase or decrease member aliocations regardless of funding levels as
long as there is unanimous agreement on the allocation change. If the consortium
members cannot unanimously agree, then the consortium must follow AB104 legislation
referenced in 84914 (h).

Members Leaving a Consortium

Consortia will follow their governance plan (#14 - How will members join, leave, or be
dismissed from the consortium) and any additional language in their agreed upon by-
laws regarding terminating membership. For new members, in addition to the
governance plan, and by-laws, consortia will follow existing requirements in AB104
legislation (84905, 84906, 84914, 84916, 84917, and 84920).

7. Regional Consortia and Member Required Plans

Three-Year Plan (84906 (a) (b) (c) (d))

As a condition of receipt of an apportionment of funds from this program for a fiscal year,
the members of a consortium shall have approved an adult education plan that
addresses that fiscal year. The members of a consortium shall approve an adult
education plan at least once every three years. The plan shall be updated at least once
each year based on available data. For the 2015-16, 2016—17, and 2017-18 fiscal
years, a regional plan (AEBG 3-year plan) developed shall satisfy the requirements of

e P Y 4

the iegisiation in 84300.
An adult education plan shall include all of the following:

(1) An evaluation of the educational needs of adults in the region.

(2) Alist of the following:
(A) Entities that provide education and workforce services to adults in the region.
(B) Entities that are impacted by, or that have a fundamental interest in, the
provision of those services.
(3) A description of the services provided by entities listed pursuant to (#2).
(4) An evaluation of current levels and types of education and workforce services for
adults in the region.
(5) An evaluation of the funds available to the members of the consortium and the
entities listed pursuant to (#2), including funds other than those apportioned (see list of
fund sources for members under Section 4 of this document).
(6) Actions that the members of the consortium will take to address the educational
needs identified pursuant to (#1).
(7) Actions that the members of the consortium will take to improve the effectiveness of
their services.

(8) Actions that the members of the consortium, the entities listed pursuant to (#2), and
other interested parties will take to improve integration of services and to improve

10



transitions into postsecondary education and the workforce, including actions related to
all of the following:
(A) Placement of adults seeking education and workforce services into adult
education programs.
(B) Alignment of academic standards and curricula for programs across entities
that provide education and workforce services to adults.
(C) Qualifications of instructors, including common standards across entities that
provide education and workforce services to adults.

(D) Collection and availability of data.
(9) A description of the alignment of adult education services supported by this program
with those described in other education and workforce plans guiding services in the
region, including plans pertaining to the building of career pathways and the employment
of workforce sector strategies and those required pursuant to the federal Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128).
(10) A description of the ways in which each of the entities identified in (#2) contributed
to the development of the plan.

Consortium Fiscal Administrative Declaration (CFAD) (84914 (a) (1))

As a condition of receipt of an apportionment from the program, a consortium shall
approve a distribution schedule known as the Consortium Fiscal Administrative
Declaration (CFAD) that includes the amount of funds to be distributed to each member

of the consortium for that fiscal year.

Annual Plan Report (84914 (a) (2))

As a condition of receipt of an apportionment from the program, a consortium shall
approve a narrative (the AEBG Annual Plan) justifying how the planned allocations are
consistent with the adult education plan. The AEBG Annual Plan asks Consortia to
consider key accomplishments and challenges from the prior year, as well as outline
goals and activities for following funding year. This require a review of the 3-year plan
and if necessary, an update of the 3-year planning data to reflect the most current

information.

Governance Plan Template (84905 (a to d))

The State requires that all consortia download, complete, and submit the Governance
Plan template in order to comply with the following rules and procedures for their
governance compliance. The chancellor and the Superintendent, with the advice of the
executive director, shall approve, for each consortium, rules and procedures
(Governance Plan Template). Consortia may add additional requirements via by-laws,
and may update their governance plan template (and by-laws) throughout the year. The
following is a list of items from AB104 legislation that are covered in the governance plan
and should be referenced in consortium by-laws.

e Consortium membership
e Reporting any funds available to that member for the purposes of education and

workforce services for adults and the uses of those funds.
11

97



98

[ ]

A member of the consortium shali be represented only by an official designated
by the governing board of the member.

Decision-making procedures are specified that ensure that all of the following
conditions are satisfied (see 84905 (d) (1) (a-f).

Any consortia and member requirements from section 5 of this document
(Regional Consortia and Member Requirements).

Any items listed in the Annual Plan General Assurances document for consortia
and/or members.

Reduction or loss of consortium funding by a member (84914 (b) (1) (a-c) and (b)

(2) (a-c).

Process for a consortium member to leave or terminate their membership.

Planning Amendment Submission Process
If a consortium wishes to amend any of the submitted documentation, you must take the
following steps:

Discuss at a properly noticed public meeting

Obtain member input and public comment

involve all members in the final decision on the amendment
Publish the minutes of the decision for public viewing

Use the State system for updating/uploading amended documents

The window period for submitting amendments to the State is July 1 through May 15 of
each program year.

Calendar of Required Plans Submittal

Year 1

3-year plan is submitted

Annual Processing (during the program year)

January Governor's Budget is submitted
February AEBG preliminary allocations are released

March CFAD is open for input of member allocations

May CFAD is due

May Amendments are due

July Budget is enacted

July AEBG final allocations are released

August Annual Plan is due

August AEBG funds are disbursed per the allocation schedule

12



8. AEBG Program Areas (84913)

For program reporting purposes, starting in 2017-18, adult education includes all people
receiving support services from AEBG consortium members or enrolled in K12 adult
education or noncredit community college coursework in the program areas listed in
AB104 (see below): elementary and secondary basic skills, English as a second
language, short-term career and technical education, entry/re-entry into the workforce,
pre-apprenticeship, adults with disabilities, and adults training to support child school
success. For information on how to report adult education students, please refer to the
program guidance for reporting in Section # of this document.

Funds apportioned for the AEBG program shall be used only for support of the following:

(1) Programs in elementary and secondary basic skills, including programs leading to a
high school diploma or high school equivalency certificate.

(2) Programs for immigrants eligible for educational services in citizenship, English as a
second language, and workforce preparation.

(3) Programs for adults, including, but not limited to, older adults, that are primarily
related to entry or reentry into the workforce.

(4) Programs for adults, including, but not limited to, older adults, that are primarily
designed to develop knowledge and skills to assist elementary and secondary school
children to succeed academically in school.

(5) Programs for adults with disabilities.

(6) Programs in career technical education that are short term in nature and have high
employment potential.

(7) Programs offering pre-apprenticeship training activities conducted in coordination
with one or more apprenticeship programs approved by the Division of Apprenticeship

Standards for the occupation and geographic area.

The program definitions have been further described by the State to be restricted
to the following areas:

Program Definitions (as of 8/1/17)

AB104 defines program areas that are a mix of instructional programs and services to
populations. For AEBG, the four primary programs include:

1. English as a Second Language (ESL): provides instruction in the English
language to adult, non-native English speakers with varied academic, vocational,

citizenship, and personal goals.

2. Adult Basic Education (ABE): provides instruction in foundational academic skills,
such as reading, writing, and basic mathematics, as well as learning skills and
13

929



100

study skills. These programs inciude courses that are below Low Adult Secondary
Education/9th grade level.

Adult Secondary Education (ASE): provides instruction in foundational academic
skills, such as reading, writing, and basic mathematics, as well as learning skills
and study skills. These programs include courses that are at the Low Adult
Secondary Education/9th grade level and above, and/or leading to a high school
diploma, GED, or high school equivalency certificate.

. Short Term Career and Technical Education (CTE): prepares adult learners to

enter the workforce in approximately a year or less.

In addition to the four primary programs, AEBG will provide information on enrollments
and/or outcomes for several additional program areas:

4. Adults with Disabilities (AWD): Because AWD can be flagged as either a

population or a program, separate disaggregation will be provided for programs
specifically designed to meet the needs of adults with disabilities, and for people
with disabilities who are enrolled in other adult education program areas. To
ensure that data is reported accurately, adults with disabilities should be identified
as follows:

e TE: Use the AWD program flag only if the participant is enrolied in a
specialized program designed specifically and exclusively for adults with
disabilities. For AWD participants who are enrolling in other adult education
programs, use the “disabled” barriers to employment flag in combination
with the appropriate program flag.

e MIS: Flag courses in specialized AWD programs using CB22 code E for
“courses for persons with substantial disabilities.” Use DSPS enrollment
flags to identify AWD participants enrolled in other noncredit community
college programs.

. Workforce Entry/Re-Entry: AEBG defines this program area as populations with

systemic barriers to economic success who enroll in CTE programs. AEBG will
extract data using population flags that are aligned with the WIOA “barriers to
employment’ categories including:

Displaced homemaker

Ex-offender

Foster care youth

Homeless

Low income-economically disadvantaged
Long term unemployed

Migrant farmworker

14

NN & e K



v' Seasonal farmworker
v Single parent
v" No TANF within 2 years

In addition, this program area will include participants who are 55 years or older, based
on their date of birth.

To ensure that this program area can be populated, all adult education providers should
pay special attention to capturing barriers to employment status and date of birth at
intake or at the time of the participants’ first course enrollment. MIS will be adding
population flags for missing characteristics in the 2018-2019 program year, which will
also be used to pull data on for-credit adult education students for the supplemental

report.

6. Pre-Apprenticeship: AEBG has aligned this program with definitions used by the
Department of Labor and the California Apprenticeship Initiative, which specify
that pre-apprenticeship is a “program or set of strategies designed to prepare
individuals to enter and succeed in a registered apprenticeship program and has
a documented partnership with at least one, if not more, registered apprenticeship

programs,” and includes:

o Approved training and curriculum based on industry standards and approved
by a documented registered apprenticeship partner.

e Recruitment, educational, and pre-vocational strategies that prepare under-
represented, disadvantaged, or low-income individuals to meet the entry
requirements of one or more registered apprenticeship programs.

e Access to appropriate support services.
e Meaningful hands-on training that does not displace existing paid employees.

e Formal direct entry or articulation agreements with its registered
apprenticeship partners.

Adult education providers should only use the pre-apprenticeship program flag in TE if
participants are enrolled in programs that meet these criteria, including ensuring that that
courses are offered in coordination with one or more apprenticeship programs approved
by the Division of Apprenticeship Standards through an MOU or formal agreement. MIS
will include a course flag for pre-apprenticeship courses that meet these criteria in 2018-
2019.

7. Adults Training to Support Child School Success: AEBG defines this program as
providing education and training to adults, typically parents and-or community
members, to help school-aged children succeed in school. Use the “adults
supporting K12 student success” program flag in TE or the CB22 “parenting”

course flag in MIS to track this program area.
15

101



102

Other Adult Education Related Programs

Integrated Education and Training (IET): Under WIOA, integrated education and training
(IET) means a service approach that provides adult education and literacy activities
concurrently and contextually with workforce preparation activities and workforce training
for a specific occupation or occupational cluster for educational and career
advancement. IET programs are considered integrated if they:

e Balance instruction across the three components (foundational skills, workforce
preparation, and workforce training).

o |ET training activities occur simultaneously.

e They use occupationally relevant materials for basic skills as well as workforce
training activities.

Participants in IET programs will be grouped under the CTE category for reporting to the
state. Adult education providers should only use the IET program flag in TE if
participants are enrolled in programs that meet these criteria. Starting in 2018-19,
colleges should use the Career Advancement Academy (CAA) flag to indicate students
who are participating in an IET program.

Use of Funds in non-AEBG Program Areas

Funds apportioned for the AEBG program shall be used only for support of AEBG
program areas as described in this section. If a consortia or member would like to offer
programs outside of the AEBG defined program areas, it may do so with another fund
source (if it is allowed by that fund source). Existing education code list (see below) has
many adult education program areas; however, using AEBG funds is restricted to the
seven areas listed in this section.

9. Course Approvai Process

All courses in the seven AEBG program areas must be approved using the
existing state agency and local governing board course approval process. There
are no exceptions, as all AEBG members must use their respective course

approval process.

Please see the appropriate education code and regulations that govern your system'’s
course approval process.

K-12/COE

A course of study in each adult school is subject to the approval of the CDE (EC 51056).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction shall establish course approval criteria
16



and procedures for securing course and program approvals (EC 52506). For course
approval all adult schools are required annually to submit to the CDE a list of titles of
classes to be offered in the authorized program areas. The CDE’s approval of the listis
required; authorized apportionment course titles are listed in the Adult Education Course

Approval System (A-22).

The governing board of every school district shall prepare and keep on file for public
inspection the courses of study prescribed for the schools under its jurisdiction (EC
51040). Any revised educational program shall conform to the legal requirements (EC
51041). The governing board of every school district shall evaluate its educational
program and shall make revisions, as it deems necessary (EC 51041). Classes for
adults shall conform to any course of study and graduation requirements otherwise
imposed by law or under the authority of law (EC 52504). A course of study for each
adult school shall be prepared under the direction of the governing board of the district
maintaining the adult school and shall be subject to approval of the CDE (EC 51056).

Community Colleges

The local curriculum committee approves all noncredit courses and programs. The local
curriculum committee conducting the review has been established by the mutual
agreement of the college and/or district administration and the academic senate. The
committee is either a committee of the academic senate or a committee that includes
faculty and is otherwise comprised in a way that is mutually agreeable to the college
and/or district administration and academic senate. All courses shall be submitted to the
Chancellor’'s Office on forms provided by the Chancellor’s Office. A clear description of
the course must be published in the general catalog and/or addenda to the catalog and

in the college’s schedule.

Education code referenced: Title 5 5§5002(c)(1)&(2), 55002(a)(1), 55100, 58102, and
58104.

10. State Reporting Requirements

84917. (a) To inform actions taken by the Governor and the Legislature related to aduit
education, the chancellor and the Superintendent shall submit to the Director of Finance,
to the State Board of Education, and, in conformity with Section 9795 of the Government

Code, to the Legislature, by September30 October 30 following any fiscal year for
which funds are appropriated for the program, a report about the use of these funds and

outcomes for adults statewide and in each adult education region. The report shall
include at least all of the following:

(1) A summary of the adult education plan operative for each consortium.

(2) The distribution schedule for each consortium.

(3) The types and levels of services provided by each consortium.

(4) The effectiveness of each consortium in meeting the educational needs of adults in
its respective region.

(5) Any recommendations related to delivery of education and workforce services for

17
103



104

adults, including recommendations related to improved alignment of state programs.

{b) (2) The chancellor and the Superintendent shall align the data used to produce the
report described in subdivision (a) with data reported by local educational agencies for
other purposes, such as data used for purposes of the federal Workforce Opportunity
and Innovation Act (Public Law 113-128). (3) The Employment Development
Department and the California Workforce Investment Board shall provide any assistance
needed to align delivery of services across state and regional workforce, education, and

job service programs.

The chancellor and the Superintendent shall provide preliminary reports on or before
October 30 following each fiscal year for which funds are appropriated for the program
and final reports on or before February 1 of the following year. Each report shall be
based on all data available at the time of its submission.

11.Consortia and Member Data and Accountability Reporting Requirements

SEC. 40. Section 84920 (c) The chancellor and the Superintendent shall identify, no later
than January 1, 2016, the measures for assessing the effectiveness of consortia that will
be used in the report that, pursuant to Section 84917, is to be submitted by September
30, 2016. These measures shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, all of the

following:

(1) How many adults are served by members of the consortium.
(2) How many adults served by members of the consortium have demonstrated the
following:
(A) Improved literacy skills.
(B) Completion of high school diplomas or their recognized equivalents.
(C) Completion of postsecondary certificates, degrees, or training programs.
(D) Placement into jobs.
(E) Improved wages.
(F) Transition to Post-Secondary (added by the State)

The chancellor and the Superintendent shall provide any guidance to the consortia
necessary to support the sharing of data included in systems established by consortia
pursuant to this section across consortia.

EC 78402 (b) The department and the chancelior’'s office, as a part of the report and
recommendations required pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (f) of Section 84830,
shall jointly develop and issue policy recommendations to the Legislature regarding a
comprehensive accountability system for adult education courses offered pursuant to
Section 84830 and paragraphs (2) to (6), inclusive, of subdivision (a) of Section 84757.
The department and the chancellor’s office shall develop recommendations for all adult
education-funded providers for assessment, evaluation, and data collection to document
18



participant outcomes and placement, and other performance measures they deem
appropriate. Accountability measures may include receipt of a secondary school diploma
or its recognized equivalent, placement in a postsecondary educational institution,
training, and employment. All funded programs shall be required to annually submit
demographic and other student-level outcome information to the department or the

chancellor’s office, as appropriate.

Note: For recent reporting changes for program year 17/18, please see the Adult
Education Data and Accountability Report: Guidance to Reporting Systems,
Populations, Programs, and Core Metrics.

AEBG Fiscal Guidance and Allowable Activities — see separate guidance
document.

19

105



106

AEBG

PARTNERING FOR A STRONG
CALIFORNIA WORKFORCE

Adult Education Block Grant

General Assurances
2017-18

For the purposes of evaluating Consortia and Consortium Member effectiveness for the 2017-
18 funding year, the California Department of Education and California Community College
Chancellor’s Office have established the following indicators of compliance. Failure to meet the
requirements listed may result in a determination of non-compliance and lead to partial or
complete loss of Consortium and / or Member funding.

Consortium Effectiveness

Evaluation
U Consortia have evaluated members to identify that the services provided meet the
needs identified in the adult education plan.
O Consortia submitted program targets for the 2017—18 year based upon regional
need, funding, and capacity.
Funding
0 AEBG funds are expended in the seven AEBG program areas, and are consistent with
each consortium’s adult education regional plan.

@ Consortium expenditures are aligned with the objectives and activities listed in the
required annual plan.

O If applicable, the fund administrator, committed to developing a process to
apportion funds to each member of the consortium pursuant to the consortium’s
adult education plan within 45 days of receiving funds appropriated for the program.

Governance and Collaboration

O Consortia have identified a governance structure for decision making.
O Consortium governance plans are followed for decision making and public meetings.

O The consortium has considered input provided by pupils, teachers employed by local
educational agencies, community college faculty, principals, administrators,
classified staff, and the local bargaining units of the school districts and community
college districts before it makes a decision.



AEBG GENERAL ASSURANCES
AEBG 2017-18

PARTMERING FOR & STRONG
CALIFORNIA WORKFORCE

Membership

a

Q

Consortia invited all eligible members in the region to participate in the AEBG
initiative.

All members are located within the regional boundaries of designated consortium.

Planning

a
Q

Q

Consortia have submitted the required Annual Plan Template.

Consortia have approved and submitted the 3-year plan that may include
amendments.

Consortium members have shared information on related programs that are offered
and the resources being used to support these programs.

Consortia participated in statewide leadership activities (Summit, AEBG
Conferences).

Reporting

a

Q

Consortia will report student level enroliment data and outcomes per the AEBG Data
Submission and Critical Reports letter on the dates prescribed (including final
reporting on August 1st).

Consortia will submit financial expenditure and progress reports.

Member Effectiveness

Q

a

U

070515v1

Each member must participate in completing and updating the Annual Plan
Template.

AEBG member funds must be expended in the seven program areas, and services
provided must be consistent with the plan.

Each member must participate in completing and updating the 3-year Consortia
Plan, including any amendments.

Member expenditures of AEBG funds must match the objectives included in the
Annual Plan.

Members participate in consortium/public meetings.
Members participate in consortium final decisions.

Members report student level enrollment data and outcomes as prescribed by the
State AEBG Office.

20f3

107



AEBG GENERAL ASSURANCES
ﬁ'EPGu; 2017-18

CALIFORNEA WORKFORCE

O Members share information on programs offered, and the resources being used to
support the programs.

O Members provide services that address the needs identified in the adult education
plan.

O Members share financial expenditure and progress reports with the regional
consortium.

070515v1 30of3

108



